Public Document Pack
Tameside & Glossop Care Together

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD

Day: Wednesday

Date: 24 April 2019

Time: 1.00 pm

Place: Committee Room 2, Level 2, Tameside One
Item AGENDA Page
No. No

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, by
reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be considered at
the meeting as a matter of urgency.

3. ITEM FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

To determine an items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to be
excluded for the meeting.

4, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Strategic
Commissioning Board.

5. MINUTES 1-8
To receive the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 March 2019.
6. FINANCIAL CONTEXT

a) TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP STRATEGIC COMMISSION 2019/20 9-26
FINANCIAL PLAN

To consider the attached report of the Director of Finance.

b) M11 CONSOLIDATED REVENUE MONITORING STATEMENT 27 - 42
To consider the attached report of the Director of Finance.

7. QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE CONTEXT

a) QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT 43 - 60
To consider the attached report of the Director of Quality and Safeguarding.

b) PERFORMANCE UPDATE 61-72

To consider the attached report of the Assistant Director (Policy, Performance
and Communications).

8. COMMISSIONING FOR REFORM

From: Democratic Services Unit — any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Linda Walker, Senior Democratic Services Officer, to whom any apologies for
absence should be notified.



Item AGENDA Page
No. No

a) SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY 2019/23 73 -100

To consider the attached report of the Executive Leader, Pat McKelvey, Head
of Mental Health and Learning Disabilities and Jacqui Dorman, Public Health
Intelligence Manager.

b) PROVISION OF HOME SUPPORT AND EXTRA CARE HOUSING 101-118

To consider the attached report of the Executive Leader / Director of Adult
Services.

c) NEIGHBOURHOOD MENTAL HEALTH TEAM: LEAD PROVIDER TENDER 119 - 124
OUTCOME AND RECOMMENDATION

To consider the attached report of the Interim Director of Commissioning.
9. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The Proper Officer is of the opinion that during the consideration of the items
set out below, the meeting is not likely to be open to the press and public and
therefore the reports are excluded in accordance with the provisions pursuant
to paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of the parties (including
the Council) has been provided to the Council in commercial confidence and
its release into the public domain could result in adverse implications for the
parties involved. Disclosure would be likely to prejudice the Council’s position
in regulations and this outweighs the public interest in disclosure.

a) NEIGHBOURHOOD MENTAL HEALTH TEAM: LEAD PROVIDER TENDER 125-138
OUTCOME AND RECOMMENDATION

To consider the Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 to the report at Iltem 8(c) which
are exempt from publication as they contain commercially sensitive information
relating to a third party.

b) GM RE-PROCUREMENT OF LEVEL 3 WEIGHT MANAGEMENT SERVICE 139 - 152
To consider the attached report of the Interim Director of Commissioning.

10. SKYLAKES EXTENSION 153 - 164
To consider the attached report of the Director of Children’s Services.

11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Strategic Commissioning Board will take
place on Wednesday 26 June 2019.

From: Democratic Services Unit — any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Linda Walker, Senior Democratic Services Officer, to whom any apologies for
absence should be notified.



Agenda Iltem 5

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD
27 March 2019

Commenced: 1.15 pm Terminated: 2.35 pm

Present: Dr Alan Dow (Chair) — NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG
Councillor Brenda Warrington — Tameside MBC
Councillor Bill Fairfoull — Tameside MBC
Councillor Warren Bray — Tameside MBC
Councillor Gerald Cooney — Tameside MBC
Councillor Leanne Feeley — Tameside MBC
Councillor Allison Gwynne — Tameside MBC
Councillor Oliver Ryan — Tameside MBC
Steven Pleasant — Tameside MBC Chief Executive and Accountable
Officer for NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG
Dr Ashwin Ramachandra — NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG
Dr Jamie Douglas — NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG
Dr Kate Hebden — NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG
Carol Prowse — NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG

In Attendance: Sandra Stewart — Director of Governance & Pensions
Kathy Roe — Director of Finance
Stephanie Butterworth — Director of Adult Services
Richard Hancock — Director of Children’s Services
Jessica Williams — Interim Director of Commissioning
Debbie Watson — Assistant Director of Population Health
Nigel Gilmore — Head of Strategic Infrastructure
Kristy Nuttall — Children, Young People and Families
Commissioning Manager

Apologies for Absence: Dr Vinny Khunger — NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG
Dr Christine Ahmed — NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG
Councillor Jean Wharmby — Derbyshire CC

102 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

RESOLVED

That on the grounds of urgency consideration be given to an addendum recommendation
relating to Item 6(a) on the agenda setting out a request to allocate funding from the Winter
Pressures Budget to the Integrated Care Foundation Trust in 2018/19 to support the
additional unplanned expenditure incurred. The reasoning for it not been available at the
date that the original agenda and report was published was because final figures were still
being clarified with the Integrated Care Foundation Trust, however, there was a need to
resolve by financial year end and hence could not go to next meeting.

103 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest submitted by Members of the Strategic Commissioning
Board.

104 MINUTES

The Minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 February 2019 were approved as a correct record.
105 INTEGRATED COMMISSION FUND CONSOLIDATED REVENUE POSITION M10

Page 1



Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance, which stated that as at 31 January
2019, the Integrated Commissioning Fund was forecasting to spend £583.270m against an
approved budget of £583.258m, an overspend of £0.012m. Further detail on the economy wide
position was included at Appendix 1 to the report. This forecast was an improved position from the
previous month but masked significant and increased pressures in a number of areas including
Children’s Services which was now forecasting expenditure to be £8m in excess of budget and
further detail was included at Appendix 2.

The Director of Finance explained that the improved position was due mainly to the release of
corporate contingency and improvements in the forecast position for Governance, Growth and
Operations and Neighbourhoods. Reference was made to further detailed analysis of budget
performance and progress against savings included in Appendix 2.

The Council’'s Collection Fund update for month 10 was detailed in Appendix 3. The forecast
position at month 10 was a £0.6m deficit of Council Tax and £1.0m deficit on Non-Domestic Rates.
This was better than the budgeted assumptions which assumed deficit positions of £1.8m and £5m
respectively. The level of provisions required for non-collections and appeals were also forecast to
be better than expected but would continue to be monitored. Appendix 4 detailed the Council’s
irrecoverable debts over £3,000 that had been written off in the period October to December 2018.

Members noted that the Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care Foundation Trust (ICFT) had
incurred additional expenditure during the 2018/19 winter period compared to their financial plan
that was in line with the related grant conditions. The ICFT had invested in the expansion of the
Integrated Assessment Unit (IAU) and increased the opening hours in Ambulatory Emergency Care.
This was to support admission avoidance and alleviate patient flow pressures together with the
achievement of the 4-hour performance target. In light of the shared officer roles in particular
accountable officer and s151 officer it was important that there was absolute transparency in
respect of any vires of budget or allocation of additional funding to the hospital to provide assurance
to both the CCG and Council external auditors.

RESOLVED

(i) That the significant level of savings required during 2018/19 to deliver a balanced
recurrent economy budget together with the related risks contributing to the overall
adverse forecast be acknowledged.

(i) That the significant cost pressures facing the Strategic Commission, particularly in
respect of Continuing Healthcare, Children’s Social Care and Growth.

(iii)  That the allocation of £0.200m to the Integrated Care Foundation Trust in 2018/19 via
the remaining balance of the Winter Pressures funding be approved to support the
additional unplanned expenditure incurred.

106 YOUNG PEOPLES EMOTIONAL WELLBEING SERVICE

Consideration was given to a report of the Executive Member (Children’s Services) and the Director
of Population Health seeking authorisation to conduct an open and competitive process, testing the
market to secure an appropriate supplier to deliver a Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and
Counselling Service in Tameside.

The current Young People’s Wellbeing and Counselling Service was an integral part to the delivery
of the THRIVE model and commissioning component to the Local Transformation Plan in Tameside
and Glossop. It currently supported young people between the ages of 10 to 25 in the ‘Getting
Advice’, ‘Getting Help’ and ‘Getting More Help’ quadrants and working closely with a number of
partners including Healthy Young Minds.

The outcomes of the Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and Counselling Service were well
documented within quarterly reports containing case studies and output data which were briefly

Page 2



highlighted in Appendix B to the report. Moreover, the outcomes aligned to the Voice of the Child
Strategy and the ‘I Statements’ created by local children and young people as part of the Local
Transformation Plan.

The original contract commenced on 1 October 2015 for a two year period with provision to extend
for up to an additional two year period and authorisation to extend had been sought via a waiver
decision ending on 30 September 2019. The current budget was £91,500 per annum and it was
envisaged the service should run for a further five years. However, the options appraisal outlined in
the report sought an additional £17,000 per annum to support and reduce demand locally as
described in the report, improving goal based outcomes by enabling a robust service fit to meet the
demand. The additional funding had been identified from the existing Population Health budget
from 2019/20.

The Strategic Commissioning Board was supportive of the continued delivery of a Young People’s
Emotional Wellbeing and Counselling Service in Tameside and the additional investment to support
increased demand. The Board noted the positive feedback and comments from young people who
had accessed the service.

RESOLVED

(i) That approval be given to retender the Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and
Counselling Service for 5 years at the end of the contract period due to expire on 30
September 2019.

(i) That Option E(b) outlined in section 4 of the report, including an increase to the
contract value to support the growing need and demand be approved.

107 CHILDREN'S EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND WELL-BEING LOCAL
TRANSFORMATION PLAN

Consideration was given to a report of the Interim Director of Commissioning explaining that the
Tameside and Glossop Local Transformation Plan finalised in October 2015 and assured at the end
of 2015/16 through NHS England. There was a requirement for the Local Transformation Plan to be
refreshed on an annual basis to reflect local progress and further ambitions.

The Strategic Commissioning Board considered the detailed refresh of the Local Transformation
Plan, seen by NHS England as the evidence that progress was being made, that funding was being
spent as intended and providing evidence on how services were being transformed.

The Interim Director of Commissioning reported that mental health disorders in childhood had high
levels of persistence and continuity through adolescence, and sometimes into adult life. The
consequences of untreated emotional wellbeing and mental health problems early in life could be
long lasting and far-reaching, thus effective early intervention was essential. In addition, the risk of
child mental health disorders was estimated up to six times higher in vulnerable groups of children
and child young people.

The aim of the continued work of the Local Transformation Plan was based upon the need to
improve and sustain access to children and young people’s mental health provision through a
whole-system approach that included the active participation of all partners and key stakeholders.
Tameside and Glossop continued to undertake a variety of engagement activities with Children and
Young People to inform the development of the Local Transformation plan and the original ‘I
Statements’ developed by children, young people and their families in 2016 remained at the core of
all commissioning and outcome monitoring.

She made reference to the 2017-2020 Finance Plan, the overall investment having gone through

the Strategic Commissioning governance process and the previously agreed programme of works
that would continue in 2019/20.

Page 3



The Board commented favourably on the update report and the investment in children and young
people’s mental health would ensure far greater children with a diagnosable mental health condition
would access support where and when they needed it and as close to home as possible.

RESOLVED

(i) That the Local Transformation Plan refresh and finance plans for deliverables for
2019-20 and 2020-21, be approved, recognising that within the year the plan would
need to be reviewed in line with strategic objective to integrate Children’s and Young
People’s services.

(i) That the alignment of the Local Transformation Plan with Greater Manchester
approaches where populations and needs required thus delivering efficiencies be
supported.

(iii)  That the national context and building national pressures and assurance measures to
increase spending on Children’s and Young People’s Mental Health Services and
ensure the publication of the Local Transformation Plan update be noted.

(iv) That the financial investment to support developments within the Local
Transformation Plan unallocated funding for 2020-21 in order to full meet local and
national agendas in delivering the Local Transformation Plan be supported as follows:

¢ Improving access and implementing the THRIVE model;

e Ensuring the Neurodevelopmental team was adequately resourced to meet the
needs of the local population, including pre-diagnostic and post-diagnostic
support.

108 CHILDREN'S ENURESIS SERVICES PROVISION IN GLOSSOPDALE

The Interim Director of Commissioning presented a report on a proposal to expand the Enuresis
service from the Tameside Enuresis Nurse to support children and young people aged 0-19 in
Glossop. The pathway would be the same as the current pathway in Tameside and patients would
need to travel to Dewsnap Lane Clinic to access the service.

Recurrent funding had been agreed with Derbyshire County Council from the Glossop Better Care
Fund allocation with effect from April 2019 to expand the current service to ensure it was equitable
to that delivered in Tameside.

RESOLVED

(i) That the expansion of the current Enuresis Service for the residents of Glossopdale
with immediate effect to ensure it was equitable to that delivered in Tameside be
noted.

(i) That Derbyshire County Council be recharged for the cost of this additional service.

109 STARTING POINT SERVICE - GLOSSOP CONTRIBUTION

Consideration was given to a report of the Interim Director of Commissioning explaining that
Derbyshire Starting Point was a multi-agency safeguarding hub launched in June 2015. Starting
Point acted as the first point of contact for Derbyshire Children’s Social Care for early help
assessments / requests for support, Police domestic abuse notifications, social care children in
need referrals and safeguarding protection concerns about children / young people.

Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group contributed to fund the Glossop proportion of
the Starting Point service helping to meet the statutory duty to ensure that in discharging their
functions, Clinical Commissioning Groups had regard to the need to safeguard and promote the
welfare of children under Section 11 of the Children Act 2004.

RESOLVED

Page 4



That recurrent funding equating to £7,500 per annum be approved to fund the Starting Point
service for children and young people living in Glossop.

110 HOUSING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY 2018-2023

Consideration was given to a report of the Executive Leader and Director of Growth which explained
that Tameside’s current Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy was approved in 2003. With
increased Government Disabled Facilities Grant funding and continued repayments from previous
housing improvement grants and loans, the report provided an updated Private Sector Housing
Renewal Policy to enable a more holistic approach to housing adaptation improvements.

In updating the current Policy it was intended to:

e Incorporate the changes in Government policy in respect of the Disabled Facilities Grant and
its increased flexibility;

o To reflect the continued increase in Government funding within the Regulatory Reform Order
policy;

o Approve the use of ongoing loan repayments to fund alternative initiatives within the updated
policy;

e Subject to available funding, increase the number of potential assistance initiatives; and

o Subject to available funding, include Energy Efficiency Measures / Boiler Replacement
Scheme within the updated policy.

Following a report to Strategic Commissioning Board on 28 November 2018 approval was given for
a public consultation exercise to be undertaken between 12 December 2018 and 25 January 2019
in order to seek wider support for the proposed Housing Financial Assistant Policy update. The
response to the consultation exercise was outlined in the report and a number of recommendations
had been included in the new Regulatory Reform Order Policy.

RESOLVED

That the Strategic Commissioning Board RECOMMEND to Cabinet the proposed
amendments to the Policy set out in the report in connection with the Disabled Facilities
Grant and other associated funding loans and grants, including a further three additional
grants following the consultation process undertaken between 12 December 2018 and 25
January 2019.

111 DEVELOPING PLACE-BASED PRIMARY CARE NETWORKS IN TAMESIDE AND
GLOSSOP

Consideration was given to a report of the Interim Director of Commissioning and Dr Kate Hebden
and Dr Vinny Khunger, CCG Governing Body GPs, setting out the way in which the Strategic
Commission would engage with general practice in the formation and implementation of Primary
Care Networks. This would include setting out the aspiration and rationale for the alignment of
Primary Care Networks to the established Neighbourhoods delivering Integrated Care in Tameside
and Glossop.

It was explained that on 10 January 2019, the NHS Long Term Plan had been published. This was
followed on the 31 January 2019 by ‘Investment and Evolution: A five year framework for GP
contract reform to implement the NHS Long Term Plan’ setting out a number of fundamental
changes to the GP contract from 1 April 2019 including the introduction of the Network Contract
Direct Enhanced Service creating Primary Care Networks. The Strategic Commission and Primary
Care Committee were required to approve Primary Care Network registration forms and coverage
and to confirm arrangements to NHS England by 31 May 2019.

Page 5



The footprint of established Neighbourhoods was the Strategic Commission’s ambition for Primary
Care Networks in Tameside and Glossop. This was due to the significant and extensive work to
build community health, social care, children’s integrated teams, social prescribing, community
safety partnerships amongst others, with General Practice at the heart. There had been many
successes to date by these Neighbourhoods and established collaboration across those footprints.

There would be engagement with General Practice in Tameside and Glossop to ensure an
understanding of views in terms of both the opportunities and potential challenges in developing
Primary Care Networks in this way.

The report also included proposals for engaging with General Practice in developing place-based
Primary Care Networks, through a series of Neighbourhood discussions. Reference was made to a
number of key questions designed to frame these discussions to understand how the Networks
could support the architecture of, and delivery by, each of the Neighbourhoods. The mapping of the
existing neighbourhoods was show at Appendix 1 and some of the delivery successes for each
were detailed in Appendix 2.

Members of the Strategic Commissioning Board welcomed the proposed Primary Care Networks
aiming to smooth the interface between primary and community care and made reference to the
achievements thus far on this journey and looked forward to using this new opportunity to improve
this further and reduce variation across practices.

RESOLVED

(i) That the principle and ambition for alignment of Primary Care Networks to the five
established Neighbourhoods across Tameside and Glossop be approved.

(i) That the engagement plan with General Practice in relation to the formation and
implementation of the Primary Care Networks be approved including illustration of the
work and successes to date and the embedded relationships across Neighbourhood
practices.

(iiil To note the oversight and approval of Primary Care Network registration
documentation by Primary Care Committee and Governing Body in line with the
national timetable.

112  ASSISTED CONCEPTION PROCUREMENT

The Interim Director of Commissioning presented a report explaining the collaboration of eight
Clinical Commissioning Groups across Greater Manchester was looking to procure assisted
conception services in order to offer an increased choice of providers to patients and comply with
procurement regulations.

NHS Tameside and Glossop was currently an associate to two contracts for assisted conception
having decided in 2013 to increase choice from one provider Manchester University Hospital Trust
(MFT) and include Care Fertility. The contract held by NHS Trafford CCG with Care Fertility was
due to end May 2019 and Trafford had identified the need to re-procure to avoid a legal challenge.

It was reported that Greater Manchester Directors of Commissioning considered a range of options
in February 2019 and recommended that NHS Trafford CCG lead procurement with a view to
agreeing three contracts alongside the MFT contract. However, MFT were required to agree to
work to the standard service specification and to agree separate tariffs, potentially for standard and
complex cases, outside of the tender process.

The purpose of the report was to identify whether Tameside and Glossop Strategic Commission
wished to be part of the Greater Manchester wide procurement and set out the options were
detailed as follows:

Option 1 — participate in the Trafford led procurement;

Page 6



Option 2 — Revert to MFT as a single provider when Care Fertility contract ended;
Option 3 — run own separate procurement.

The risks and benefits associated with each option was outlined and considered by the Board.

RESOLVED
That approval be given for the participation of Tameside and Glossop Clinical
Commissioning Group in the Trafford led procurement as described in Option 1.

113  CHAIR'S CLOSING REMARKS

The Chair advised that this would be his last meeting of the Strategic Commissioning Board and
that it had been a privilege to serve the communities in Tameside and Glossop as Clinical Chair.
His interest in commissioning had started 24 years ago and during that time he had seen 9 NHS
organisational forms and he outlined the challenges and achievements since he had taken over as
Chair of the Clinical Commissioning Group. Although there remained a few challenges, the
Strategic Commission was now well placed and had commenced its ambition of investing in public
health, proactive and preventive care and primary care. He would continue to be interested and
supportive of the organisation’s work.

The Executive Leader and Chief Executive responded by outlining the significant contribution that
Dr Dow had made to the Clinical Commissioning Group and the Strategic Commissioning Board
during his tenure, working tirelessly to improve clinical excellence, and his part in ensuring the
Strategic Commission was on a firm financial footing. In Greater Manchester Dr Dow had led and
chaired the PC Clinical Standards and PC Strategy which had both been clinically well received.

Members of the Strategic Commissioning Board thanked Dr Dow for his service and wished him all
the very best for the future.

114 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Strategic Commissioning Board will take place on Wednesday
24 April 2019.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6a

Report to: STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD

Date: 24 April 2019

Officer of Strategic Kathy Roe — Director Of Finance — Tameside & Glossop CCG
Commissioning Board and Tameside MBC

Subject: TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP STRATEGIC COMMISSION -

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING FUND 2019/20

Report Summary: This report provides a summary of the 2019/20 budget allocations
of the Tameside and Glossop Integrated Commissioning Fund.
The report provides a summary of the key assumptions that
underpin the budget, and commentary on any significant areas of
risk. Targeted Efficiency Programme (TEP) savings for the
2019/20 financial year are also summarised, together with
proposals for the risk share. The 2019/20 budgets and delivery of
the TEP will be closely monitored and reported in the monthly ICF
consolidated revenue monitoring reports.

Recommendations: Strategic Commissioning Board Members are recommended to:

1. To note the 2019/20 budget allocations for the Integrated
Commissioning Fund.

2. To note the proposals for the rolling two year risk share.

3. To note the five year forecasts and projected funding gap for
the Strategic Commission.

4. To note that Tameside Council will continue to be the host
organisation for the Section 75 pooled fund agreement.

5. To note the proposed construct of the Commissioning
Improvement Scheme for 2019/20 and 2020/21

Financial Implications: This report provides details of the agreed budget allocations for
: the 2019/20 financial year. These budgets have been formally

Auth d h t

(Settti:::; g)flf;c:rs;acl:;z;y approved by the Tameside MBC Full Council on 26 February

2019 and the Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning

Fi ffi
inance Officer) Group Governing Body on 20 March 2019.

The report emphasises that there is a clear urgency to implement
associated strategies to ensure the required TEP savings for
2019/20 are delivered and the projected funding gap in future
years is addressed and closed on a recurrent basis across the
whole economy. The report also sets out the key assumptions
and identified risk areas which may have an impact on the
delivery of budgets and savings in 2019/20 and future years.

It should be noted that the Integrated Commissioning Fund (ICF)
for the Strategic Commission is bound by the terms within the
Section 75 and associated Financial Framework agreements.

Legal Implications: There is a statutory duty to ensure the Council sets a
(Authorised by the Borough balanced budget and that it is monitored to ensure statutory

commitments are met. There are a number of areas that
require a clear strategy to ensure in the face of demand they
achieve this. It is not possible in Local Authority budgets to be
overspent in law.

Solicitor)

Given the implications for each of the constituent organisations
this report will be required to be presented to the decision making
body of each one to ensure good governance.

Page 9



How do proposals align with
Health & Wellbeing Strategy?

How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

How do proposals align with
the Commissioning
Strategy?

Recommendations / views of
the Health and Care Advisory
Group:

Public and Patient
Implications:

Quality Implications:

How do the proposals help
to reduce health
inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications?
Has a privacy impact
assessment been
conducted?

Risk Management:

Access to Information :

It is necessary that any cost sharing arrangements and
implications of the same are agreed in advance with external
auditors.

It should be noted that brackets around numbers and being ‘in
red’ ink means overspend in this report in addition to minus signs.

The Integrated Commissioning Fund supports the delivery of the
Tameside and Glossop Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The Integrated Commissioning Fund supports the delivery of the
Tameside and Glossop Locality Plan

The Integrated Commissioning Fund supports the delivery of the
Tameside and Glossop Strategic Commissioning Strategy

A summary of this report is presented to the Health and Care
Advisory Group for reference.

Service reconfiguration and transformation has the patient at the
forefront of any service re-design. The overarching objective of
Care Together is to improve outcomes for all of our citizens whilst
creating a high quality, clinically safe and financially sustainable
health and social care system. The comments and views of our
public and patients are incorporated into all services provided.

As above.

The reconfiguration and reform of services within Health and
Social Care of the Tameside and Glossop economy will be
delivered within the available resource allocations. Improved
outcomes for the public and patients should reduce health
inequalities across the economy.

Equality and Diversity considerations are included in the re-
design and transformation of all services

Safeguarding considerations are included in the re-design and
transformation of all services

There are no information governance implications within this
report and therefore a privacy impact assessment has not been
carried out.

Associated details are specified within the presentation

Background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting :

Tom Wilkinson, Assistant Director of Finance, Tameside
Metropolitan Borough Council

B Telephone:0161 342 5609

24 e-mail: tom.wilkinson@tameside.gov.uk

Page 10


mailto:tom.wilkinson@tameside.gov.uk

Tracey Simpson, Deputy Chief Finance Officer, Tameside and
Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group

& Telephone:0161 342 5626

"3 e-mail: tracey.simpson@nhs.net

Page 11


mailto:tracey.simpson@nhs.net

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

BACKGROUND

The Integrated Commissioning Fund, subject to the restrictions of current legislation, aims to
include the total annual CCG resource allocation and Council budgets so far as legally
possible. The creation of a single fund has resulted in a number of benefits including:

Streamlined governance and decision making.

Strengthening of cohesive Strategic Commission budget leadership.

Single Strategic Commission budget resource reporting.

Single accountable body for the ICF — the Council is currently the lead accountable

organisation for the ICF.

o Rationalisation of any existing joint funding arrangements between the Council and
CCG.

o Provision of support to strategic place based service provision priorities.

o Alignment to the Strategic Leadership structure.

o All health and Council service resource decisions are intrinsically linked to the

corporate strategic priorities.

Since the beginning of 2018/19 the Integrated Commissioning Fund reporting arrangements
have been supported by a single economy wide monthly monitoring report. This single
consolidated report will continue in 2019/20.

The functions of NHS bodies and Local Authorities are covered by a wide range of legislation
and work will continue to be undertaken to explore any potential issues including the impact
on decision making and governance, grant funding and VAT issues, reporting requirements
and risk share arrangements.

2018/19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In February and March 2018, budgets were agreed for Tameside and Glossop Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) and Tameside Council in accordance with each statutory
organisation’s formal governance process. These budgets were set in the context of
continued funding cuts in local government, and significant growing demographic and
demand pressures across the economy.

Children’s Social Care and Continuing Health Care were identified as particularly significant
pressures and budgets included significant Targeted Efficiency Programme (TEP) savings
targets which need to be delivered to achieve a balanced position by 31 March 2019.

As at the end of February 2019, the CCG are forecasting to deliver a balanced budget, with a
small underspend of £24k on Council Budgets. This net position masks a number of
significant variances, including a forecast overspend of £7.8million on Children’s Services.
Further detail is summarised in Appendix 2.

2019/20 INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING FUND BUDGET
Due to the statutory timelines and reporting requirements for the Council and CCG, detailed
budget setting reports have been considered by Full Council on 26 February 2019 and the

CCG Governing Body on 20 March 2019. The budgets approved at each of these meetings
are consolidated below.

Page 12



Table 1: 2019/20 Integrated Commissioning Fund Budget

Expenditure Income
Budget area Budget Budget Net Budget

Acute 214,429 0 214,429
Mental Health 35,966 0 35,966
Primary Care 85,193 0 85,193
Continuing Care 16,911 0 16,911
Community 32,846 0 32,846
Other CCG 29,810 0 29,810
CCG Running Costs 4,164 0 4,164
Adults 83,680 (46,112) 37,568
Children's Services - Social Care 53,830 (4,869) 48,961
Children's Services - Education 23,768 (17,720) 6,048
Individual Schools Budgets 115,024 (115,024) 0
Population Health 16,176 (81) 16,095
Operations and Neighbourhoods 77,081 (26,301) 50,780
Growth 43,808 (34,984) 8,824
Governance 89,024 (79,881) 9,143
Finance & IT 6,251 (1,432) 4,819
Quality and Safeguarding 418 (290) 128
Capital and Financing 10,763 (6,647) 4,116
Corporate Budgets 13,178 (2,857) 10,321
mm
CCG Expenditure 419,320 419,320
TMBC Expenditure 533,000 (336,198) 196,802
Integrated Commissioning Fund | 952,320 | (336,198) | 616,122
A: Section 75 Services 363,158 (46,093) 317,065
B: Aligned Services 323,137 (93,533) 229,604
C: In Collaboration Services 266,025 (196,572) 69,453

Integrated Commissioning Fund | 952320 | (336,198)| 616,122

3.2 Further analysis of the 2019/20 Integrated Commissioning Fund Budget is set out in
Appendix 1. This consolidated Integrated Commissioning Fund Budget will be the starting
point for the consolidated revenue monitoring report during 2019/20.

4 TARGETED EFFICIENCY PROGRAMME (TEP) 2019/20

4.1 The 2019/20 budget process has resulted in a significant TEP target that must be delivered
across the economy.

Page 13



Table 2: 2019/20 Targeted Efficiency Programme

2019/20 Strategic
Commission TEP
Opening Position
(£000's)

High Medium | Low Total Expected
Risk Risk Risk Saving

Star Chamber

GP Prescribing 750
Individualised 500
Commissioning

Other Established 4,679
Schemes

Technical Financial 2,799
Adjustments

CCG Sub-total 8,966
Adults 530
Children's - Social Care 0
Children's - Education 183
Finance & IT 37
Governance 18
Operations and 55
Neighbourhoods

Growth 20
Population Health 38
Corporate Costs 549
Vacancy Factor 1,501
Fees and Charges 0
Capital and Financing 1,506
TMBC Sub-Total

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

The TEP target for 2019/20 is comparable with 2018/19, although significant challenges
were faced in the delivery of schemes. Further work is required to move identified schemes
to ‘green’ or identify alternative savings that are deliverable in 2019/20.

Delivery of savings will be closely monitored throughout the year, with progress reported in
the monthly consolidated revenue monitoring report for the ICF.

RISKS AND PRESSURES

The assumptions, risks and pressures for 2019/20 and beyond have been documented in
detail in the respective budget reports to Council and Governing Body as referenced above.
Delivery of the 2019/20 budget is dependent on the delivery of TEP savings as set out in
section 4 above, with further potential pressures identified in the following areas.

Children’s Social Care: The financial pressures in this area are the single greatest risk
facing currently facing the Council, and are driven primarily by the cost of placements for
Looked After Children. The implementation and development of the Looked After Children
Reduction Strategy is a key priority for the service which should improve outcomes for
Children whilst also reducing financial pressures. The medium term financial plan assumes
that spending reductions can be achieved in Children’s Services in the medium term.
Delivery within budget is essential to ensure the financial sustainability of the ICF.

Page 14



5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Childrens Services

£55m

£50m -

£45m

£40m - I Reserves
s Core Budget

£35m Actual/Forecast Outturn
=48 = Required Position

£30m L £2901

£25m I
£20m -

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Continuing Healthcare (CHC): this remains an area of high risk for the Strategic
Commission. Continued progress to manage demand of CHC packages through joint
working with the ICFT remains a key area of focus.

Mental Health: Delivery of Mental Health Strategy and compliance with Mental Health
Investment Standard and Five Year Forward View.

Managing Demand: Management of demand in the Acute sector and the movement of care
to community based settings in line with the principals of Care Together remains a challenge.
However, the transformation schemes are contributing to mitigating this risk.

Primary Care: Pro-active engagement of primary care in driving forward the development of
Networks, Neighbourhoods and the Care Together Vision is critical.

Education: We are experiencing some growing pressures in Local Authority funded areas
including Home to School Transport and Pupil Support Services. National trends in SEN
provision indicate that these pressures may well increase in future years, resulting in further
financial pressures.

Adults Services: The ICF continues to face significant demographic and other cost
pressures which present a significant challenge for future years. The five year forecast plan
includes costs pressures in excess of £18m for Adults Services and any notable variation in
demographic forecasts and contractual assumptions could have significant financial
implications.

Fair Funding and Business Rates Reset: Government have committed to a ‘fair funding’
review for Local Government resourcing for 2020 and beyond, which includes review of
business rates, however timescales for the outcome of that review remain unclear. The
treasury figures indicate that Local Government can at best expect a funding freeze, with
inflation and demand pressures having to be met from efficiencies or further cuts in services.
The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government have stated that indicative
figures will be available by ‘mid-2019° however the quantum of funding available is yet to be
determined by the Treasury. In the context of such a significant level of uncertainty over
future funding levels, prudent assumptions have been made about further reductions to

Page 15



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

funding allocations in 2020/21 and future years. This lack of certainty makes planning
beyond 2019/20 extremely difficult.

RISK SHARE 2019/20

In March 2017, the CCG Governing Body and Council Executive Cabinet, agreed a two year
risk share arrangement for the period 2017/18 and 2018/19, with any amounts being
repayable over the following two years 2019/20 and 2020/21. This effectively meant the risk
share arrangement was locked into a four year period regardless of whether the risk share
arrangement had been fully utilised.

Under the risk share arrangements, each organisation shares financial risk in proportion to
the respective net budget contributions they make into the Integrated Commissioning Fund
(ICF), excluding any CCG expenditure associated with the residents of Glossop as the
Council has no legal powers to contribute to such expenditure.

The risk share arrangement is in two parts. Part A comprised an additional contribution of up
to £5 million per annum in 2017-18 and 2018-19 from the Council to the ICF which would
create an obligation on the CCG to increase its contribution to the ICF in 2019-20 and 2020-
21 to the same values respectively.

Part B of the risk share was applied after Part A and was based on the proportion of each
Party’s contribution to the ICF up to a capped threshold:

- a cap of £2.0 million is placed on CCG related risks that the Council will contribute
- a cap of £0.5 million is placed on Council related risks that the CCG will contribute

In 2017-18 the proportion of contribution to the ICF was based on an 80:20 split. However,
for 2018-19 the proportion of contribution was revisited to reflect the net budget values of the
ICF which was 68% for Tameside and Glossop CCG and 32% for the Council. For clarity,
the risk sharing arrangement applies to the Section 75 pooled fund, the aligned fund and the
in collaboration budget of the ICF, i.e. the whole ICF.

In 2017-18, under Part A of the agreement the Council increased its contribution to the ICF
by £4.2m and under Part B the CCG made a contribution to the ICF of £0.5m in line with the
capped threshold. In 2018-19 there were no transactions required under Part A or Part B of
the risk share and the liability from Part A in 2017-18 will be discharged in early 2019-20 by
the CCG to the ICF.

The original risk share arrangement effectively spanning four years from 2017-18 (as
explained in paragraph 6.1) has effectively been completed early in 2019-20 and it is
proposed that arrangements are reviewed to offer greater operational flexibility and take
advantage of emerging opportunities. It is therefore proposed that the risk share is amended
to be on a two year rolling basis.

For 2019/20, the gross and net contributions to the ICF are as per table 3. It is proposed to

continue with the risk share contributions on the basis of net budget allocations i.e. 68% for
Tameside and Glossop CCG and 32% for the Council (as per paragraph 6.5 and table 3).

Page 16



Table 3: 2019/20 Integrated Commissioning Fund Contributions

2019/20 Budget

Expenditure
Budget area Budget - Income Budget | Net Budget -

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

7.1

7.2

419,320  44% 419,320  68%
TMBC 533,000 56% (336, 198 196,802 32%

Integrated

In the context of the savings requirements facing each organisation, and the significant cost
pressures and risk in areas such as Children’s Social Care and Continuing Healthcare, it is
proposed that the risk share arrangement and the cap continues on the same basis for net
budget contributions in 2019-20 (with the continued exclusion of any CCG expenditure
associated with the residents of Glossop as the Council has no legal powers to contribute to
such expenditure).

For 2019/20 this means the cap continues to be:

- a cap of £2.0 million is placed on CCG related risks that the Council will contribute
- a cap of £0.5 million is placed on Council related risks that the CCG will contribute

The proposed two year rolling risk share will continue to apply to the whole ICF. It is
proposed that the Council continues to agree to increase the value of Council resources
within the ICF by a maximum sum of up to £ 5.0 million in 2019/20 and 2020/2021 on the
condition that the Tameside and Glossop CCG agrees a reciprocal arrangement in 2021/22
and 2022/23 should this be necessary. The Council’s cap of £2.0 million (Part B — as per
paragraph 6.10) is over and above the non-recurrent contribution to the ICF of up to £ 5.0
million (Part A) in 2019/20 and 2020/21 on the condition that the Tameside and Glossop
CCG agrees a reciprocal arrangement in 2021/22 and 2022/23 should this be necessary.

The proposed risk share arrangement will continue on a two year rolling period and will be
reviewed and revisited as appropriate.

FIVE YEAR PROJECTIONS

Whilst the budget proposals for 2019/20 present a balanced position (after Council tax
increases and delivery of the required TEP) the projected gap for 2020/21 and beyond is
significant. This is due in part to the expected funding reductions and significant uncertainty
around the allocation of Local Government Funding after 2019, but is also driven by forecast
demographic and other cost pressures, particularly in Adults and Children’s, Continuing
Healthcare, the Acute Sector, Mental Health Services and Primary and Community services.
The scale of this budget gap in future years requires immediate action to ensure
transformational changes can be achieved.

The Council Budget report approved in February 2019 assumed that expenditure on
Children's Social Care Services will reduce by £9m over the two year 2020/21 and 2021/22.
Plans are not yet developed to deliver this reduction in expenditure. If this reduction is not
achieved, then the forecast gap increases by £9m.

Page 17



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Combined Gap

2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24
£000s | £000s | £000s | £000s | £000s
Gap reported in February 2019
(Assuming £9m reduction in Children's 2,996 | 19,473 | 26,449 30,637 | 36,054
Social Care)
Updated Gap
(without a reduction in Children's 2,996 | 23,773 | 35749 39,937 45354
Expenditure)

Opportunities for future savings
In addition to the TEP schemes already included in section 4 above, the following areas have
been identified as opportunities for future savings to help address the gap in future years.

System Wide Review of Aging Well — The Star Chamber has identified this as one of the
key projects for transformation going forward. Discussion about the establishment of an
'Aging Well Commissioning Board' and how we improve offer to keep people at home. The
PbR cost for emergency admissions for people aged over 80 is more than £16m per year. A
10% reduction in admissions would theoretically save £1.6m (less any cost of alternative
provision). However, majority of admissions are at the ICFT, so the ability to realise any
savings in the strategic commissioner is dependent upon our ability to re-negotiate the block
contract (which may result in stranded costs which are factored into indicative savings
profile).

Paediatric Admissions Review: The cost of paediatric admissions is around £5m per
annum. We assume zero cost of providing alternative services and a 10% reduction in
admissions, savings of £500k would be made. However note that 80% of paediatric
admissions are at the ICFT, therefore realisation of savings for the commissioner would be
dependent upon our ability to re-negotiate the block contract. Given that high level
quantification of savings are now in place, risk is judged to be red. But work is already
underway to pull data on gastro and respiratory admissions. Star Chamber discussed the
potential for neighbourhood after school clinics which will be investigated as part of this
project.

Effective Use of Resources: Several overlapping schemes looking at enforcement and
expansion of current EUR policies have been merged together into a single scheme. More
work required to look at benchmarking data to establish how the situation has improved (or
not) over the last 12 months.

Palliative and end of life care pathways: Increasing the proportion of people dying in usual
place of residence up to the GM average. More work required on this and some of the QIPP
4 consultancy days will be used to further scope this project. Realisation of savings may be
dependent upon ability to renegotiate ICFT block.

Older People Mental Health: Redesign MH services for older people with a specific focus
on support with people with serious mental illness and dementia. Service redesign to
incorporate both Pennine Care Day Hospital and Age UK step down service. Assume
savings from 19/20 onwards once contracts have been renegotiated. A 3 month focus group
has convened to further develop this project and will report back in due course

Integrated Neighbourhood Hubs Strategy: Newly established schemes at Star Chamber
10/10/18. Strategy around future of neighbourhoods will incorporate direct estates savings,
but also wider efficiencies (e.g. only need single receptionist, savings on day to day
maintenance on old buildings etc). The neighbourhood model of working will also enable

Page 18




7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

savings in acute sector through better care closer to home. More work required to agreed
savings target, but expect to be measured in millions

Cross charging of services: Cannot implement unilaterally in Tameside and Glossop alone,
rather the policy needs to be agreed at GM level before we can benefit. Three separate
initiatives contained within this scheme.

Community contracts: CCG pays £252k p.a. to providers across Greater Manchester for
cross boundary community services. Do not get £252k worth of value for this, therefore
potential to make savings by only paying for what we use. However, other commissioners
make comparable payment to the ICFT. If GM position on historic community blocks
changes the ICFT would lose income, meaning zero net savings across economy.

Walk in Centres (WIC): Approx. 650 non Tameside and Glossop patients attend WIC every
month. ICFT now have data to enable recharge, but invoices currently being disputed by
Manchester CCG. Need to establish how benefit shared between provider and
commissioner, but savings presented assume £30 benefit per patient for CCG (from total
recharge of £66).

Looked After Children: Historic GM agreement in place that we will not recharge for Looked
After Children (LAC) health assessments in GM (£250 per child). Tameside and Glossop net
importer of LAC, therefore benefit of £25k p.a. if we start to recharge. Group established at
GM level to address this issue. Action to follow up with GM Health and Social Care
Partnership to try and expedite this. Proposal that we calculate net impact at start of the year
and transact on that basis so as not to create an industry of individual invoices flowing
through system.

STAR procurement - In September 2018, the Council formally joined the STAR
procurement shared service, a partnership arrangement between Stockport, Trafford and
Rochdale. This will provide the Council with much needed capacity and expertise in an area
that previously had limited resources. Limited procurement savings have been assumed in
2019/20 and it is anticipated that significant savings can be achieved in future years as we
accelerate the review of contracts and areas of high spend.

Strategic Asset Management Plan and Estates Strategy -. Development of an effective
Strategic Asset Management Plan and associated estates strategy, which supports the
delivery of £2.4bn investment, delivers One Public Estate, generates income, realises
recyclable capital receipts and provides a strategic approach to our capital programme and
major projects, realising opportunities for integrated health hubs, new housing and local jobs
for local people. An economy wide strategy and plan for the utilisation of the estate is
expected to identify efficiencies in how we use our assets, which should result in financial
savings for the economy.

Economic Strategy - Implementation of a Vibrant Economy Strategy to support new and
indigenous businesses, creation of new jobs, a skilled workforce and increase in
apprenticeships.

Housing Strategy - Develop and implement a new Housing Strategy and Delivery Plan and
framework of delivery partners, to support the development of new homes and to raise
standards in the private rented sector.

Service Planning and Service Improvement - A further drive on service planning and
service improvement is planned for 2019, to identify further efficiencies and different models
for service delivery. The Council will continue to seek opportunities to work with our partners
across the economy and deliver services in different, more efficient and effective ways.

Page 19



7.19

7.20

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Workforce Development and Agile working - As our models of service delivery change,
the opportunities for new and different ways of working increase. The economy wide estates
strategy and new service delivery models are expected to offer new ways of working which
may also offer financial savings.

Digital Strategy - Technology is an integral part of modern day life, and IT developments will
contribute to new ways of working and new service delivery models.

COMMISSIONING IMPROVEMENT SCHEME

A Commissioning Improvement Scheme (CIS) has been in place within the CCG, in various
forms, since 2013/14. This has been with the aim of supporting member practices in the
commissioning agenda of the CCG and securing best use of commissioning resources for
our population. The current CIS model consists of two elements:

e Invest to Save;
¢ Financial Management - Neighbourhood CIS.

A number of options regarding the future of CIS were discussed by Finance and QIPP
Assurance Group (FQAG) in February and March 2019. The recommendation of FQAG was
to maintain the approach in place for 2018/19 and carry forward both elements of the
scheme as a 2 year offer covering the period 1 April 2019 — 31 March 2021.

Invest to Save

The evaluation report brought to Finance and QIPP Assurance Group in January described
the early learning from this £125k investment in neighbourhoods, highlighting also the
relationship building and increased engagement within neighbourhoods, sharing of best
practice and introduction of new and innovative ways of working this scheme has brought.
This testing and learning cycle can inform future development of the Locally Commissioned
Services Framework.

This is agreed at £125k per neighbourhood, therefore a total commitment of £625k. In terms
of 2019-20 this is allocated as an equal split across Neighbourhoods, however in year 2
agreement on allocation of the total £625k will be devolved to Primary Care Networks.

The approach adopted in 2018/19 of proposal requests, developed by neighbourhoods but
brought to Integrated Neighbourhood meeting for support before sign off by Finance & QIPP
Assurance Group, will be continued. A clear marking of ‘how success will be measured’ will
be required, recognising this will be patient experience and qualitative markers as well as
any indications of activity changes.

Financial Management

There has been a financial management element of a CIS for many years, pre-dating the
CCG. This approach comes with challenges, particularly around the setting of a ‘fair share’
practice or neighbourhood budget however has been successful to support best use of
commissioning resources for our population.

When at practice level, this created one set of challenges around perceived equity of budget
and ‘achievability’ by practices. More recently this has moved to be on a neighbourhood
basis, which alleviates the impact of high cost patients and or issues with budget setting for a
smaller population, however can create challenge in terms of whole neighbourhood
engagement.

On consideration Finance and QIPP Assurance Group recommended the continuation of this
strand of the CIS in 2019/20 in line with 2018/19, neighbourhood achievement capped at
£100k. However this resource could be increased following the inclusion of a stretch target

Page 20



bringing this to £150k cap per Neighbourhood. This is subject to the additional resource
being available via underspends/efficiencies achieved across all Neighbourhoods.

8.9 Finance and QIPP Assurance Group (FQAG) recommended 2019/20 funding for CIS as

follows:
Invest to Save Scheme £625k
Financial Management £500k
TOTAL 19/20 CIS £1,125k

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 As set out on the report cover.

Page 21



APPENDIX 1

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING FUND TOTAL SPLIT 2019/20

2019/2020
Total ICF split TOTAL
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000
A: Section 75 Services 363,158 (46,093) 317,065
B: Aligned Services 323,137 (93,533) 229,604
C: In Collaboration Services 266,025 (196,572) 69,453
Total 952,320 (336,198) 616,122

2019/2020
. TOTAL
Service
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000
Acute 214,429 0 214,429
Mental Health 35,966 0 35,966
Primary Care 85,193 0 85,193
Continuing Care 16,911 0 16,911
Community 32,846 0 32,846
Other CCG 29,810 0 29,810
CCG Running Costs 4,164 0 4,164
Adults 83,680 (46,112) 37,568
Children's Services - Social Care 53,830 (4,869) 48,961
Children's Services - Education 23,768 (17,720) 6,048
Individual Schools Budgets 115,024 (115,024) 0
Population Health 16,176 (81) 16,095
Operations and Neighbourhoods 77,081 (26,301) 50,780
Growth 43,808 (34,984) 8,824
Governance 89,024 (79,881) 9,143
Finance & IT 6,251 (1,432) 4,819
Quality and Safeguarding 418 (290) 128
Capital and Financing 10,763 (6,647) 4116
Corporate Budgets 13,178 (2,857) 10,321
Grand Total 952,320 (336,198) 616,122

Page 22




These budgets relate to services that sit within the pooling arrangement under Section 75 of

the NHS act 2006.

Section 75 Budgets

2019/2020
Service Section 75
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000
Acute 100,653 0 100,653
Mental Health 35,966 0 35,966
Primary Care 50,512 0 50,512
Continuing Care 16,911 0 16,911
Community 32,846 0 32,846
Other CCG 23,472 0 23,472
CCG Running Costs 4,164 0 4,164
Adults 82,458 (46,012) 36,446
Children's Services - Social Care 0 0 0
Children's Services - Education 0 0 0
Individual Schools Budgets 0 0 0
Population Health 16,176 (81) 16,095
Operations and Neighbourhoods 0 0 0
Growth 0 0 0
Governance 0 0 0
Finance & IT 0 0 0
Quality and Safeguarding 0 0 0
Capital and Financing 0 0 0
Corporate Budgets 0 0 0
Grand Total 363,158 (46,093) 317,065

Page 23




Aligned Budgets

These budgets relate to services that the Regulations specify shall not be pooled under
Section 75, but which will be managed alongside the Pooled Fund.

Service 2019/2020
Aligned
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000
Acute 113,776 0 113,776
Mental Health 0 0 0
Primary Care 310 0 310
Continuing Care 0 0 0
Community 0 0 0
Other CCG 6,338 0 6,338
CCG Running Costs 0 0 0
Adults 1,222 (100) 1,122
Children's Services - Social Care 53,830 (4,869) 48,961
Children's Services - Education 23,768 (17,720) 6,048
Individual Schools Budgets 0 0 0
Population Health 0 0 0
Operations and Neighbourhoods 46,016 (26,301) 19,715
Growth 43,732 (34,984) 8,748
Governance 14,299 (4,980) 9,319
Finance & IT 6,251 (1,432) 4,819
Quality and Safeguarding 418 (290) 128
Capital and Financing 0 0 0
Corporate Budgets 13,177 (2,857) 10,320
Grand Total 323,137 (93,533) 229,604

Page 24



In-Collaboration Budgets

These budgets relate to services that the Regulations specify shall not be pooled under
Section 75, and where the CCG and Council have limited direct influence over the utilisation
of these funds, or where expenditure is not directly related to service delivery. Budgets
include delegated co-commissioning in Primary Care, Dedicated Schools Grant, levies
payable to the GMCA, Housing Benefits Grant and related expenditure, and Capital

Financing costs.

2019/2020
Service In Collaboration
Gros_s Gross Income Net_
Expenditure Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000
Acute 0 0 0
Mental Health 0 0 0
Primary Care 34,371 0 34,371
Continuing Care 0 0 0
Community 0 0 0
Other CCG 0 0 0
CCG Running Costs 0 0 0
Adults 0 0 0
Children's Services - Social Care 0 0 0
Children's Services - Education 0 0 0
Individual Schools Budgets 115,024 (115,024) 0
Population Health 0 0 0
Operations and Neighbourhoods 31,066 0 31,066
Growth 76 0 76
Governance 74,725 (74,900) (175)
Finance & IT 0 0 0
Quality and Safeguarding 0 0 0
Capital and Financing 10,763 (6,647) 4,116
Corporate Budgets 0 0 0
Grand Total 266,025 (196,571) 69,454

Page 25




APPENDIX 2

2018/19 Forecast at 28 February 2019

Forecast Position

Forecast Position

Expenditure | Income Net Budaet Net Net
Budget Budget 9 Forecast | Variance

£000's
Acute 202,683 0 202,683 203,597 (914)
Mental Health 32,832 0 32,832 33,468 (636)
Primary Care 82,701 0 82,701 82,211 489
Continuing Care 14,106 0 14,106 16,010 (1,904)
Community 29,966 0 29,966 30,104 (138)
Other CCG 30,615 0 30,615 27,514 3,101
CCG TEP Shortfall (QIPP) 0 0 0 0 0
CCG Running Costs 5,209 0 5,209 5,209 0
Adults 82,653 (42,172) 40,480 40,256 224
Children's Services 46,819 (3,051) 43,768 51,580 (7,812)
Education 30,936 (25,374) 5,562 5,570 (8)
Individual Schools Budgets 115,200 (115,200) 0 0 0
Population Health 16,912 (680) 16,232 15,971 261
Operations and Neighbourhoods 76,782 (26,448) 50,333 50,746 (412)
Growth 42,765 (34,920) 7,846 9,867 (2,021)
Governance 88,704 (79,887) 8,818 7,138 1,680
Finance & IT 6,103 (1,550) 4,553 4,188 365
Quality and Safeguarding 367 (288) 79 71 8
Capital and Financing 10,998 (1,360) 9,638 7,852 1,786
Contingency 4,163 (6,823) (2,660) (6,246) 3,586
Corporate Costs 8,721 (6,857) 1,865 (503) 2,368

Integrated Commissioning Fund | 929,235 (344,609) 584,626 584,602 24

Page 26



Agenda Item 6b

Report To: STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD
Date: 24 April 2019
Executive Member / CliIr Fairfoull — Deputy Executive Leader

Reporting Officer: Kathy Roe — Director of Finance

Tom Wilkinson — Assistant Director of Finance

Subject: STRATEGIC COMMISSION AND NHS TAMESIDE AND
GLOSSOP INTEGRATED CARE FOUNDATION TRUST -
CONSOLIDATED 2018/19 REVENUE MONITORING
STATEMENT AT 28 FEBRUARY 2019 AND FORECAST TO
31 MARCH 2019

Report Summary: As at 28 February 2019 the Integrated Commissioning Fund
is forecasting net spend £584.602m against an approved net
budget of £584.626m, with a small underspend of £24k. This
forecast is a slightly improved position from the previous
month but masks significant pressures in a number of areas,
including Children’s Services which continues to forecast
expenditure to be almost £8m in excess of budget.
Further detail is set out in Appendix 1.

Recommendations: Strategic Commissioning Board Members are recommended
to:

(a) Acknowledge the significant level of savings required
during 2018/19 to deliver a balanced recurrent economy
budget together with the related risks which are
contributing to the overall adverse forecast.

(b) Acknowledge the significant cost pressures facing the
Strategic Commission, particularly in respect of
Continuing Healthcare, Children’s Social Care and
Operations & Neighbourhoods, and Growth.

(c) Recommend to Cabinet to approve the variation of an
admission agreement with the Greater Manchester
Pension Fund, for which the Council is the guarantor for
Active Tameside, who are to close access to the GMPF
LGPS scheme for new employees in order to reduce
costs over the longer term as explained in section 4.

(d) Approve the payment of the remaining balance of the
2019/20 annual management fee (75%) payable to Active
Tameside by 30 April 2019 as explained in section 4 of
the report. The value is £1,052,250 (excluding VAT).

(e) Approve the payment of the total annual management fee
value payable to Active Tameside in subsequent financial
years as an advance payment on 1 April for 2020/21 and
2021/22. This arrangement will be reviewed alongside
the new business case that will cover the period 2022/23
to 2023/24.

Financial Implications: This report provides the 2018/19 consolidated financial
(Authorised by the Section position statement at 28 February 2019 for the Strategic
151 Officer & Chief Finance = Commission and ICFT partner organisations. For the year to
Officer) 31 March 2019 the report forecasts that service expenditure
will exceed the approved budget in a number of areas, due to
a combination of cost pressures and non-delivery of savings.

Page 27



Legal Implications:
(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

How do proposals align with
Health and Wellbeing
Strategy?

How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

How do proposals align with
the Commissioning
Strategy?

Recommendations / views
of the Health and Care
Advisory Group:

Public and Patient
Implications:

These pressures are being partially offset by additional
income in corporate and contingency which may not be
available in future years.

The report emphasises that there is a clear urgency to
implement associated strategies to ensure the projected
funding gap in the current financial year is addressed and
closed on a recurrent basis across the whole economy. The
Medium Term Financial Plan for the period 2019/20 to
2023/24 identifies significant savings requirements for future
years. If budget pressures in service areas in 2018/19 are
sustained, this will inevitably lead to an increase in the level of
savings required in future years to balance the budget.

Members should note that the budget for the annual
management fee payable to Active Tameside as explained in
section 4, and as recommendations 3 and 4 of the report is
included within the Population Health budget of the Council
and Section 75 of the Integrated Commissioning Fund.

It should be noted that the Integrated Commissioning Fund
(ICF) for the Strategic Commission is bound by the terms
within the Section 75 and associated Financial Framework
agreements.

There is a statutory duty to ensure the Council sets a
balanced budget and that it is monitored to ensure
statutory commitments are met. There are a number of
areas that require a clear strategy to ensure in the face of
demand they achieve this. It is not possible in Local Authority
budgets to be overspent in law.

Given the implications for each of the constituent
organisations this report will be required to be presented to
the decision making body of each one to ensure good
governance.

It is necessary that any cost sharing arrangements and
implications of the same are agreed in advance with external
auditors.

The Integrated Commissioning Fund supports the delivery of
the Tameside and Glossop Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

The Integrated Commissioning Fund supports the delivery of
the Tameside and Glossop Locality Plan?

The Integrated Commissioning Fund supports the delivery of
the Tameside and Glossop Commissioning Strategy.

A summary of this report is presented to the Health and Care
Advisory Group for reference.

Service reconfiguration and transformation has the patient at
the forefront of any service redesign. The overarching
objective of Care Together is to improve outcomes for all of
our citizens whilst creating a high quality, clinically safe and

Page 28



Quality Implications:

How do the proposals help
to reduce health
inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications?
Has a privacy impact
assessment been
conducted?

Risk Management:

Background Papers:

financially sustainable health and social care system. The
comments and views of our public and patients are
incorporated into all services provided.

As above.

The reconfiguration and reform of services within Health and
Social Care of the Tameside and Glossop economy will be
delivered within the available resource allocations. Improved
outcomes for the public and patients should reduce health
inequalities across the economy.

Equality and Diversity considerations are included in the
redesign and transformation of all services.

Safeguarding considerations are included in the redesign and
transformation of all services.

There are no information governance implications within this
report and therefore a privacy impact assessment has not
been carried out.

Associated details are specified within the presentation.

Background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting :

Tom Wilkinson, Assistant Director of Finance, Tameside
Metropolitan Borough Council

3 Telephone:0161 342 5609

<] e-mail: tom.wilkinson@tameside.qgov.uk

Tracey Simpson, Deputy Chief Finance Officer, Tameside
and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group

3 Telephone:0161 342 5626

ki < e-mail: tracey.simpson@nhs.net

David Warhurst, Associate Director Of Finance, Tameside
and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust

BTelephone:0161 922 4624

(% e-mail: David.Warhurst@tgh.nhs.uk

Page 29


mailto:tom.wilkinson@tameside.gov.uk
mailto:tracey.simpson@nhs.net
mailto:David.Warhurst@tgh.nhs.uk

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

BACKGROUND

This report aims to provide an overview on the financial position of the Tameside and
Glossop economy in 2018/19 at the 28 February 2019 with a forecast projection to 31
March 2019. Supporting details for the whole economy are provided in Appendix 1.

The report includes the details of the Integrated Commissioning Fund (ICF) for all Council
services and the Clinical Commissioning Group. The total net revenue budget value of the
ICF for 2018/19 is currently £584.626 million.

It should be noted that the report also includes details of the financial position of the
Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust. This is to ensure members
have an awareness of the overall Tameside and Glossop economy position. Reference to
Glossop solely relates to health service expenditure as Council services for Glossop are the
responsibility of Derbyshire County Council.

Please note that any reference throughout this report to the Tameside and Glossop
economy refers to the three partner organisations namely:

o Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust (ICFT)
o NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG (CCG)
« Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council (TMBC)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

As at 28 February 2019 the Integrated Commissioning Fund is forecasting net spend
£584.602m against an approved net budget of £584.626m, with a small underspend of
£24k. This forecast is a slightly improved position from the previous month but masks
significant pressures in a number of areas, including Children’s Services which continues to
forecast expenditure to be almost £8m in excess of budget.

Whilst the overall position has further improved, there remain significant cost pressures
across a number of areas which are likely to continue into the next financial year unless
mitigating actions can be implemented. The significant overspends in 2018/19 are being
partially offset by additional income in corporate and contingency which may not be
available in future years

TARGETED EFFICIENCY PLAN (TEP)
The economy wide savings target for 2018/19 is £35.920m:

o Commissioner £22.919m (£19.8m CCG & £3.119m TMBC)
o Provider £13.001m

Against this target, £32.695m of savings have been realised, 91% of the required savings.
Expected savings by the end of the year are £34.034m, a shortfall of £1.886m against
target.

The Trust is currently forecasting an underachievement against its in year TEP delivery of
£0.412m. Work is on-going with Theme groups to improve this forecast position. TMBC
savings have been identified by underspends in other areas and a balanced position will be
delivered.

The scale of the financial gap in future years mean there must be a continued focus on
identifying schemes for 2019/20 and beyond.

Page 30



Page 31



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

ACTIVE TAMESIDE

In order to achieve financial balance in 2018/19 and to improve financial sustainability in
2019/20, Active Tameside have adopted a budget strategy including interventions put in
place immediately, such as a moratorium on non-essential recruitment, service redesign,
review of programming and new commercial campaigns. Active Tameside are also
proposing changes to their current pension offer.

Currently, the company is a member of the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF).
Prior to formation of the Trust when staff were employed directly by the Council, they were
members of the GMPF. Upon formation of Active Tameside and the TUPE transfer of staff,
Active Tameside was allowed to become a member of the GMPF in its own right and all
staff were allowed to remain in the GMPF and new staff were allowed to join.

Active Tameside are proposing to set up a new defined contribution pension scheme for
new employees in order to reduce future costs. Current Active Tameside staff would be
unaffected and would remain in the GMPF on the same terms and conditions. However,
new employees will be enrolled on the Peoples Pension.

Therefore a variation is recommended in order to close the Fund for new employees in
order to reduce costs over the longer term and allow Active Tameside to remain financially
sustainable.

Members are therefore recommended to approve the variation of an admission agreement
with the Greater Manchester Pension Fund. It should be noted that the Council is also the
guarantor for Active Tameside with GMPF.

Members are also reminded that on 23 January 2019 the Executive Cabinet considered a
report relating to a review of sport and leisure provision within the borough. The report
included a recommendation (recommendation 2) to supplement and re-profile management
fee values payable to Active Tameside for the financial years 2018/19, 2019/20 (£1.403
million excluding VAT) and 2020/21 (£1.077 million excluding VAT). This budget is within
the Population Health Directorate of the Council and Section 75 of the Integrated
Commissioning Fund.

The report explained the current financial position of Active Tameside together with
interventions that have been implemented to improve and support the ongoing
sustainability and performance of the organisation.

The annual management fee payable to Active Tameside by the Council is currently
payable in four equal instalments as an advance payment on the first day of each financial
year quarter commencing 1 April.

The first quarter (25%) of the 2019/20 management fee value was paid on 1 April 2019.

In order to provide continued support to the financial standing and associated cashflow of
Active Tameside, Members are recommended to approve the payment of the remaining
balance of the approved 2019/20 annual management fee (75%) by 30 April 2019
(£1,052,250 excluding VAT).

Members are also recommended to approve the payment of the total annual management
fee value in subsequent financial years as an advance payment on 1 April for 2020/21 and
2021/22. This arrangement will be reviewed alongside the new business case that will
cover the period 2022/23 to 2023/24.

Page 32



5. RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 As stated on the front cover of the report.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Tameside and Glossop Integrated Financial Position

Period Ending 28 February 2019
Month 11

Tintwistle

Gg abed

TR
Hadfield
N

Hyde Newton orth St John's

North East
T HydeiGodley
Denton
South

HydelWerneth

Kathy Roe
Sam Simpson

nnnnnnnnnnn GLOSSOP m

Tameside and ﬁlossop

Carefogether B Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care

Clinical Commissioning Group POHES Fmuela o Truse




o¢ abed

Period Ending 28 February 2019

Integrated Financial Position Summary Report

Economy Wide Financial Position 3
Tameside and Glossop Integrated Commissioning Fund 4-6
Integrated Care Foundation Trust 7
Targeted/Trust Efficiency Plan 8



/€ abed

Tameside & Glossop Integrated Economy Wide Financial Position

£7.8m

Children’s
Services

Unprecedented levels
of demand in
Children’s Social Care
continue and place
significant pressures
on staff and resources.
Placement costs are
the main driver of the
forecast £7.8m in
excess of approved
budget.

Message from the DOFs £0.04m
As we move into the final few weeks of the financial year, the
economy wide financial position has again improved slightly but .
the overall picture remains mixed with significant challenges in Strat_egl_c
some areas. Commission
Forecast

There have been a few small movements since period 10, which
has resulted in an improvement in the forecast outturn position,
due to a small underspend on Council Budgets. However, this
improved overall position masks continuing and recurrent
pressures due to the non delivery of savings in some areas, and
continuing pressure in Children’s Services where the forecast
overspend remains at just under £8m in excess of budget.

Overall forecast
outturn for the
Strategic Commission
has improved by
£0.04m since period
10, resulting in a small
forecast underspend
across the economy.

Alongside delivery of in year savings, the focus continues to be
on the identification of savings to deliver a balanced position for
2019/20 and beyond. Proposed savings will continue to be
subject to scrutiny through the ‘Star Chamber process and
regular updates will be provided on a periodic basis.

This report covers all spend at
Tameside & Glossop Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG),
Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council (TMBC) and
Tameside & Glossop
Integrated Care Foundation
Trust (ICFT) . It does not
capture any Local Authority
spend from Derbyshire
County Council or High Peak
Borough Council for the
residents of Glossop.

7 Forecast Position

. Previous | Movement
CCG Expenditure 398,112 398,113 (0) 0 (1)
TMBC Expenditure 186,514 186,489

Integrated Commissioning Fund 584,626 584,602 24 -@m

ICFT - post PSF Agreed Deficit (19,149) (19,149) 0 0 0
Economy Wide n Year Deficit | ~SG6477 Ses4ss 24— (12 3



8¢ abed

Tameside & Glossop Integrated Commissioning Fund

As at 28 February 2019 the Integrated Commissioning Fund is forecasting net spend £584.602m against an approved net budget of
£584.626m, with a small underspend of £24k. This forecast is a slightly improved position from the previous month but masks significant
pressures in a number of areas, including Children’s Services which continues to forecast expenditure to be almost £8m in excess of
budget.

Forecast Position
Forecg::) (I;:smon Exgﬁ:c::tjre Plr\;la;/:::s Mom::::t in
Acute 202,683 0 202,683 203,597 (914) (740) (174)
Mental Health 32,832 0 32,832 33,468 (636) (618) (18)
Primary Care 82,701 0 82,701 82,211 489 588 (99)
Continuing Care 14,106 0 14,106 16,010 (1,904) (2,168) 264
Community 29,966 0 29,966 30,104 (138) (213) 75
Other CCG 30,615 0 30,615 27,514 3,101 3,151 (50)
CCG TEP Shortfall (QIPP) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CCG Running Costs 5,209 0 5,209 5,209 0 0 0
Adults 82,653 (42,172) 40,480 40,256 224 208 (4)
Children's Services 46,819 (3,051) 43,768 51,580 (7,812) (7,998) 186
Education 30,936 (25,374) 5,562 5,570 (8) (56) 48
Individual Schools Budgets 115,200 (115,200) 0 0 0 0 0
Population Health 16,912 (680) 16,232 15,971 261 379 (118)
Operations and Neighbourhoods 76,782 (26,448) 50,333 50,746 (412) (412) (0)
Growth 42,765 (34,920) 7,846 9,867 (2,021) (1,958) (63)
Governance 88,704 (79,887) 8,818 7,138 1,680 1,690 (10)
Finance & IT 6,103 (1,550) 4,553 4,188 365 406 (41)
Quality and Safeguarding 367 (288) 79 71 ) 8 (0)
Capital and Financing 10,998 (1,360) 9,638 7,852 1786 1786 0
Contingency 4,163 (6,823) (2,660) (6,246) 3,586 3,586 0
Corporate Costs 8,721 (6,857) 1,865 (503) 2.368 2328

Integrated Commissioning Fund 929,235  (344,609) 584,626 584,602 m -@_




6E abed

Tameside & Glossop Integrated Commissioning Fund

Forecast Position Expenditure | Income Net Budaet Previous | Movement
£000's Budget Budget 9 Forecast Varlance Month in Month

Integrated Commissioning Fund

CCG Expenditure 398,112 398,112 398,112 (0)
TMBC Expenditure 531,123 (344, 609) 186,514 186,489 24 (12)

heais (aacis) sehozs Sse 2] () %
A: Section 75 Services 311,745 (41,823) 269,921 270,231 (310) (535) 225
B: Aligned Services 411,824  (170,283) 241,541 242,996 (1,455) (1,305) (151)
C: In Collaboration Services 205,665 (132,502) 73,163 71,373 1,790 1,828 (38)

N N

Continuing Care

This remains a  significant
financial risk but a financial
recovery plan is in place, with
detailed updates presented at
Finance & QIPP Assurance
Group on a quarterly basis.

Whilst  still  forecasting an
overspend of £1.904m, the
historic growth rates have slowed.
The favourable movement since
month 10 is due to winter
pressures not materialising to the
same level as expected.

Acute

The movement in the forecast variance is due to
4 patients discharged from critical care at the
Christies, of which the CCG had no prior
notice. This has been raised with the Trust and
GMSS who manage the contract to ensure the
CCG receives future advanced notice through
the long length of stay reports which have been
absent all year.

Since finalising the month 11 position, the CCG
has secured year-end settlement agreements
with all the NHS associate secondary care
providers. The impact of these agreements will
be a favourable movement in month 12 for 18/19
of circa £60k.

Children’s Services

Children’s Social Care continues
to present the single greatest
financial risk for 2018/19, and is
the most significant risk area for
the medium term financial
sustainability of the Council.

The forecast outturn position of
£7.8m in excess of budget has
improved slightly since the last
period.




0t abed

Tameside & Glossop Integrated Commissioning Fund

Forecast Position Varlance
i R
Acute 184,950 185,966  (1,016) 202,683 203,597 (914) (740) (174)
Mental Health 30,290 30,773 (483) 32,832 33,468 (636) (618) (18)
Primary Care 75,504 75,625 (121) 82,701 82,211 489 588 (99)
Continuing Care 12,892 14,333  (1,441) 14,106 16,010 (1,904) (2,168) 264
Community 27,471 27,565 (94) 29,966 30,104 (138) (213) 75
Other CCG 28,735 25,612 3,123 30,615 27,514 3,101 3,151 (50)
CCG TEP Shortfall (QIPP) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CCG Running Costs 3,577 3,546 30 5,209 5,209 0 0 0
Adults 37,107 46,053  (8,946) 40,480 40,256 224 228 4)
Children's Services 40,120 47,303 (7,182 43,768 51,580 (7,812) (7,998) 186
Education 5,099 19,148 (14,049) 5,562 5,570 (8) (56) 48
Individual Schools Budget 105,600 105,600 0 115,200 115,200 0 0 0
Population Health 14,879 14,133 746 16,232 15,971 261 379 (118)
Operations and Neighbourhoods 46,139 48,384  (2,245) 50,333 50,746 (412) (412) 0)
Growth 7,192 15,031 (7,839) 7,846 9,867 (2,021) (1,958) (63)
Governance 8,083 15,192  (7,109) 8,818 7,138 1,680 1,690 (10)
Finance & IT 4174 4,395 (221) 4,553 4,188 365 406 (41)
Quality and Safeguarding 72 (24) 96 79 71 8 8 (0)
Capital and Financing 8,835 1 8,834 9,638 7,852 1,786 1,786 0
Contingency (2,438) (623) (1,815) (2,660) (6,246) 3,586 3,586 0
Corporate Costs 1, 709 (1 328) 3, 037 1, 865 503) 2,368 2,328 40
[ 699,826 699802 240 (12 36
CCG Expenditure 363 418 363 418 (0) 398 112 398 113 (O) 0 @)

TMBC Expenditure 276,571 313,265 (36,695) 301,714 301,689 12 37
Integrated Commissioning Fund 639,989 676,683 (36,696)] 699,826 699,802 m . 36



Tt obed

Tameside Integrated Care Foundation Trust Financial Position

SUMMARY

* Revenue - For the financial period to the 28t February
2019 , the Trust has reported a net deficit of c.£21.545m,
pre Provider Sustainability Funding (PSF), which is
c.£266k better than plan. The in month position for
February reported a £1.431m deficit, £11k worse than
plan.

* Trust Efficiency programme (TEP) - The Trust delivered
¢.£1.069m of savings in month, this is an
underachievement against target by ¢.£395k in month. For
the first time this financial year the Trust is reporting a
cumulative underachievement against plan, of c£59k.

* Agency cap - To date the Trust has spent ¢.£6.14m on
Agency, against a plan of £8.82m. Based on this run rate,
spend should be significantly below the agency cap of
£9.53m.

KEY RISKS

* Control Total — The Trust agreed a control for 2018/19 of
¢£19.149m, this assumes the Trust will be in receipt of the full PSF.
NHSI monitor financial delivery from a revenue perspective against
post PSF target, for the Trust this plan is £23.38m.

* Provider Sustainability Fund - The Trust must achieve its
financial plan at the end of each quarter to achieve 70% of the PSF,
the remainder is predicated on achievement of the A&E target. If the
Trust fails to deliver the financial and/or performance targets it will
need to borrow additional cash at 1.5%. The Trust has achieved its
Q3 finance and performance target. However, it is not forecasting to
achieve its Q4 performance target and therefore will not receive
£443k in cash.

* TEP — The Trust is currently forecasting an underachievement
against its TEP target of c€E411k in year and c£2.0m recurrently.
The revised governance implemented by the Trust has offset the
failure to deliver TEP and consequently the Trust is forecasting to
meet its control total.

Month 11 YTD Outturn
Actual Variance Actual Variance Plan
Financial Performance Metric Plan £000 £000 £000 Plan £000 £000 £000 £000s
Normalised Surplus / (Deficit) Before PSF (1,420) (1,431) (11) (21,811) (21,545) 266  (23,370)
Provider Sustainability Fund (PSF) 494 494 0 3,727 3,727 0 4,221
Surplus / (Deficit) (926) (937) (11) (18,084) (17,818) 266  (19,149)

Trust Efficiency Savings 1,464 1,069 (395) 11,465 11,406 (59) 13,000
Use of Resources Metric 33 I B




2 obed

TEP — Targeted/Trust Efficiency Plan

Post Bias
Savings Expected Post Bias
/Organisation High Risk |Medium Risk| Low Risk Posted Total Target Saving Variance
CCG 0 0 0 19,800 19,800 19,800 19,800 0
TMBC 309 250 0 1,489 2,048 3,119 1,645 (1,474)
Strategic Commissioner 250 0 21,848 22,919 21,445 (1,474)
ICFT 162 7 1,176 11,406 12,752 13,001 12,589 (412)
Economy Total 257 1,176 34,600 35,920 34,034 (1,886)
» The economy wide savings target for 2018/19 is
£35.920m: Progress Against Target
Commissioner £22.919m (£19.8m CCG & £3.119m
TMBC) Target £35,920k
Provider £13.001m YTD
£32,695 _--~

* Against this target, £32.695m of savings have been
realised, 91% of the required savings but the majority of
this is by non-recurrent means therefore putting additional
pressure in future years

* Expected savings by the end of the year are £34.034m, a
shortfall of £1.886m against target

* The Trust is currently forecasting an underachievement
against its in year TEP delivery of £0.412m. Work is on-
going with Theme groups to improve this forecast position.

» TMBC savings have been identified by underspends in
other areas and a balanced position will be delivered.

* The scale of the financial gap in future years mean there
must be a continued focus on identifying schemes for
2019/20 and beyond.

Apr May

Forecast
£34,034
YTD
Target£27,952




Report to:

Date:
Officer of Strategic
Commissioning Board

Subject:
Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Financial Implications:
(Authorised by the statutory
Section 151 Officer & Chief
Finance Officer)

Legal Implications:
(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

How do proposals align with
Health & Wellbeing Strategy?

Agenda Iltem 7a

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD

24 April 2019
Gill Gibson, Director of Quality and Safeguarding

BIMONTHLY QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT

The purpose of the report is to provide the Strategic
Commissioning Board with assurance that robust quality
assurance mechanisms are in place to monitor the quality of the
services commissioned; to highlight any quality concerns and to
provide assurance as to the action being taken to address such
concerns.

The Strategic Commissioning Board is asked to note the content
of the report.

ICF S75 Aligned In Collab | Total

Budget | £°000 £°000 £000 £000

CCG

Total £577m Net
Resource

Section 75 - £°000 £267million Net Resource

Strategic

Commissioning

Board

Value For Money Implications — e.g. Savings Deliverable,
Expenditure Avoidance, Benchmark Comparison

There is no direct financial implications within the content of
this report but the Strategic Commission have an integrated
commissioning fund with a net value of £577m of which £267m
is within the Section 75 pooled budget. Quality is an important
factor in determining value for money services, mitigating risk
and providing assurance that our residents are receiving the
best outcomes from investment. The content of this report
highlights the controls and monitoring systems currently in
place to maintain high quality services and instigate remedial
action as required. This is particularly crucial in high risk areas
such as continuing healthcare and children’s services.
Furthermore, this level of rigour and control facilitates the

potential for additional income from the CCG Quality Premium.

As the system restructures and the constituent parts are required
to discharge statutory duties, assurance and quality monitoring
will be key to managing the system and holding all parts to
account, understanding where best to focus resources and
oversight. A framework needs to be developed to achieve this. It
must include complaints and other indicators of quality.

Strengthened joint working in respect of quality assurance aim to

support identification or quality issues in respect of health and
social care services.

Page 43



How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

How do proposals align with the
Commissioning Strategy?

Recommendations / views of the
Health and Care Advisory
Group:

Public and Patient Implications:

Quality Implications:

How do the proposals help to
reduce health inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications? Has a
privacy impact assessment been
conducted?

Risk Management:

Access to Information :

Quality assurance is part of the locality plan.

The service contributes to the Commissioning Strategy by
providing quality assurance for services commissioned.

This section is not applicable as the report is not received by the
Health and Care Advisory Group.

The services are responsive and person-centred. Services
respond to people’s needs and choices and enable them to be
equal partners in their care.

The purpose of the report is to provide the SCB with assurance
that robust quality assurance mechanisms are in place to monitor
the quality of the services commissioned and promote joint
working.

As above.

None currently.

Safeguarding is part of the report.

There are no information governance implications. The reported
data is in a public domain. No privacy impact assessment has
been conducted.

No current risks identified.

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting Lynn Jackson, Quality Lead Manager, by:

@& Telephone: 07800 928090
"85 e-mail: lynn.jackson7@nhs.net

Page 44



1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to provide the Strategic Commissioning Board with assurance
that robust quality assurance mechanisms are in place to monitor the quality of the services
they commission; to highlight any quality concerns and to provide assurance as to the
action being taken to address such concerns.

TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP INTEGRATED CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST (Acute
and Community Services)

Health Care Acquired Infections (MRSA bacteraemia):

As previously reported Tameside and Glossop locality remain an outlier in MRSA
bacteraemia; there has been a total number of 10 MRSA bacteraemia across the Tameside
and Glossop economy (8 x community onset and 2 x acute onset).

In terms of quality assurance, all MRSA bacteraemia cases are examined using the
national Post Infection Review tool. This process aims to draw out learning from incidents
to ensure that action is taken to reduce future risk to the case and other patients. All
investigations are reviewed at the HCAI Quality Improvement group providing assurance
that learning form incidents is acted upon and plans are in place to ensure best practice in
infection prevention is shared across the trust foot print. There have been two cases this
year where lapses in care have been identified and appropriate learning identified. It should
be noted that the MRSA cases are not the same strain i.e. the infection has not been
passed from person to person due to poor infection prevention practice.

Action taken to improve: The ICFT have worked in partnership with NHSI to undertake a
peer review of infection prevention practice within the Stamford unit. The review identfied
good infection prevention practice and that staff were able to appropriately challenge poor
practice from colleagues and visiting staff. A number of recoemndations have been made
to stregthen best practice, assurance and accountability. No concerns were raised in
relation to quality of care or infection prevention practice.

Maternity

The percentage of maternal smoking at delivery remains a local challenge; the national
threshold is set at 11%. Unfortunately, despite a recent improvement in performance, there
has been a slight increase again from 16.5% in December to 18.3% in January. The Trust
are working towards training for Risk Prevention Intervention in March and aim to have a
Midwife and a part time Maternity Support Worker in post by April 2019. This, alongside
the National CQUIN for reducing risky behaviour (alcohol and tobacco), should place the
Trust in a good position to support a reduction in smoking in pregnancy in Tameside.

CQC 2018 Maternity Survey

The results from the Care Quality Commission’s maternity survey were published on 29
January. The survey received responses from more than 17,600 women who gave birth
during February 2018. This is a response rate of 37%. We asked women about their
experiences of care during labour and birth, as well as the quality of antenatal and
postnatal support they received. Most women reported positive experiences, particularly
around interactions with staff during antenatal appointments and labour. The survey also
found that women who saw the same midwife every time had better than average
experience scores, suggesting that ongoing relationships can have a positive impact on
women’s experiences. As in previous surveys, results for questions on postnatal care,
either in the hospital or once the mother and baby returned home, remain less positive than
other aspects of the maternity pathway. Women’s experiences of information provision and
communication could also be improved, particularly advice around feeding.

Page 45



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust - _Responses were
received from 79 patients at Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation
Trust. This result shows that the Trust are performing about the same as most other trusts
(no positive or negative outliers) that took part in the survey. The full survey results can be
found at https://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RMP/survey/5

User Experience - Friends and Family Test (FFT)

The trust reported that three indicators were just below threshold (Emergency Department
Recommend, Outpatient Recommend and Maternity (Combined) Recommend). The trust
has taken action to improve Friends and Family Test (FFT) performance including raising
the profile of FFT by adding it onto the communication huddle for the units, discussing with
ward managers and Matrons to remind them to encourage the distribution and completion
of cards. In addition the corporate team will support the area twice a week to directly
collect feedback via IPADs. The soft text from FFT is triangulate alongside other user
experience to help drive the ICFT’s Patient Experience strategy and service improvements.

Good practice: Children’s Service: The Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health
(RCPCH) have undertaken a national audit to review and compare standards across the
UK against those outlined in Facing the Future Standards: The ICFT’s Paediatric team have
been recognised as exemplars of good practice at a national level in particular their wider
integration work within the Neighbourhoods.

Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS FT have been shortlisted for 10 awards at this
year's HSJ Value Awards. The following services have been shortlisted:

e Electronic Advice and Guidance (Category: Acute Service Redesign Award);

o Tameside and Glossop Digital Health Service (Category: Emergency, Urgent and
Trauma Care Efficiency Initiative of the Year);

e Virtual Fracture Clinic (Category: Emergency, Urgent and Trauma Care Efficiency
Initiative of the Year);

e Development of New Electronic Emergency Department Health Record System
(Category: Emergency, Urgent and Trauma Care Efficiency Initiative of the Year);

e Using digital technology to deliver place-based care to older frail people (Category:
Improving Value in the Care of Older Patients Award);

o Extensive Care Service (Category: Improving Value in the Care of Older Patients
Award);

e  Community IV Therapy Service (Category: Community Health Service Redesign

Award);

e Finance Improvement Team (Category: Financial or Procurement Initiative of the
Year);

e Denton Diabetes Diverters 100 day challenge (Category: Diabetes Care Initiative of
the Year);

e Development of new electronic ED health record system (Category: Technology
Initiative of the Year).

The award ceremony is on Thursday 23rd May at Manchester Central.

The ICFT have also been shortlisted for the GM Patient Safety Awards in the category for
Improving Care for Older People Award

¢ Digital Health Service: Using digital technology to deliver care to older people
¢ Reducing frailty, falls and fragility across the neighbourhood

Horizon scanning: The CQC is currently carrying out a full service inspection for the ICFT
(between 11 March 2019 and 29 March 2019). The ICFT is currently rated as Good; this

Page 46


https://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RMP/survey/5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

41

will be the first inspection since community services were transferred to the ICFT contract.
The outcome of the inspection will be reported once published.

PUBLIC HEALTH

Provider: T&G ICFT - Health Visiting:

e There has been an improvement in the number of antenatal assessments from Q1 (61)
to Q3 (134), however, this remains low compared to number of live births. Health
visiting is the only universal service that can provide health promotion, early
intervention and primary prevention in the antenatal period that continues into the early
years.

e New birth visits (88.2%) continue under performance threshold at Q3 (target 95%).

e Q3 data has shown a deterioration in performance of 12 month reviews currently at
84.5% (target 95%) — a reduction of 10% from Q2.

Actions taken to Improve:
e The Health Visiting Service has an improvement plan which includes a number of
actions to address the issues of concerns. To highlight a few:

- Antenatal visits to be proactively schedule. General Support Workers are attending
Lorenzo training so that Health Visiting has access to Maternity systems to address
gaps in Euroking.

- Recruitment remains an issue and current vacancy rates are increasing pressure on
capacity. Recruitment of staff nurses has been unsuccessful therefore the Service is
planning to focus on the recruitment of Health Visiting and Community Nursery Nurses
in line with the academic year when the student Health Visitors are fully qualified.

- The Service is developing robust communication pathways with neighbouring hospitals
to ensure notifications are received for babies born out of area to ensure new birth
visits are met in a timely manner.

- The Service is investigating and reviewing the data quality of inputting ASQ3 (at the 2/
2 s year check) onto EMIS. There has been a drop from 96.8% in Q2 to 91.1% in Q3.

Good Practice: The Service has seen an increase in the percentage of infants being
breastfed at 6 to 8 weeks. This partly due to the success and good practice of partnership
working with: Maternity, Health Visiting, Children Centres, the Infant Feeding Co-ordinator
and the Peer Support Breastfeeding Service and increased focus on the importance of
early attachment and skin to skin contact.

Horizon Scanning:

e The service improvement plan is updated monthly and the commissioning lead in the
Strategic Commission meets with the service on a monthly basis to monitor this.

e The commissioning lead is working with the ICFT to look at the outputs and outcomes
in relation to the school age service (School Nursing, Children’s Nutrition Team and
Health Mentors), which is part of the Healthy Child Programme with Health Visiting.

MENTAL HEALTH (PENNINE CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST (PCFT)

IAPT (Healthy Minds)

Prevalence

As reported previously, this service has undergone a redesign and prevalence for the Step
One service had been impacted. An increase is being seen (January 19 data) but this will
continue to be monitored as the target is not currently being met. A Joint Action Plan is in
place to aid meeting the service target with a calendar of events planned to increase
prevalence over the next 12 months.

Page 47



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Secondary Waits (Healthy Minds)
As previously reported, there are ongoing delays for patients waiting for treatment,
particularly in relation to Step 3 and Enhanced Service Interventions.

Actions taken to improve: The secondary waits are being addressed jointly with the CCG
with additional investment in capacity in the psychological therapies service. The aim is for
the additional capacity to support the waiting list reduction. The service has now completed
a waiting list validation exercise to ensure that the patients waiting for treatment still require
treatment. Ongoing monitoring of the secondary waits will continue through Monthly
reporting and the Contract Quality and Performance Group (CQPG).

Memory Assessment Service

Performance reached the referral standard for the 6 week assessment and 12 week referral
to diagnosis indicators in November and December following a period of decreased
performance between July and October. Issues in relation to the timeliness of scan results
had been raised via the CQPG and now escalated to the Director of Quality and
Safeguarding.

Actions taken to improve: Performance in relation to assessment and referral to
diagnosis times will continue to be monitored via the monthly CQPG.

PCFT Staffing Issues
Capacity and recruitment continue to be challenging for PCFT across a number of services.
These are formally acknowledged for CMHT on the Risk Register.

Actions taken to improve: Bank and agency staff are being utilised to increase capacity
whilst posts are out to recruitment. The Trust-wide Quality Assurance Group has identified
staffing and workforce as a priority and a request has been made to the Trust to strengthen
safe staffing reporting including acuity and risk tolerance. PCFT have provided assurance
that a number of actions are taking place under the remit of the Safer Staffing Steering
Group including the development of a localised acuity and dependency scoring system for
use across PCFT services.

Locally, capacity is monitored via the CQPG, regular updates are also provided via the
locality report and an update on current vacancies and progress with recruitment has been
requested.

Mixed Sex Accommodation (MSA) Breaches

There were 5 mixed sex accommodation breaches in January 19. As previously reported
engagement work was undertaken in 2018 regarding the Trust-wide Mixed Sex
Accommodation Breaches. An update was provided by the Executive Director of Nursing at
the Trust-wide Quality Assurance Meeting and a Board Update is anticipated in April 19
regarding prioritisation and next steps.

CQC Inspection

The CQC well-led inspection was completed at the end of October with the final report
published on the 28" January 19 with an overall outcome of “Requires Improvement”.
Ratings across domains are summarised below:

Caring: Good

Responsive: Good

Safe: Requires Improvement
Effective: Requires Improvement
Well-led: Requires Improvement

Page 48



411 A summary of ratings by service (Trust-wide Mental Health) including date of last service
inspection is summarised in the table below:

Ratings for mental health services

Safe Effective Caring Responsive  Well-led Overall
Acute wards for adults of . Requires . Requires Good : Requires . Requires . Requires
working age and psychiatric improvement | improvement improvement | improvement | improvement
intensive care units Jan 2019 Jan 2019 Jan 2019 Jan 2019 Jan 2019 Jan 2019

Long-stay or rehabilitation Good Good Good Good Good Good

mental health wards for

working age adults Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016

Forensic inpatient or secure Good Good Good Good Good Good

wards Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 0L Dec 2016 Dec 2016

child and adolescent mental Outstanding Good Outstanding tstanding | Outstanding | Outstanding

health wards Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016
Requires

Wards for older people with [l e =0 Good Good Good Good Goed

mental health problems Jan 2019 Jan 2019 Jan 2019 Jan 2019 Jan 2019
Jan 2019

Community-based mental imReg::r;\esen - immr*g::r;\esen - Good Good Good Good

health services for adults of pr P

i Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016
working age Dec 2016 Dec 2016 o =€ < =€

Mental health crisis services | bl Ll Good Good _ Requires | Requires
and health-based places of improvement | improvement improvement | improvement
safety Jan2019 | Jan 2019 Jan2015 | Jan2019 | o 5019 | Jan 2019

Specialist community mental Good Good Good _Requires .| Good Good
health services for children improvemen
and young people Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016
Community-based mental Good Good Good Good Good Good
health services for older
people Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016
Community mental health _Imkeg:;:sen . Good Good Good Good Good
services for people with a pr
[earning d|sab|[|ty or autism Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016
Good Good Good Good Good Good

Substance misuse services

Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016

Overall ratings for mental health services are from combining ratings for services. Our decisions on overall ratings take
into account the relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach fair and balanced ratings.

412 For Tameside and Glossop the following services were reviewed at this inspection: Older
People’'s Mental Health (Summers & Hague); Home Treatment Team (HTT) and RAID;
Wards for Adults inc. PICU (Taylors and Saxon). There was a significant improvement in
improvement rating from “Requires Improvement” to “Good” for Older People’s Mental
Health Services.

4.13 The Trust is in the process of finalising the action plan before submission to the CQC in
March 19, this will be shared with Trust-wide Quality Leads once completed. For T&G
Services, the CQC evidence appendix has been reviewed at Service level by the Quality
Team and is being used to inform quality monitoring in 2019/20.

PCFT Quality Monitoring 2019/20

414 Local CQPG Meetings will include a bi-monthly “Quality in Focus” session in 2019/20. The
sessions will focus around the following areas but also include other quality items as
appropriate.

Page 49



March

In Focus — Risk Assessments

May

In Focus —Communication across teams

July

In Focus - Service User Experience

September In Focus - Learning from Deaths

November In Focus - Clinical Effectiveness

January In Focus - Physical Health

March

In Focus - Restrictive Practice and Prescribing

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

4.19

5.1

5.2

Similarly, work has been initiated to revise both the perfromance and quality reporting
structure and content in readiness for the 19/20 contract. A Stronger focus is being placed
on quality and outcomes with local T&G workshops being held in partnership with PCFT to
ensure the report is providing the Commissioning team and Quality team the assurance
required whilst not over-burdening the Trust with data requests.

Good Practice — Just Culture Event — 8 March 2019

PCFT launched its ‘Just Culture’ approach at a conference held on 8 March which was
attended by over 150 staff members. The aim is this will allow for a more systemic
approach to learning from incidents and allow practitioners to be more open and
transparent when things go wrong which will subsequently improve the learning that is
achieved from such incidents. An additional update was provided at the first T&G Quality in
Focus Session held in March 19.

CQC 2018 Community Mental Health Survey

On 22 November the Care Quality Commission published the results of the Community
Mental Health Survey 2018. 12,796 people took part in this year’s survey. Unfortunately,
the results found that people’s experiences of the care they received have continued to get
worse. Access to care, care planning and support for people with mental health conditions
in relation to physical health needs, financial advice or benefits are specific areas of worry.
Certain groups of people consistently reported poorer experiences of using mental health
services, including younger people (18-35) and those diagnosed with non-psychotic chaotic
and challenging disorders.

71% of respondents felt they were ‘always’ treated with respect and dignity by NHS mental
health services, but less than a third (30%) rated their overall experience of community
mental healthcare as nine out of 10 or above in this year’s survey; 4% down from last year.

Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust — Responses were received from 161 people at
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust. This result shoes that the Trust are performing about
the same as most other trusts that took part in the survey, except for Care review
for having had a formal meeting with someone from NHS mental health services to discuss
how their care is working in the last 12 months, where they scored worse. The full survey
results can be found at https://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RT2/surveys

PRIMARY CARE

Key points / Issues of concerns:

Waterloo Medical Centre was inspected by CQC on 9 January 2019. The report was
published on 22 February 2019 and placed the practice in special measures.

The practice was rated as inadequate for providing safe services because:

e The practice did not have clear systems and processes to keep patients safe.

e The practice did not have appropriate systems in place for the safe management of
medicines.

Page 50


https://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RT2/surveys

53

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

e The practice did not have systems and process in place to assess the risk associated
with health and safety or fire safety within the practice.

The practice was also rated as inadequate for providing well-led services because:

e The overall governance arrangements were ineffective.
e The practice did not have clear and effective processes for managing risks, issues and
performance.

The practice was rated as need to improve in providing effective services because:

o There was limited monitoring of the outcomes of care and treatment.
e The practice was unable to show that staff had the skills, knowledge and experience to
carry out their roles.

CQC has used its civil powers to issue an enforcement notice and the practice is required
to put the following in place:

o A full medication review of each patient at Waterloo Medical Centre on any high-risk
medication is carried out within 4 weeks.

e Provide the Care Quality Commission with written documentation within 4 weeks that
sets out how he will ensure that patients who receive high risk medication at Waterloo
Medical Centre are managed safely.

o Undertake a full health and safety risk assessment at Waterloo Medical Centre within 8
weeks.

Undertake a full fire risk assessment at Waterloo Medical Centre within 8 weeks.

o Ensure that weekly fire alarm and warning light checks are carried out at Waterloo
Medical Centre within 4 weeks

e Ensure that the safeguarding lead and all GPs at Waterloo Medical Centre undertake
level three safeguarding training within 4 weeks.

o Ensure the child safeguarding register at Waterloo Medical Centre is up to date within 2
weeks.

e Ensure that there are clear systems and processes in place at Waterloo Medical
Centre to monitor children and families at risk within 4 weeks.

Actions taken to improve: The CCG has been working closely with the practice with
safeguarding leads visiting to provide support on the safeguarding issues and medicines
management leads visiting to provide support on the medication issues. Safeguarding
training has been undertaken by the GPs and will be undertaken by the nursing staff. The
child safeguarding register is now up to date and the practice is drafting new policies and
guidance to monitor children and families at risk.

High risk medication patients have been identified, a plan is in place to undertake reviews,
which have commenced. The practice has a part time in-house pharmacist, who will be
undertaking additional sessions to support this work.

The practice has hired the services of an external health and safety provider to undertake a
full health and safety fire risk assessment and has commenced weekly fire alarm and
warning light checks.

The practice is now looking at the other areas of improvement contained with the CQC
report and is working to improve on them. The CCG will continue to support on a
multidisciplinary team approach coordinated by the primary care team and is in regular
contact with the practice. The CCG has provided some additional funding to support the
practice to pay for additional GP, pharmacist and practice manager support sessions so
that it has additional resources available during the initial phase of putting improvements

Page 51



5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

6.1

into place. In addition, the practice will be getting support from the Royal College of General
Practitioners via the GP Excellence Programme.

Good practice: The current version of the Primary Care Quality Scheme comes to a close
in March 2019. Practices are required to provide a final report detailing what they aimed to
achieve, what was achieved and what was put in place for that achievement while
highlighting what interventions did and didn’t work.

Working with the sustainable improvement team from NHS England the approach to
reporting was changed to each practice providing a poster for the two schemes they had
chosen themselves.

To help support this change the 15 January 2019 Practice Manager Learning Forum was a
single issue event based around the Primary Care Quality Scheme. Practices were
updated with the change of reporting to posters and advising that a celebration event would
be held.

Practices need to submit their posters by the end of March 2019 and the celebration event
will be held on 23 May 2019 at Denton Festival Hall.

A Tameside and Glossop referral to the GP Excellence Programme has been made for all
practices to receive customer service training. The aim is to try and improve patient
satisfaction with the process of making an appointment and to share best practice learning
across practices. The event will be held on 16 May 2019 at Stamford Park Pavilion and will
be for reception staff.

Horizon scanning: Under the GP contract reforms, 100% of the population is required to
be covered by a primary care network, which will be implemented by the Network Contract
Directed Enhanced Service (DES). The DES will be published on 29 March 2019.

The CCG wrote to all practices on 11 February 2019, which detailed the expectation that
the footprint primary care networks would follow the footprint of the existing Tameside and
Glossop neighbourhoods to benefit from the significant and extensive work to build
community health, social care, children’s integrated teams, social prescribing and
community safety partnerships with general practice at their heart. Support will be offered to
providers working across multiple contracts.

CARE AND NURSING HOMES
CQC Performance

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) picture for Care Homes and with Nursing’ is provided
in the graph below.

' Where ownership has changed this has been recorded as “not inspected” in line with CQC reporting. The
Home will have been inspected under the revised CQC methodology under previous ownership.

Page 52



30

25

20

15

10

NB:

Tameside Position — 1 March 19

Tameside Nursing and Residential -
cQcC 1 March 19*

M Outstanding
B Good
Requires Improvement
10 B Inadequate

M Not Inspected

1
I —

Nursing and Residential

This data covers operational TMBC commissioned Homes that are CQC registered as

‘“residential” or “nursing”.

Glossop Position — 1 March 19

1

0

Glossop Nursing and Residential - 1 March 19*

B Outstanding
B Good

RI

Not Inspected

1

Outstanding Good RI Not Inspected

NB: This data covers operational DCC commissioned Homes that are CQC registered as
‘“residential” or “nursing”

6.2

6.3

Inadequate CQC Ratings:

The Vicarage (TMBC)

The Home was rated Inadequate by the CQC on 21 August 2018 following inspection on 21
May 18. The Home has recently been re-inspected by the CQC; we await the outcome. At
a Commissioners meeting held 3 March 19 it was agreed the investment from the Quality
Improvement Team (QIT) would continue due to recent improvements being seen and
improvement in leadership.

Published CQC Ratings (January and February 2019):

Beechwood House (Glossop)

This Home achieved a “Good” rating following inspection in October 2018. The Home was
previously recorded as “not rated” due to a change of ownership. The Home achieved a
“Good” rating across all domains.

Page 53



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Charnley House (Tameside)

The Home achieved a “Good” rating overall following inspection in January 19. This was
an improvement from the previous rating of “Requires Improvement”. A “good” rating was
achieved in all domains with the exception of Well-Led which still retains a “Requires
Improvement” rating due evidence of continued sustained improvement and embedding of
the new quality systems and processes. The Home have requested some support from the
Quality Improvement Team.

Downshaw Lodge (Tameside)

The Home received a rating of “Requires Improvement” following inspection in November
18. The Home was previously recorded as “not rated” due to a change of ownership. A
“‘Requires Improvement” rating was found in both the Safe and Well-led domains with
improvements required in medicines management and infection prevention and control, as
well as issues around audit and control. The Caring, Responsive, and Effective domains
were rated as “Good”.

Laurel Bank (Tameside)

The Home has achieved a “Good” rating following inspection in December 18 (same as
previous rating). The Home achieved a “Good” rating in all domains with the exception of
“Well-led” where a “Requires Improvement” rating was received, this was due to systems of
audit and service checks not being robust enough to identify issues the CQC found during
the inspection.

HC-One Regulation 28 (Greatwood House)

HC-One have received a Regulation 28 (published on the Judiciary website January 19)
following the death of a female resident who fell in a communal area whilst the area was
unsupervised. The matters of concern relate to:

e There are currently no clear written requirements in force across HC-One’s homes
mandating the attendance of a colleague to monitor the communal area in question
before leaving it unattended;

e The Risk of Falls Assessment Tool currently across HC-One’s homes was
demonstrated in court to be unclear and susceptible to different interpretations. When
asked about it in the course of her evidence, HC-One’s Area Director was not aware as
to whether or not this Assessment Tool had recently been benchmarked as against
others used within the industry;

¢ Notwithstanding the fact the resident had 3 falls over the course of as many days in
February 2018, HC-one had not, as at the date of the Inquest, undertaken any
investigation into the circumstances of these. The absence of any investigation by HC-
One in this respect represents a missed opportunity to ascertain if any learning can be
derived from these incidents for the benefit of other residents.

A response from HC-One is yet to be received, however steps taken currently are:

e HC-One are looking at a revised Falls Risk Assessment process and rolling out work
completed at Sunnyside Residential Home (recent presentation at the Care Home
Manager’'s Forum).

e Strengthened Contract Performance and Quality Assurance Process from Tameside
Contract Performance team has been implemented. Additionally this has been further
strengthened with a request for increased evidence of focus on learning from incidents
and embedding change through the contract performance visits

e QIT have been providing falls advice across Care Homes. Additional support is
available from Digital Health, IUCT, and Community Physio.

Page 54



6.9

6.10

7.1

18
16
14
12
10

o N B O

Horizon Scanning: A review of the 2018 Contracts Performance Visit Baseline was
completed in January 2019. This involved analysis of compliance levels across the 51
questions included within the Pre-Visit Questionnaire alongside performance at CQC visits
undertaken in 2018. In summary, compliance levels where found to be poorest in the
following areas:

Staff Training and Supervision;

DOLs, Consent, MCA;

Supporting residents with dementia;

Activities and connecting to the local community;
Medication Management (strong correlation with CQC);
Equality & Diversity;

*  Nursing;

* Medication Management;

* Record Keeping;

*  Working within limits.

The above areas will be focussed on within the Contract Performance Visit in 2019, as well
as the ongoing support being provided by the Quality Improvement Team. There are also
updates being provided at the Care Home Manager's Forum as well as training sessions
planned for 2019. The Quality Improvement Team will also be completing a distinct piece
of work around Supervision and Assessing Competency with a bespoke workshop to be
planned once the work is complete. The Medicines Management Team are in the process
of refining their approach to Audit with a stronger focus on supporting improvement.
Additional actions include development of an observational risk tool which will be used by
Contract Performance Officers and is additional to the Contract Visit Questionnaire. The
outcomes of the analysis were presented to the Care Home Managers at the Forum in
January 2019.

SUPPORT IN THE COMMUNITY
CQC Performance

The CQC picture of the providers used to supply support in the community in Tameside is
noted in the graph below:

Tameside Support at Home - 1 March 19

Supported Accommodation Help to Live at Home

B Outstanding Good Requires Improvement M Inadequate Not Inspected

NB: This data covers operational commissioned providers that are CQC registered as “Homecare
Agency” or “Supported living” for TMBC

Page 55



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

8.3

During the reporting period no CQC reports have been published for the following
commissioned providers.

Support at Home Model

The new support at home model continues to be rolled out across all six zoned providers
(phase 2 started in July 2018) so the providers will be working to two models of care initially
whilst the new model embeds. It anticipated that by the end of March 2019 all support at
home services will be delivered using the new model.

Glossop Update — Support at Home
CQC performance for current providers that are accredited by DCC to provide support at
Home (and cover the Glossop area) are provided below.

Support at Home - Accredited providers in Glossop - 1 March 19

Supported Accommodation Help to Live at Home

M Outstanding M Good Requires Improvement M Inadequate

Ongoing updates in relation to quality of provision and CQC performance will be provided
as part of this report.

SAFEGUARDING

The CCG Safeguarding Team has supported the Primary Care team in undertaking
assurance visits to a GP practice in response to an overall inadequate CQC rating.
Concerns with regards to safeguarding were around systems and processes to keep
patients safe, staff training and development and safer recruitment. The Practice has
provided assurance that staffs have since received safeguarding training and an
improvement plan is in place to review systems and processes. The practice will utilise the
Primary Care Safeguarding Audit Tool and CCG safeguarding team to ensure actions are
met and evidenced.

Children

Tameside was chosen as one of seventeen local authorities by Department of Education to
be an “early adopter” for implementing new arrangements for scrutiny of multi-agency
safeguarding children arrangements. The new arrangements were published in December
2018.

Work is currently on going to ensure that changes are implemented linking children’s
safeguarding arrangements to the work of community safety partnership, adult
safeguarding and health and wellbeing arrangements. A number of development sessions
have been held to give partners the opportunity to discuss the new arrangements and how

Page 56



8.4

8.5

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

12

12.1

they will support the delivery of strategic priorities and improve service delivery and
outcomes for children.

There is likely to be further inspection of local authority safeguarding children arrangements
in March 2019 by Ofsted. This is likely to be a full inspection.

Learning Disability Mortality Review (LeDer)

Tameside & Glossop CCG continue to support the LeDer Programme. There have been 4
completed reviews which have highlighted good practice with the use of the hospital
passport and reasonable adjustments. Learning has been identified and shared with
regards to improving communication with carers and relatives and improving the uptake of
annual health checks and the quality of health action plans

CHILDREN’S SERVICES

The agreed assurance route for Children’s Services is via Tameside Children’s Services
Improvement Board.

ASSOCIATE CONTRACTS

The quality of associate contracts are managed by the Lead CCG for that contract and
assurance sought via the lead CCG’s contracting processes. A working group has been
established to strengthen internal processes in relation to the performance and quality of
associate contracts.

Quality concerns and assurance re mitigation for associate contracts are reported and
monitored at GM H&C Partnership Quality Board; Chaired by Richard Preece; Executive
Lead for Quality at the Partnership.

SMALLER VALUE CONTRACTS

Work has been initiated to review and strengthen the current quality assurance
arrangements for all smaller value contracts; this includes the use of a risk matrix to
establish the levels of focus required from the Quality Team. An audit has recently been
completed and work is on-going to include quality expectations based on 3 domains into
new and existing contracts.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION - QUALITY IN FOCUS

Reducing gram negative infections; Hydration week (week commencing 11t March
2019)

Throughout 2018/19 a whole health and care stakeholder group has been working
collaboratively to deliver the national ambition to achieve a 50% reduction in healthcare
associated GNBSIs by March 2022. National and local analysis indicates that 45 % of
urinary tract infections are associated with a germ called E.coli when it gets into the
bladder. The group aim to reduce urinary tract infection in older people by improving a
person’s hydration and by encouraging and supporting people to wash their hands after
going to the toilet. This ambition has been underpinned by a range of quality improvement
initiatives including a hydration campaign aimed at older people, many of whom do not
have health care involvement.

Page 57


https://www.tameside.gov.uk/children/Improvement/board
https://www.tameside.gov.uk/children/Improvement/board

12.2

12.3

Demographic data of GNBSI in Tameside

Omact of ympioma = | B35
we Bome

The group achieved the expected 10% reduction in healthcare associated GNBSIs by
March 2018 however it is not on target to achieve the target for March 2019; this is a
national picture, thought to have been influenced by the exceptionally hot summer in 2018,
resulting in increased dehydration and increased UTI infections.

For Hydration week 2019 staff and carers across the locality will be reminded to encourage
people to ‘drink more and stop infection’ by: -

Each time you visit a an elderly person’s home you can chat about drinking more to
stop infections.

You can ask older people to note down how many drinks they have per day so they
can monitor their own actual input, see chart below.

You can advise older people to drink earlier in the day to reduce the risk of getting up
at night.

You can advise people to drink little and often rather than full glasses at a time.

You can ensure that the cups and glasses they have can be held properly and are not
too heavy to pick up.

You can use tools like a colour chart so that they can see that the dark urine means
you need to drink more (see chart).

Taense o Loy

o
TN | I B B B
| I | I B B B
o BN B BB B BB B B
meli B B B BN BN B B
i B B B B B BN B
= T T T VTVW W ORY
=N I! ¥ 8l | B B
— age 5 ‘




12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

12.11

12.12

Reducing Health inequalities in people with Learning Disabilities:
People with a learning disability have a right to good health, yet they still face many health
inequalities, often resulting in worse health than the general population.

Sadly, people with a learning disability can have poorer physical and mental health than
other people and studies have shown that they can die on average 20 years younger than
the rest of the population. People with a learning disability are three times more likely to die
from causes of death that could have been avoided with good quality healthcare. Many of
these deaths are avoidable and not inevitable.

Our vision is for a future where health inequalities faced by people with learning disabilities
is eliminated. These individuals will have access to the same quality of physical and mental
healthcare as everybody else.

Clinical evidence shows that Annual Health Checks can identify undetected health
conditions early, ensure the appropriateness of ongoing treatments and promote health

A whole health and care stakeholder group has been working collaboratively to deliver NHS
England’s ambition is for 75% of people on GP Learning Disability Registers, from age 14
years, to have an Annual Health Check.

As part of this work the group delivered a GM 100 day challenge commitment to create a
resource packs for all practices containing practical resources that Primary Care services
can use to support them to deliver good quality checks and health action plans. These
packs were provided in December 2018 and included:

Step by step guide to implementation annual health checks and action plans
Royal College of GPs approved tool kit and resources

Syndrome specific supporting resources

Hospital passport

Communication / easy read resources

Information on reasonable adjustments

Information on the adult Learning Disability Health Service.

Transition information from children to adults.

In addition to this pack there is also a GP Liaison Nurse whose sole role is to support
Practices with advice and training about general learning disability issues, the LD register
and Practice learning disability Champions; contact details are provided within the pack.

Unfortunately T&G locality is not on trajectory to achieve the NHSE target; work will
continue throughout 2019/20 to increase the number of people on the LD register and to
increase the number of these over the age of 14 receiving a good quality health check and
action plan with the aim to reduce health inequalities in this population.

CRISTAL Awards “Celebrating Remarkable Inspirational Stars, Teams, And
Leaders”.

Tameside and Glossop CCG, and Tameside MBC have worked in partnership to develop
the CRISTAL Awards. CRISTAL is defined as “Celebrating Remarkable Inspirational Stars,
Teams, And Leaders” and is a celebration of excellence in care, within Care Homes across
Tameside and Glossop. The award ceremony will take place on 17 Oct 2019 at Dukinfield
Town Hall and will pay tribute to those who have demonstrated outstanding excellence in
the sector. While care homes are able to enter other care awards, Tameside and Glossop
CCG/Tameside MBC believes that developing and celebrating excellent care in care homes
locally will encourage participation and provide positive publicity, raise moral and give the
sector a boost.

Page 59



2019/20 CQUIN Scheme

12.13 The Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) framework supports improvements
in the quality of services and the creation of new, improved patterns of care. The CQUIN
scheme for 2019/20 supports the delivery of the NHS Long Term Plan and draws on
evidence based good practice that is already being rolled out across the country. The table
below highlights the CQUINs included in the 2019/20 scheme; further information can be
accessed at https://www.england.nhs.uk/nhs-standard-contract/cquin/cquin-19-20/

Prevention of lll Best Practice
Health Mental Health Patient Safety Pathways

* Antimicrobial * Improved * Three High Impact + Stroke 6 Month
Resistance — Discharge Follow Actions to Prevent Reviews
Lower Urinary Tract Up Hospital Falls
Infections in Older » Ambulance Patient
People & Antibiotic « Improved Data « Community Data at Scene —
Prophylaxis_in Quality and Ihserted PICC Assurance &
Colorectal Surgery Reporting — Data Lines Secured Demonstration
Quality Maturity Using a
- Staff Flu Index & SecurAcath Device - Same Day
Vaccinations Interventions Emergency Care —
Pulmonary
* Alcohol and * IAPT — Use of Embolus/
Tobacco — Anxiety Disorder Tachycardia/
Screening & Brief Specific Measures Community
Advice Acquired
Pneumonia

12.14 CQUINs have been offered and accepted for both the ICFT and PCFT contract as below: -

ICFT:
1 Antimicrobial resistance
Antibiotic Prophylaxis in Colorectal Surgery
Lower Urinary Tract Infections in Older People
Staff flu vaccinations
Alcohol and Tobacco — screening and brief advice
Three high impact actions to prevent Hospital Falls
Same day emergency care - Pulmonary Embolus

DB WIN

PCFT:

Staff flu vaccinations

Alcohol and Tobacco — screening and brief advice
72 Hour Follow Up Post Discharge

MH Data quality

Use of Anxiety Disorder Specific Measures in IAPT

B WIN|I=

12.15 Smaller value contracts will be offered a CQUIN aimed to contribute to a reduction in
homelessness and / or domestic abuse in support of the commissioning intentions 2019/20.

13. RECOMMENDATIONS

13.1  As set out on the front of the report.

Page 60


https://www.england.nhs.uk/nhs-standard-contract/cquin/cquin-19-20/

Agenda Iltem 7b

Report to: STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD

Date: 24 April 2019

Officer of Strategic Sarah Dobson, Assistant Director Policy, Performance and
Commissioning Board Communications.

Subject: DELIVERING EXCELLENCE, COMPASSIONATE, COST

EFFECTIVE CARE —- PERFORMANCE UPDATE

Report Summary: This report provides the Strategic Commissioning Board with
a Health and Care performance report for comment.

This report provides the Strategic Commissioning Board
(SCB) with a health & care performance update at April 2019.
The report covers:

e Health & Care Dashboard — including exception reporting
for measures which are areas of concern, i.e.
performance is declining and/or off target

e Other intelligence / horizon scanning — including updates
on issues raised by Strategic Commissioning Board
(SCB) members from previous reports, any measures
that are outside the dashboard but which Strategic
Commissioning Board (SCB) are asked to note, and any
other data or performance issues that Strategic
Commissioning Board (SCB) need to be made aware.

e In-focus — a more detailed review of performance across
a number of measures in a thematic area.

This is based on the latest published data (at the time of
preparing the report). This is as at the end of February 2019.

The content of the report is based on ongoing analysis of a
broader basket of measures and wider datasets, and looks to
give the Strategic Commissioning Board (SCB) the key
information they need to know in an accessible and added-
value manner. The approach and dashboard are aligned with
both Greater Manchester and national frameworks. The
development of the report is supported by the Quality and
Performance Assurance Group (QPAG).

The following have been highlighted as exceptions:
e A&E 4 Hour Standard

e Referral To Treatment- 18 weeks

Recommendations: The Strategic Commissioning Board are asked:

¢ Note the contents of the report, in particular those areas
of performance that are currently off track and the need
for appropriate action to be taken by provider
organisations which should be monitored by the relevant
lead commissioner

e Support ongoing development of the new approach to
monitoring and reporting performance and quality across
the Tameside & Glossop health and care economy

Page 61



How do proposals align with
Health & Wellbeing Strategy?

How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

How do proposals align with
the Commissioning Strategy?

Recommendations / views of
the Professional Reference
Group:

Public and Patient Implications:

Quality Implications:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the statutory
Section 151 Officer & Chief
Finance Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

How do the proposals help to
reduce health inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications? Has
a privacy impact assessment
been conducted?

Should provide check & balance and assurances as to
whether meeting strategy.

Should provide check & balance and assurances as to
whether meeting plan.

Should provide check & balance and assurances as to
whether meeting strategy.

This section is not applicable as this report is not received by
the professional reference group.

Patients’ views are not specifically sought as part of this
monthly report, but it is recognised that many of these targets
such as waiting times are a priority for patients. The
performance is monitored to ensure there is no impact
relating to patient care.

As above.

The updated performance information in this report is
presented for information and as such does not have any
direct and immediate financial implications. However it must
be noted that performance against the data reported here
could potentially impact upon achievement of CQUIN and
QPP targets, which would indirectly impact upon the financial
position. It will be important that whole system delivers and
performs within the allocated reducing budgets. Monitoring
performance and obtaining system assurance particularly
around budgets will be key to ensuring aggregate financial
balance.

As the system restructures and the constituent parts are
required to discharge statutory duties, assurance and quality
monitoring will be key to managing the system and holding all
part sot account and understanding best where to focus
resources and oversight. This report and framework needs to
be developed expediently to achieve this. It must include
quality and this would include complaints and other indicators
of quality.

This will help us to understand the impact we are making to
reduce health inequalities. This report will be further
developed to help us understand the impact.

None.
None reported related to the performance as described in
report.

There are no Information Governance implications. No

privacy impact assessment has been conducted.

Page 62



Risk Management:

Access to Information :

Delivery of NHS Tameside and Glossop’s Operating
Framework commitments 2017/18

* Appendix 1 — Health & Care Dashboard;
* Appendix 2 — Exception reports;

The background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting Ali Rehman by:

3B Telephone: 01613425637

3 e-mail: alirehman@nhs.net

Page 63



1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

BACKGROUND

This report provides the Strategic Commissioning Board with a health & care performance
update at April 2019 using the new approach agreed in November 2017. The report covers:

¢ Health & Care Dashboard — including exception reporting for measures which are areas
of concern, i.e. performance is declining and/or off target;

e Other intelligence / horizon scanning — including updates on issues raised by Strategic
Commissioning Board members from previous reports, any measures that are outside
the dashboard but which Strategic Commissioning Board are asked to note, and any
other data or performance issues that Strategic Commissioning Board need to be made
aware;

e In-focus — a more detailed review of performance across a number of measures in a
thematic area.

The content of the report is based on ongoing analysis of a broader basket of measures
and wider datasets, and looks to give the Strategic Commissioning Board the key
information they need to know in an accessible and added-value manner. The approach
and dashboard are aligned with both Greater Manchester and national frameworks. The
development of the report is supported by the Quality and Performance Assurance Group
(QPAG).

HEALTH & CARE DASHBOARD

The Health & Care Dashboard is attached at Appendix 1, and the table below highlights
which measures are for exception reporting and which are on watch.

EXCEPTIONS A&E- 4 hour Standard

(areas of concern) Referral To Treatment-18 Weeks

1
3
ON WATCH 4 Diagnostic tests waiting times
(monitored) 7 Cancer 31 day wait

11 | Cancer 62 day wait from referral to treatment

17- | IAPT

41 | LD service users in paid employment

40 | Direct Payments

45 | 65+ at home 91days

Further detail on the measures for exception reporting is given below and at Appendix 2.

A&E waits Total Time with 4 Hours at Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care
Foundation Trust (ICFT)

The A&E performance for February was 87.7% for Type 1 & 3 which is below the target of
95% nationally. Performance in February 2019 was better than that of February 2018 by
3.3%. Underlying demand continues to grow, a consequence of increased acuity (including
the beginning of a seasonal effect), and increased bed occupancy. It should be noted that
this performance meant that the Trust was ranked first in Greater Manchester and in the
upper quartile for the national peer

18 Weeks Referral To Treatment

Performance for February is below the Standard for the Referral to Treatment 18 weeks
(92%) achieving 90.4%. This is the same performance compared to the previous month,
January which also failed to achieve the standard at 90.4%. A number of providers are

Page 64



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.3

failing the national standard including Manchester Foundation Trust (MFT). MFT has seen
growth in GP referrals. This is primarily due to local GP referrals, but also increases from
commissioners outside of Trafford and Manchester, including ENT, cardiology and
paediatrics. Given the demand and capacity pressures, MFT are reporting that they may
not now meet the Referral to Treatment standard and waiting list ceiling target by March
2019. Actions include MFT to outsource where possible with existing contracts in place
with a number of providers including BMI, Spire, HCA and MSS. Support is to be provided
from NHS Improvement Intensive Support Team. Discussions are taking place with lead
commissioners re the need for comprehensive recovery plans.

OTHER INTELLIGENCE / HORIZON SCANNING

Below are updates on issues raised by Strategic Commissioning Board members from
previous presented reports, any measures that are outside the Health and Care Dashboard
but which Strategic Commissioning are asked to note, and any other data or performance
issues that Strategic Commissioning Board need to be made aware.

NHS 111
The North West NHS 111 service performance has deteriorated in all of the key KPIs for
February with none of the KPIs achieved the performance standards:

- Calls Answered (95% in 60 seconds) = 72.96%;
- Calls abandoned (<5%) = 6.9%;

- Warm transfer (75%) = 38.37%;

- Call back in 10 minutes (75%) = 53.53%.

Average call pick up for the month was 1 minutes 46 seconds. The Service has had
challenging month and performance against KPIs reflects this. Implementation of the
performance improvement plan continues with additional staffing due out of training in
February and March alongside improving the technology within the call centres and
collaboration with other 111 providers to identify efficiencies and better ways of working in
partnership.

52 Week waiters

The CCG has had a number of 52 week waiters over the last few months. The table below
shows the numbers waiting by month, which provider it relates to and the specialty.

Page 65



Patients waiting 52+
i Zero
CCG weeks on an incomplete L
Tolerance
pathway
. Manchester Foundation Zero
Provider L
Trust Tolerance
. |Stockport Foundation Zero
Provider L
Trust Tolerance
Provider |Leeds Teaching Hospital L zero
Tolerance
. The Raobert Jones and Zero
Provider ) L
Agnes Hunt Hospital Tolerance
] ; Zero
Provider |Pennine Acute L
Tolerance
Specialty |Plastic$ L zero
pECIEt\! astic surgery Tolerance
Specialty [ENT L zero
pecialty Tolerance
Specialty |T&0 L zero
pecialty Tolerance
Specialty | General L zero
pECIEt\f eneral surgery Tolerance
. Zero
Specialty [Ophthalmology L Tolerance
specialty |oth L zero
pecialty |Other Tolerance
3.4 There are 2 patients, both of these have now been seen. 1 at MFT, Breaches have
occurred at Manchester Foundation Trust in the specialty of Plastic Surgery (highly-
specialised DIEP (deep inferior epigastric perforator) flap reconstructive surgery procedure)
which has had capacity pressures. There is one patient waiting at Robert Jones and Agnes
Hunt hospital. We have been informed that this patient was awaiting ACI (Autologous
Chondrocyte Implantation). A harms review has been undertaken by the trust and no harm
was identified for the patient.
Elective waiting lists.
3.5 The operating guidance Refreshing NHS Plans for 2018/19 section 3.7 states:
“A more significant annual increase in the number of elective procedures compared with
recent years means commissioners and providers should plan on the basis that their RTT
waiting list, measured as the number of patients on an incomplete pathway, will be no
higher in March 2019 than in March 2018 and, where possible, they should aim for it to be
reduced.”
3.6 The table below shows the Referral to Treatment waiting list position for the CCG by month

compared to the baseline of March 2018.

Page 66



3.7

1
AR A A R AR R R
0 | 07 S8 | 16| 5% | B3R 0K

WoOB| Ak | WA K| Uk
IR L] 1B (18] Afh (181 Sdk | B Ek

=

a—
=
=
=
=
s
-
==
el
fa=
==1
—
u—
=
=]
=
=
=
==
-
=

nvalidted

This shows that the waiting list position as at the end of February 2019 is 8.5% Higher than
the March 2018 position. This is a deterioration compared to the previous month where it
was 5.5%. There are a number of providers where the waiting list is on the increase,
however the three key contributors are Tameside and Glossop ICFT, MFT, and Pennine
Acute. All three have growth in the following four specialties, Ophthalmology,
Gastroenterology, General Surgery and Urology. The ICFT continue to have a backlog in
Dermatology as seen in the table below.

Page 67



100- General Surgery A7) A6Y W76 B3 264 249) 2338| 2332) 2400 2,49 m) 27| 15| 2327| 1%
101- Urology ‘ 1041 11220 147 1072) 1158 L4 LI32) L0053 L1190 LI %) L144| 103 L8l 140
110- Trauma & Orthopaedics 78 251 IR0 1776|2839 2646|2810 2992 2972 2862 93| 275 M| 278 A
120-Ear, Nose & Throat (ENT) | 1342)  1318) 1388|135 1335 1335) 1296| 1311 123| 1254 88| 132 40| 1450 108
130- Ophthalmology 1258 172 147 1543 1677 170 1837 1397 1380 | L1%41| 683 | L814| 556| 1813] 561
140- Oral Surgery 0 0 0 0
150- Neurosurgery 8 1 30 31 66 8l 97| 10| 119 L0 11 - 4 i3
160 - Plastic Surgery 183 18 I 0| 2 41 59| 08| 1| N9 136 0| W) | %
170- Cardiothoracic Surgery i1 4 49 3 Y] & 5 4 i 5 b 51 55 4
300- General Medicine 90| 603 69 533 488 del| 4% 53| 40| M3 47| 40 10| 47| 1B
301- Gastroenterology W W0 82 &I Bl 760 848 89| 840 89 &7 4| 12| 91| 28
320- Cardiology 1015 91 1043 1042) 1035 1000 1,052 1,022 966| M6|- 69| 949|- 66| 983 I
330- Dermatology m & 97| 9% 1004) 1072) L132| LI158| 1120 935 158 877 100 89| 118
340- Thoracic Medicine 411 513 576 SB4| 356 55| M| 6L 62| 19| M| MB| 57| 65| W
400- Neurology i f 1 i 1 1] 1 12 9 f 1 1] 1 J
410- Rheumatology 3920 4| 47| 46| 334 A8 410| 49| 42| A9 1) 42| 0| 42 0
430- Geriatric Medicine 12 15 15 18 A AN U 17 2 #ooa) W B B 4
502- Gynaecology 1453 1412 1383 133)  13M2) 1430) 1395 | 1347| 137| 1282 1| 1313} 40| 145 3
X01- Other 801 2768  2803) 2884]  2861) 277B| 2604 | 2655 20| 2750 51| 279|- 12] 28| W
17103) 17411 17809 18031 18265 17980| 18,328 | 1§,791| 18777 | 18,087 984 | 13.046| 43| 1§552| 1449

3.8 The analysis of our activity shows that year to date referrals are 5.7% below plan and 4.6%
below 2017/18 which suggests that the increased backlog is down to capacity rather than
demand.

3.9 Discussions with the ICFT suggested the backlog would decrease for March 2019, however

we anticipate that they will not achieve the zero growth in waiting list.
MFT will end the year with a waiting list growth of circa 500.

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 As set out on the front of the report.

Page 68

It is expected that




Health and Care Improvement Dashboard

April 2019

Appendix 1

___|ndicator _______________________________________________________|sStandard Previous 2 data points |_____latest | Direction of Travel

O 00 N O U1 B W N PP

L s =
5 W N L O

15

Patients Admitted, Transferred Or Discharged From A&E Within 4 Hours
* Delayed Transfers of Care - Bed Days

* Referral To Treatment - 18 Weeks

* Diagnostics Tests Waiting Times

Cancer - Two Week Wait from Cancer Referral to Specialist Appointment
Cancer - Two Week Wait (Breast Symptoms - Cancer Not Suspected)
Cancer - 31-Day Wait From Decision To Treat To First Treatment

Cancer - 31-Day Wait For Subsequent Surgery

Cancer - 31-Day Wait For Subsequent Anti-Cancer Drug Regimen

Cancer - 31-Day Wait For Subsequent Radiotherapy

Cancer - 62-Day Wait From Referral To Treatment

Cancer - 62-Day Wait For Treatment Following A Referral From A Screening Service
Cancer - 62-Day Wait For Treatment Following A Consultant Upgrade
MRSA

C.Difficile (Ytd Var To Plan)

16 Estimated Diagnosis Rate For People With Dementia

17 ((%mproving Access to Psychological Therapies Access Rate

18 ghmproving Access to Psychological Therapies Recovery Rate

19 q?mproving Access to Psychological Therapies Seen Within 6 Weeks

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28
29

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies Seen Within 18 Weeks
Early Intervention in Psychosis - Treated Within 2 Weeks Of Referral
Mixed Sex Accommodation

Cancelled Operations

Cancer Patient Experience

Cancer Diagnosed At An Early Stage

General Practice Extended Access

Patient Satisfaction With GP Practice Opening Times
* data for this indicator is provisional and subject to change
111 Dispositions- - % Recommended to speak to primary and community care (Ranking out of 37)

111 Dispositions- - % Recommended to dental (Ranking out of 37)

95% Feb-19
3.5% Mar-18
92% Feb-19
1% Feb-19
93% Feb-19
93% Feb-19
96% Feb-19
94% Feb-19
98% Feb-19
94% Feb-19
85% Feb-19
90% Feb-19
Feb-19
0 Feb-19
0% Feb-19
66.7% Feb-19
1.25% Dec-18
50% Dec-18
75% Dec-18
95% Dec-18
50% Feb-19
0 Jan-19
18/19 Q3
2017
16/17 Q3
Mar-18
Mar-18
Jan-19
Jan-19

92.2%
3.2%
90.5%
0.8%
97.7%
95.9%
96.7%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
88.1%
100.0%
81.3%
2
-24.0%
80.7%
2.8%
51.2%
86.7%
100.0%
100.0%
0.62
1.2%
8.70
43.7%
82.1%

15% (23rd)
2% (36th)

89.7%
3.2%
90.4%
1.2%
97.0%
96.0%
96.3%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
82.7%
100.0%
62.7%
1
-25.0%
81.2%
3.4%
49.6%
82.1%
100.0%
91.7%
0.00
0.6%
8.80
54.2%
92.3%

16% (13th)
2% (36th)

87.7%
2.9%
90.4%
1.1%
97.6%
99.2%
98.7%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
97.3%
100.0%
59.1%
0
-25.0%
81.0%
3.4%
46.6%
74.3%
97.1%
92.3%
0.56
1.0%
8.80
54.6%
91.9%
62.0%

17% (10th)
2% (36th)

> > > 4 4P <

<
<
<

>

<

4?#?4?44444??4

A
vh>

\/_\
—
W
TV
TNV T
A~
N VY
V
V
N~ A~
YAV AN
VAV AGV =
/\/\/\_/-/\/R
=
S AL
//\/
RN
~.~
—_—
AN
—/
—
/



Appendix 1

-_ standard Previous 2 data points ______latest | Direction of Travel

31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48

111 Dispositions- - % Recommended home care (Ranking out of 37)

Maternal Smoking at delivery
%10-11 classified overwieight or obese
Personal health budgets
Percentage of deaths with three or more emergency admissions in last three months of life
LTC feeling supported
Quality of life of carers
Emergency admissions for urgent care sensitive conditions (UCS)
Patient experience of GP services
Overall Experience of making a GP appointment
Part 2a - % of service users who are in receipt of direct payments
Total number of Learning Disability service users in paid employment
Total number of permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes per 100,000 aged 18-64
Total number of permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes per 100,000 aged 65+
Total number of permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes aged 18+
Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from Hospital
% Nursing and residential care homes CQC rated as Good or Outstanding (Tameside and Glossop)
% supported accomodation CQC rated as Good or Outstanding (Tameside and Glossop)
% Help to live at homes CQC rated as Good or Outstanding (Tameside and Glossop)
U
&
@
S

28.1%
5.7%
13.3
628

82.7%

28 IR N 2 gB |

<
<
<

Jan-19 3% (22nd) 3% (26th)
18/19 Q3 14.4% 15.6%
2014/15 to 2016/17 33.6% 33.6%
18/19 Q2 11.40 16.10
2017 7.80 6.40
2016 03 62.90 62.40
2016 03 0.80 0.77
18/19 Q1 2951 2998
2018
Mar-18 68.9%
18/19 Q3 12.84% 13.71%
18/19 Q3 4.05% 6.83%
18/19 Q3 2.22 (3 Admissions)  2.96 (4 Admissions)
18/19 Q3 52.25 (60 Admission: 276.58 (109 Admissions)
18/19 Q3 63 113
18/19 Q3 77.4% 77.2%
Feb-19 69% 71%
Feb-19 100% 100%
Feb-19 85% 85%

Performance detiorating and failing standard
Performance improvinging and failing standard
Performance improving and achieving standard
Performance detiorating and achieving standard
Performance detiorating no standard
Performance improving no standard

No change in Performance and achieving standard
No change in Performance and failing standard

No change in Performance and no standard

3% (25th)
13.5%
33.8%
20.00

6.80
61.40
0.78

3087

81.6%
64.0%

13.56%
6.80%

8.8 (12 Admissions)
469.42 (185 Admissions)

197
79.9%
73%
100%
85%

3PP A € PP AP

\/
J

W

|

|



Health and Care Improvement— Exception Appendix 2

Type 183 A&E T&G ICFT Patients Waiting <4 Hours in A&E
. . . . Key Risks and Issues:
—m— ABE <4 Hour Waits ——The Mean (Average) —+— National Target (95%) ——Upper ControlLimit —e—Lower Control Limit

98.0% The A&E Typel and type 3 performance for February was 87.7% which is

96.0% below the National Standard of 95%.
@ s P e Late assessment due to lack of capacity in the department is the main
& o n / — . reason for breaches
e 7 < :
€ go0% ¢ Performance in February 2019 was better than that of February 2018 by
g 88.0% \ / \1 33%.
8 o \ / ¢ Underlying demand continues to grow, a consequence of increased acuity
E 84.0% \.\:p_m‘/ (including the beginning of a seasonal effect), and increased bed occupancy.
E = e |t should be noted that this performance meant that the Trust was ranked
‘.‘; 80.0% first in Greater Manchester and in the upper quartile for the national peer.
E 78.0%
®

76.0% T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1

Oct-17 Now-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nowv-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19
Actions:
Month ¢ Introduction of GP bay on IAU, allowing patients to be seen in a more timely

 Continued focus on stranded/ super- stranded patients;

¢ Daily performance meeting with the clinical teams to review the previous
day and prepare for day/ week ahead;

* New ED Live Dashboard now in use, providing real-time/ predictive data
about performance and flow in the Department;

ARE Waiting Times: Total time within 4 hours h'!’ Greater Manchester * Deployment of Ambulatory-care Tracker to improve handover to

. Ambulatory Care;
Provider - Feb-19 * Preparation for colocation of the Walk-in-Centre;

e Pilot of NWAS HALO undertaking triage as part of handover process;
» Reinforcing ‘Fit to Sit” message with triage practitioners and NWAS staff.

o Performance  =——=S5tandard

100%

80% - Operational and Financial implications:

60% - Failure of the standard will negatively impact on the CCG assurance rating.
However regular contact is maintained with GMHSCP and the local work

A0% being undertaken is recognised.

20% - . . - L .
The failure of this target will impact on the CCGs ability to obtain the money

0% - attached to this target for the Quality Premium Payment (QPP).

TEGICFT  Manchester PAHT




Health and Care Improvement— Exception

18 Weeks RTT: Patients on Incomplete Pathway Waiting Less 18 Weeks for Treatment

=#=% Waiting <18 Weeks = =———The Mean (Average) = =s=Upper Control Limit  =+=Lower Control Limit  —~—Target (92%)

92.5%

92.0% -\ Py - a - - . - . - . - - - . o °

< <~ <~ 7 \
~
91.0% \\

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
wﬂ' Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19

m Month

% PatientsWaiting Less than 18 Weeks

Monthly Referral to Treatment (RTT) waiting times for incomplete pathways

Feb-19
MHS Wigan Borough CCG 20,009 18,296 91.44% 92%
MHS Tameside and Glossop CCG 18,555 16,769 90.37% 92%
MHS Salford CCG 24,332 21,923 90.10% 92%
MNHS Oldham CCG 14,359 12,715 88.30% 92%
MHS Manchester CCG 43,620 38,511 88.29% 92%
MNHS Trafford CCG 17,8596 15,981 89.30% 92%
MHS Bolton CCG 23,536 20,810 88.42% 92%
MHSE Morth of England 1,103,457 974,314 88.29% 92%
NHS Bury CCG 13,604 11,959 87.91% 92%
MHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG 15,750 13,870 88.06% 92%
MHS Stockport CCG 27,341 23,355 85.42% 92%

Key Risks and Issues:

The RTT 18 weeks performance for February was 90.37% which is below the
National Standard of 92% .

Failing specialties are, Urology (89.92%), Trauma & Orthopaedics (83.55%),
Ophthalmology (86.20%), Plastic Surgery (74.10%), Cardio thoracic (76.36%),
Cardiology (91.86%, Gynaecology (91.96%) and Rheumatology (89.8%).
The performance at MFT at 86.18% is the key reason for the failure in
February with 499 people breaching. Stockport, Salford and Pennine trusts
also contributed to the failure accounting for a further 344 breaches.

T&O continues to be a challenge across most providers.

In MFT our concerns are around plastics, cardio thoracic, gynaecology and
cardiology in addition a recent review of long waiters and their PAS
highlighted 52 week waiters in general surgery, urology, T&O and ENT.
These have now been treated.

As lead Commissioner.

T&G ICFT as a provider are achieving the standard.

Actions:

MFT have advised the following.

oRTT task force is meeting weekly

eClinical review and root cause analysis is being undertaken for all breaches
of the 52 week standard

sReview of referral variation by practice and consider any implications by
referrer type and specialty

sReview the effectiveness of the Manchester gateway triage system

eThe RTT waiting list at MFT is to be validated

*Manchester CCG has agreed to fund additional independent sector
outpatient attendances and elective procedures in February and March 19
up to the financial value of £1.2m

*MFT to outsource where possible with existing contracts in place with a
number of providers including BMI, Spire, HCA and MSS

eSupport is to be provided from NHSI IST

Operational and Financial implications:

Failure of the standard will negatively impact on the CCG assurance rating.
However regular contact is maintained with GMHSCP and the local work
being undertaken is recognised.

The failure of this target will impact on the CCGs ability to obtain the
money attached to this target for the Quality Premium Payment (QPP).




Agenda Item 8a

Report to: STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD
Date: 24 April 2019
Executive Councillor Brenda Warrington — Executive Leader

Member/Reporting Officer: Pat McKelvey, Head of Mental Health and Learning Disabilities

Jacqui Dorman, Public Health Intelligence Manager
Subject: SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY 2019/2023

Report Summary: The number of deaths to suicide in Tameside and Glossop is
significant, with 75 deaths occurring in 2015/17 alone. This
strategy builds on our work to date and sets out an ambitious five
year plan for reducing and ultimately eliminating suicides in
Tameside and Glossop. To do this will require a co-ordinated
effort so that suicide prevention becomes ‘everyone’s business’.

Our vision is that no-one will see suicide as a solution, and our
ambition is therefore that there will be no more suicides in
Tameside and Glossop.

This strategy sets out how we will go about preventing suicide in
Tameside and Glossop, in line with our ambition. In order for this
to be achieved, all partners in every organisation in Tameside and
Glossop will need to understand and support this strategy.

Recommendations: To support the strategy and its ambition and objectives.
Financial Implications: I(|:1tegral_tec! ina Fund Section 75
(Authorised by Section 151 ommissioning Fun
Officer) Section : . S—
Decision Required By Strategic Commissioning Board
Organisation and CCG
Directorate
Additional Budget £5.691 million (Approved at SCB on
Allocation By 2021/22 30 January 2018)
Integrated Aligned
Commissioning Fund
Section
Decision Required By CCG Governing Body
Organisation and CCG
Directorate
Additional Budget £0.100 million (Approved at CCG
Allocation By 2021/22 Governing Body on 28 March 2018)

Additional Comments

On 30 January 2018 the Strategic Commissioning Board
approved an investment programme in Mental Health services
by an additional recurrent value of £5.791 million by 2021/22,
£5.691 million of which is within the Section 75 of the Integrated
Commissioning Fund, with £0.100 million within the aligned
fund. The aligned fund investment was approved at the CCG
Governing Body on 28 March 2018.

Whilst this report is not specifically requesting any further
additional funding, it should be acknowledged that there is a
clear investment plan which sets out the level of funding
available for each programme of work. The investment

Page 73




Legal Implications:
(Authorised by Borough
Solicitor)

How do proposals align with
Health & Wellbeing
Strategy?

How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

How do proposals align with
the Commissioning
Strategy?

Recommendations / views
of the Health and Care
Advisory Group:

Public and Patient
Implications:

Quality Implications:

How do the proposals help
to reduce health
inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
Implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications?

Has a privacy impact
assessment been
conducted?

programme included funding to support the prevention strategy

as explained in this report.

It is important to ensure that individual cases and the outcome of
inquest, which are an inevitable consequence, are taken into
account when devising this type of strategy. The Coroner will
require sight of and may require details of the governance and
rationale behind the strategy, the policy and any procedures and
processes which flow from this decision when considering this
category of death. They therefore must be kept under regular
review and linked to all agencies involved with inquests.

The suicide prevention strategy sets out the strategic direction to
reduce suicides in Tameside and Glossop. It directly aligns with
our priority to increase healthy life expectancy and reduce
inequalities.

The suicide prevention strategy sets out the strategic direction to
reduce suicides in Tameside and Glossop. It aligns with the
direction being taken by the GM Health and Social Care
partnership and the locality plan which aims to increase healthy
life expectancy and reduce inequalities

The Corporate Plan sets out the strategic direction of Tameside
and Glossop Strategic Commission and aligns with the
Commissioning Strategy through a focus on the life course —
Starting Well, Living Well and Ageing Well.

This report has been presented to the Health and Care Advisory
Group who were supportive of the introduction of the Strategy.

This strategy aims to reduce the number of suicides in Tameside
and Glossop and the impact this has on people and communities
and thus improving outcomes for our residents and patients.

No direct implications as a result of this report.

The suicide prevention strategy sets out the strategic direction to
reduce suicides in Tameside and Glossop. Suicides are high in
Tameside & Glossop and therefore the main aim of this strategy is
to improve outcomes for our residents and patient and reduce the
number of suicides in the groups and communities where suicides
are highest.

No direct implications as a result of the report.
No direct implications as a result of the report.

No direct implications as a result of the report.

Not applicable.

Page 74



Risk Management:

Access to Information :

This report fulfils the commitment for the delivery of a suicide
prevention strategy as part of our public health statutory duties
and aligns with the ambition for Greater Manchester to
substantially reduce deaths from suicide.

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting Jacqui Dorman, Policy, performance and intelligence:

3 Telephone:0161 342 2119

& e-mail: Jacqui.dorman@tameside.gov.uk

Page 75



{g{ Tameside NHS|

Tame5|de and Glosso
Metropo tan Borough Clinica | Commissionin g Groupp

Tameside & Glossop
Suicide
Prevention Strategy
2019-2023

4

Page 76




CONTENTS

1. FORWARD ...t e e e e e s e e e s 3
2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...ttt e et e et e e e e e e e nernee e e 3
3. WHAT WE WANT TO ACHIEVE IN TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP? .......ooioiiiiiierieeecee e 4
4. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THIS STRATEGY 7 ... 4
5. WHY WE NEED A SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY? ... 5
6. THE NATIONAL, REGIONAL AND LOCAL PICTURE ..ot 6
7. KEY RISKS FACTORS TO SUICIDE ...t 9
8. STRATEGIC APPROACH ... 11
9. TAMESIDE & GLOSSOP MENTAL HEALTH APPROACH........cocoiiiiiee e, 12

10. TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP PRIORITIES FOR ACTION
11. OUR OBJECTIVES
12. GOVERNANCE INFRASTRUCTURE

Main Author/editor

Jacqui Dorman

Report of

Suicide and self-harm prevention group

On behalf of

Health and Wellbeing Board, Strategic Commissioning Board and
the Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategic Group

Contributors

Pat McKelvey

Version

8.0 (Draft)

Version date

27th March 2019

Page 77



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

FORWARD

In England, one person dies every two hours as a result of suicide. When someone takes
their own life, the effect on their family and friends is devastating. Many others involved in
providing support and care will feel the impact. Suicide is often the end point of a complex
history of risk factors and distressing events; the prevention of suicide has to address this
complexity.

There are marked differences in suicide rates according to social and economic
circumstances, so suicide is also a marker of how fair our society is. Those who are out of
work, in poor housing, and/or with a significant health issue, (particularly those who are
dependent upon drugs and alcohol) are more at risk. Reducing risk requires system change
to address the wider determinants of mental health in addition to high quality health and
social care in its widest sense. This presents us with a considerable challenge at a time
when resources are more stretched than ever.

It is clear that nationally and locally our collective goal is that no-one will see taking their
own life as a solution, and to this end our commitment in Tameside and Glossop is that
we will do everything in our power to achieve this.

In developing our strategy we have taken inspiration from the Greater Manchester Suicide
prevention strategy' and thus we take the opportunity here to acknowledge the excellent
work of all our all colleagues working on this agenda across the region.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The number of deaths to suicide in Tameside and Glossop is significant, with 75 deaths
occurring in 2015/17 alone. The maijority of suicides occur in men, with increased risk seen
in those within the lowest socioeconomic groups and living in the most deprived
geographical areas. Other at risk groups includes those who self-harm, children and young
people and those with untreated depression. Individuals who have been bereaved by
suicide, those who are isolated, and those who misuse drugs and alcohol are also at
increased risk.

Less than a third of all suicides occur in individuals who are known to mental health
services, thus preventing suicide requires a co-ordinated whole system approach.

This strategy builds on our work to date and sets out an ambitious five year plan for
reducing and ultimately eliminating suicides in Tameside and Glossop. To do this will
require a co-ordinated effort so that suicide prevention becomes ‘everyone’s business’.

We have sought direction from the Suicide Prevention Strategy for England? from 2012, the
Five Year Forward View for Mental Health3, and the recently published PHE resources for
local Suicide Prevention Planning®.

! https://www.gmhsc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/GM-Suicide-Prevention-24.02.17.pdf
2 file:///N:/Transformation/MH%208&%20LD/Suicide/GM/Preventing-Suicide-England.pdf

3 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf

Page 78


file:///N:/Transformation/MH%2520&%2520LD/Suicide/GM/Preventing-Suicide-England.pdf

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

41

4.2

4.3

In Tameside & Glossop we are aiming for Suicide Safer Communities Accreditation and
have therefore based our strategy objectives in line with the ‘Nine Pillars of Suicide
Prevention’. These are:

A leadership/steering committee

A robust background summary of the local area to support goal setting
Suicide Prevention Awareness raising

Mental Health and Wellness promotion

Training for community members, lay persons and professionals
Suicide intervention and ongoing clinical support services.

Suicide bereavement support and resources

Evaluation measures including data collection and evaluation system
Capacity building/sustainability within communities

©e NN~

WHAT WE WANT TO ACHIEVE IN TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP?

Our vision is that no-one will see suicide as a solution, and our ambition is therefore that
there will be no more suicides in Tameside and Glossop.

We recognise that from the evidence that suicides are mainly preventable and avoidable.
With this in mind, our strategy sets out our plan to ensure that we harness the support and
contribution of all services and agencies so that we can reduce risk, proactively intervene
when needed, and effectively respond to those in crisis.

Our primary focus for the first two years of our strategy (2018/19 — 2019/20) will be to meet
the challenge set out within the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health i.e. to reduce the
rate of suicide by 10% by 2020. Thereafter we will seek to stretch this target further.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THIS STRATEGY?

This strategy sets out how we will go about preventing suicide in Tameside and Glossop, in
line with our ambition that there will ultimately be no more suicides. In order for this to be
achieved, all partners in every organisation in Tameside and Glossop will need to
understand and support this strategy.

Our strategy is intended to stimulate a social movement for change in the way we think and
act in relation to suicides and suicide prevention. We aim to enhance the skills of our wider
workforce in relation to assessing and managing risks and supporting those who are
affected or bereaved, to reduce the stigma attached to talking about suicide and mental
health more openly, and to promote suicide safer communities.

As previously stated this strategy is based primarily on the Greater Manchester suicide
strategy but with a focus on the outcomes and priorities for Tameside and Glossop. It will

4

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/585411/PHE_loc
al_suicide_prevention_planning_practice_resource.pdf

Page 79



5.1

5.1.1

51.3

515

also link with the priorities and strategic framework developed for Derbyshire 2018/21, as
the Glossop resident population fall under the responsibility of Derbyshire County council
within the local authority area of High Peak®. However from a registered population
perspective, patients registered with a Glossop GP are the responsibility of the Tameside &
Glossop Strategic Commission and therefore this strategy encompasses the Tameside
resident population and the Tameside & Glossop registered population.

WHY WE NEED A SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY?
Key drivers

Suicide is a major mental health, social, economic, and public health issue.® It is a major
cause of early death and an indicator of underlying poor mental health at a population level
and represents a devastating loss for individuals, families and communities and carries a
huge financial burden.” The highest numbers of suicides are found in men aged 45-54
years, and in women aged under 45 years.

By 2020/2021 our local health and social care system faces an estimated financial deficit of
£42 million to £180 million® indicating the need for radical transformation. The impacts of
mental health on our wider health care system are considerable: we know that poor mental
health worsens physical illness and raises total health care costs by at least 45%, for
example, an estimated 12% - 18% of all NHS expenditure on long term conditions is linked
to poor mental health and wellbeing.

Most importantly, this strategy recognises that suicide has a significant toll on others — i.e.
estimates suggest that for every person who dies from suicide at least 10 people are
directly affected.® Also for each case of suicide we know that there are around nine others
that will have attempted suicide. Thus each suicide is an indication of a significant number
of individuals who need help and support.

The key national driver for the development of local suicide prevention strategies and action
plans was set out within the 2012 strategy for England Preventing Suicide in England, a
cross government strategy to save lives'™. The requirement for a comprehensive local
suicide strategy is considered to be an effective mechanism in reducing deaths by suicide
by supporting the combination of a range of interventions.

More latterly, the Five year forward view for Mental Health'' set a requirement for all local
areas to have Suicide Prevention plans in place by 2017.

5 Derbyshire self-harm and suicide prevention framework 2018/21

6 https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/a-to-z/s/suicide

7 Pitman AL, Osborn DPJ, Rantell K, King MB. 2016 Bereavement by suicide as a risk factor for
suicide attempt: a cross-sectional national UK-wide study of 3432 young bereaved adults.
BMJ Open 2016 Jan 1;6(1)

8 Greater Manchester Suicide prevention strategy 2016

% https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/a-to-z/s/suicide

10 preventing Suicide in England: A cross government strategy to save lives (2012)
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-for-england

11 The five year forward view for mental health (2016)

Page 80


https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/site-elements/documents/pdf/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/suicide-prevention/derbyshire-suicide-prevention-strategic-framework.pdf

5.2

5.2.1

6.1

6.1.1

A Tameside and Glossop approach that follows the Greater Manchester approach also
presents an opportunity to achieve parity of access for all our residents, through a
combination of a framework for action to which all boroughs can pledge their support and
the potential for economies of scale when commissioning interventions for Tameside and
Glossop with the whole of Greater Manchester. It will also allow us to promote the
prevention of suicide as everyone’s business; with key stakeholders (including the media)
joining forces to support workers and residents to reduce the stigma surrounding suicide,
and to take action.

Outcomes we want to achieve in Tameside and Glossop Suicide Prevention.

Our strategy supports us in focusing on all six areas of the national strategy in the long-
term, however the outcomes we want to achieve for the whole system in the short term
are'2:

1. Reducing the risk in Men

Preventing and responding to self-harm

Improving outcomes for children and young people and women during pregnancy and
postnatally

Treating Depression more effectively in Primary Care

Improving Acute Mental Health Care Settings

Tackling High Frequency Locations

Reducing Isolation and Loneliness

Improving Bereavement Support /Postvention

w N

O N O A

THE NATIONAL, REGIONAL AND LOCAL PICTURE

National

The recent publication of the 2016 National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide
by People with Mental lliness7 (NCISH) shows that suicide is the biggest killer of men
under 49 years and it remains the leading cause of death in people aged 15-29'3. The
majority of people (two thirds) who die by suicide are not in contact with mental health
services' and in England one person dies as a result of suicide every 2 hours.'®

For every one person who dies from suicide, at least 10 others are directly affected. In
2017, there were 4,451 deaths from suicide in England, of which 224 were in Greater
Manchester and 19 were in Tameside. From 2004 to 2017 there was a 26% fall in suicide
rates in men aged 30 to 34. However since 2006, suicide rates in men aged 45-59 have
risen by 11%. We also know that specific groups appear to be at higher risk. The following
risk factors have become more common as antecedents to suicide:®

12 Appleby,L (2016) ‘Priorities for Suicide Prevention action plans’ in Local Suicide Prevention Planning — A

Practical Resource. Public Health England.

13 Office of National Statistics, What do we die from? (2015)

14 HM Government Preventing suicide in England A cross-government outcomes strategy to save lives (2012)

15 Self-harm, suicide and risk: helping people who self-harm (2010) Royal College of Psychiatrists

16 Appleby L et al (2016) National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental lliness. The
University of Manchester. Commissioned by the Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership (HQIP)

Page 81



6.1.3

6.1.5

6.1.7

6.2

6.2.1

e Isolation

e Economic adversity

e Alcohol and drug misuse
¢ Recent self-harm

People in the most deprived areas are ten times more at risk of suicide than those in the
most affluent group living in the most affluent area. The strongest predictor of suicide is
previous episodes of self-harm with the most common antecedent to suicide being alcohol
use.

Nationally the most common methods of suicide are hanging and strangulation (47%), self-
poisoning (overdose) (21%) and jumping and multiple injuries (mainly jumping from a height
or being struck by a train) (11%). Less frequent methods are drowning (4%), gas inhalation
(including carbon monoxide poisoning (3%), cutting and stabbing (3%) and firearms (2%).

Suicides amongst those who are under the care of mental health services appears to be
decreasing overall, although this picture is not uniform — with inpatient suicides falling
significantly (by 60%) following the decree by government in 2003 to eliminate ligature
points on inpatient mental health wards, although there are still in excess of 75 inpatient
deaths each year.

An increase in suicides under the care of crisis teams is clear from the data which is
considered to be as a result of pressure on the system i.e. as a consequence of community
crisis teams taking on more complex clients as a result of scarcity of inpatient beds."”

The NCISH report indicates that effective crisis teams can have an essential role in
reducing suicides - a third of suicides amongst those under the care of mental health
services have been discharged from hospital within the preceding 7 days. 30% of suicides
in this group occur in the space between discharge and the first outpatient appointment at 7
days plus, reducing this gap to 2-3 days can reduce this to 11%"8.

Greater Manchester
The total population of Greater Manchester is approximately 2.8 million people. In 2017

there were 2249 deaths by suicide in Greater Manchester. The greatest number (31) were
seen in Bolton and Salford, with the lowest in Trafford (N=15) (table 1)

17 Greater Manchester suicide audit 2017
18 Appleby L et al (2016) National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental lliness. The
University of Manchester. Commissioned by the Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership (HQIP)

19 ONS:

Www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/suicidesbylocalauthori

ty

Page 82



6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

Table 1 Numbers of suicides by Borough (2017)

Local Authority h LT
of
Suicides
Bolton 31
Bury 13
Manchester 30
Oldham 18
Rochdale 18
Salford 31
Stockport 19
Tameside 19
Trafford 15
Wigan 30
Greater Manchester 224

Tameside and Glossop

As the Locality of Tameside and Glossop covers two local authority areas and as previously
stated this Strategy covers both Tameside and Glossop, however as the public health
responsibility for suicide prevention sits with the local authorities the majority of the publicly
available statistics reported in this strategy are at a Tameside level only. Further work will
take place with Derbyshire County Council to ensure the whole system approach is
embraced equally in Glossop as in Tameside. As also previously mentioned, this strategy
will link closely with the priorities for suicide prevention for Derbyshire using their Suicide
prevention framework 2018/21 as a reference in the development of our suicide prevention
action plans.?°

Of the 4,451 deaths registered in 2017 for suicide in England, suicides in Greater
Manchester constituted around 5% (n=224) of these, reflecting the significant regional and
national burden of suicide within the population.

In 2017 there were 19 deaths registered for suicide in Tameside, this is nineteen too many
and places Tameside 5th highest across Greater Manchester for numbers of suicides in
2017 .Between 2015/17 there were 5 suicides across Glossop.

Of the 224 deaths from suicide in Greater Manchester in 2017, suicides in Tameside
constituted around 8% of these, reflecting the significant local burden of suicide within our
population.

20 Derbyshire self-harm and suicide prevention framework 2018/21

Page 83



Chart 1: Rates of Suicide in Greater Manchester (2015/17)
Lower Upper

Area Value cl ci
England 96 H 9.4 9.7
CA-Greater Manchester 9.7 — 9.0 10.4
Bolton 119 —_— 95 146
Bury 8.0 P 5.7 1.0
Manchester 9.3 —_— 75 113
Cldham a3 — 6.1 11.0
Rochdale 8.4 — 62 112
Salford 12 [ — 96 154
Stockport 9.0 — 70 115
Tameside 12.0 102 162
Trafford 73 — 53 99
Wigan 11.2 — 9.0 13.6

Sowrce: Public Health England (bassd on QNG source dafa)

6.3.5 Rates of suicide in Tameside have fluctuated somewhat but overall have been on the rise
since 2002, peaking in 2010, but rising again from 2011. (Chart 2) The overall rate of
suicide in Tameside between 2015/17 was 12.9 (per 100,000 residents),?' (chart 1) making
this the highest rate in Greater Manchester over the 3 year period, with significant variation
between wards and different population groups.

Chart 2: Trends in suicide in Tameside 2002-2017

Trends in Suicide in Tameside
35 -
30
25

20

number of suicides

15

0 T T T T T T T T T T T T
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Source ONS

7. KEY RISKS FACTORS TO SUICIDE

71 Understanding the key risks in relation to suicide enables targeted approaches to those
most in need of intervention. A local suicide audit suggested that Tameside fits the national
and regional picture with regard to overarching demographic, social and economic factors
which place residents at higher risk of suicide.

21 Suicide prevention profiles_ PHE_ 2014/16

Page 84



7.2

7.3

7.4

Men are five times more likely to die by suicide than women in Tameside,?? three times
higher on average in England?® and people in the lowest socio-economic group and living in
deprived areas appear to be more at risk of suicide than those in the most affluent groups
living in the most affluent areas.?*

Local evidence suggests that those most at risk are:

e Men

o People with prior mental health issue such as depression and anxiety
e Relationship breakdown

e Loss of job

e  Chronic pain or disability

o People with longstanding issues with drugs and or alcohol

¢ People with financial issues/debt

These are similar to what the national evidence suggests that those most at risk nationally

are:

e Men

¢ Individuals aged 35-49

¢ People with a recent history of self-harm

o People in the care of mental health services

e People in contact with the criminal justice system

e Specific occupational groups, such as doctors, nurses, veterinary workers, farmers and
agricultural workers?® and veterans.

The incidence of self-harm as a precursor to suicide has seen a steep rise, calling for better
assessment of those presenting to services. In 2016/17 there were 512 hospital admissions
due to self-harm in Tameside.?® Of these, evidence suggests that patients can often
present with a complex history of risk factors and events leading up to admission including:

e Untreated depression

e Unemployment

e Debt

¢ Relationship breakdown and bereavement including by suicide
e Drug and alcohol misuse

e Social isolation?”

22 A suicide audit for Tameside 2013-2016

23 http://web.ons.gov.uk/ons/rel/subnational-health4/suicides-in-the-united-kingdom/2014-registrations/

24 Platt, S. Inequalities and suicidal behaviour; In O’Connor, R.C. et al. International handbook of suicide prevention:
research,

policy and practice. 2011

25 Op.cit. HM Government (2012)

26 https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-
health/profile/suicide/data#tpage/4/gid/1938132834/pat/126/par/E47000001/ati/102/are/E08000008/iid/21001/age

/1/sex/4

27 PHE Local suicide prevention planning A practice resource (2016)

Page 85



7.5 Key risk factors for the under 25s are:28

o Family factors such as mental iliness

e Abuse and neglect, Bereavement and experience of suicide
e Bullying, Suicide-related internet use

e Academic pressures, especially related to exams

e Social isolation or withdrawal

e Physical health conditions that may have social impact

e Mental ill-health, self-harm and suicidal ideas

7.6 In contrast, certain protective factors are evident from the data on suicides, which include:

o Effective coping and problem solving skills

e Presence of reasons for living, hopefulness and optimism
e Physical activity and health

o Family connectedness

e  Supportive schools and Social support

o Religious participation, Employment

e Lack of exposure to suicidal behaviour

o Traditional social values

e Access to health treatment®

7.7 It is reasonable to assume therefore that strategies which seek to increase these protective
factors at a population level are likely to be of benefit in reducing overall risk.

8. STRATEGIC APPROACH

8.1 National Strategy

8.1.1 The Five Year forward view for Mental Health (2016) sets out the challenge to reduce
suicides by 10%, and several strategies around the UK have clearly stated their intent to go
much further than this — toward a zero suicide approach. This too is our ambition. We
intend to adopt a focused approach to achieving this goal by targeting those deaths which
are most preventable by identifying specific at-risk groups, communities or settings for
action. We will use the intelligence gathered via the GM and local Suicide Audits to inform
where our efforts might be best targeted in addition to national priority groups. This strategy
acknowledges and builds on a substantial body of work in relation to suicide prevention in
Greater Manchester and reflects the learning of a programme of sector led improvement
undertaken in 2013. Our overarching objectives are aligned with the six national priorities
(2012) and national refresh (2017).

28 National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental Iliness (NCISH) Suicide in children
and young

people. (2016)

29 Scottish Government Social Research Risk and Protective Factors for Suicide and Suicidal Behaviour: A Literature
Review

(2008)

Page 86



8.1.2 The strategic priorities nationally are set out below and this strategy principally focuses on
actions that support those objectives which can be delivered or supported by utilising a
Greater Manchester and local approach.

8.2 National Priorities for Action
8.2.1 The National Suicide Prevention strategy of 2012 set out six priority areas for action:3°

1. Reduce the risks in key-high risk groups

2. Tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups

3. Reduce access to means of suicide

4. Provide better information and support to those bereaved or affected by suicide

5. Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
6. Support research, data collection and monitoring

8.2.2 These six areas for action have been used as a framework for this Strategy, and to develop
our overarching aims and objectives and supporting action plan.

8.2.3 The more recent national strategy refresh (January 9th 2017) stays true to these themes
with an additional emphasis on

o Better and more consistent local planning and action by ensuring that every local area
has a multi-agency suicide prevention plan by 2017, with agreed priorities and actions.

o Better targeting of suicide prevention and help seeking in high risk groups such as
middle-aged men, those in places of custody/detention or in contact with the criminal
justice system and with mental health services

¢ Improving data at national and local level and how this data is used to help take action
and target efforts more accurately

¢ |mproving responses to suicide

o Expanding the scope of the national strategy to include self-harm prevention in its own
right.

30 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-for-england

Page 87



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-for-england

9.1

9.1.1

9.1.3

9.2

9.3

TAMESIDE & GLOSSOP MENTAL HEALTH APPROACH

The overarching Tameside & Glossop Mental Health Approach

This suicide prevention strategy forms part of an overarching approach for mental health in
Greater Manchester and in Tameside and Glossop. This broader strategy for GM is
summarised in Appendix 2, and sets out the vision to improve child and adult mental
health, narrow the gap in life expectancy and ensure parity of esteem with physical health.
The vision also commits to shifting the focus of care toward prevention, early intervention
and resilience and toward delivering a sustainable mental health system. Simplified and
strengthened leadership and accountability is at its core, as is the enablement of resilient
communities, the engagement of inclusive employers and close partnership working with
the third sector.

To achieve these goals in Tameside and Glossop we intend to strengthen our mental
health system, and this will be achieved through four key characteristics which run
throughout our plans:

Prevention
Access
Integration
Sustainability

A number of ‘golden threads’ also run throughout our strategy, including

o Parity of Esteem

¢ Research deployed to inform best practice

¢ Using technology to provide new and innovative forms of support

o Leverage the learning from successful programmes (e.g. Troubled families)
o Workforce Development,

This Suicide Prevention strategy stays true to these principles

As one of four national sites chosen by the Innovation Unit our local Living Life Well
Programme, supported by the Big Lottery Fund, will design a new model of care that
ensures that people with mental health conditions will

e Have no gap between services

e Have no wrong door and no silo working

¢ Get swift and easy access to life changing support and interventions
o Get help in a crisis and get the right support required

e Have access to early support to prevent crises from happening

e Have less need for in-patient care

e Have access to alternatives to hospital admission

Starting with the 101 Days for Mental Health Project in summer 2018 we have co-produced
a new model of care in the neighbourhoods that meets the currently unmet mental health
care needs of individuals in Tameside and Glossop. We are expanding the principles of this
model into our work on mental health crisis care.

Page 88



9.4  All of this new development is supported by the Strategic Commissioning Board’s
commitment to improving the mental health of the Tameside and Glossop population by
agreeing to prioritise increasing investment to improve parity of esteem.

9.5 The Board has agreed to a plan to invest £6million recurrently from 2018 until 2021 on a
phased basis in order to support the following objectives:-

o Affordability;

o Development of robust business cases for each scheme;

e Phased approach to building complex services;

e Recognition of the time lag in recruitment to mental health posts.

9.6 The investment is focussed on:

¢ Increasing opportunities for people to stay well in the community
¢ Increasing opportunities to get help before/during a crisis
o Making effective use of secondary care

10. SUICIDE PREVENTION OUTCOMES WE WANT TO ACHIEVE

10.1  Our key priority areas for actions and outcomes for preventing suicide in Tameside and
Glossop are described in the recent Public Health England resource for suicide
prevention3'. Following the completion of the Tameside and Glossop suicide audit this will
be enhanced to reflect the findings. It is also important to note that this suicide prevention
strategy cannot operate in isolation. As stated previously, suicide is complex and
intrinsically linked to deprivation, unemployment, debt, substance misuse, social isolation
and other adverse experiences people in Tameside and Glossop live with. Therefore this
strategy needs to work alongside the corporate plan, (Appendix 3), the local poverty
strategy and the health and wellbeing strategy.

1. Reducing the risk in men

We will reduce risk in men, in particular middle aged men, we will
do this by focusing on economic disadvantage such as debt and
or unemployment, social isolation and drugs and alcohol misuse.
A focus on developing treatment and/or support settings that are
more acceptable and accessible by men

31 Appleby,L (2016) ‘Priorities for Suicide Prevention action plans’ in Local Suicide Prevention Planning — A
Practical Resource. Public Health England

Page 89



work [
way
OVQ living g?ﬂ\um

ling
contentments::-
s ‘"*“p legﬂﬂdseh;a

ke,
iy Illhlluw‘

lnﬁ
1 friends

iy ahle"ho\hh

‘“‘"f l mmd
sw.;ee
AIMM

2. Preventing and responding to self- harm

o We will develop a care pathway and services for adults and
young people in crisis, and psychological assessment for self-
harm patients.

e Acknowledgement that support for young people will be
distinct from that of adults.

3. Mental Health of Children and Young People (and parents
in pregnancy and first two years of life)

We will work in partnership with health, social care, schools and
youth services, including maternity and health visiting to increase
awareness and training of professionals so they are able to
identify those at risk of suicide and intervene where necessary.

4. Improved Care, pain management and mental health in
people with long term conditions

This includes ensuring people with long term conditions are
managing their condition and any pain effectively through self-
care and regular condition and medicine reviews, and using
social prescribing to enhance quality of life.

5. Improve the general mental wellbeing and resilience in
the Tameside population through opportunities

e To be more physical active and socially included

e Tolearn and engage and have access to Improved
employment opportunities

e To have access to good public transport links

e To have access to help and support early when needed

6. Improve Economic opportunities for the Tameside
population

Including opportunities to attract good employers that offer well
paid jobs, reduced unemployment, in particular in those in long
term unemployment in people with mental health conditions,
learning disabilities and physical health conditions

Page 90


https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=n9q6n2/%2b&id=96DC84CA4B5C75C34003ED53C353D81ADF4837BE&thid=OIP.n9q6n2_-C-ahlle08K1GVAAAAA&mediaurl=http://www.metanoia.org/suicide/muchpain.gif&exph=242&expw=251&q=not+coping+with+pain&simid=608045914324929640&selectedIndex=3&cbir=sbi
https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=zH9tGyUH&id=5DE0C72DAED12AF0520AC52704FC5910FB3A1BF6&thid=OIP.zH9tGyUH9yLaFtFMOhUr5gAAAA&mediaurl=http://www.stconlethscc.ie/uploads/2/5/7/3/25731111/pmh-mindmap_1_orig.png&exph=259&expw=440&q=coping+and+happy+communities&simid=607987008891718529&selectedIndex=129&cbir=sbi
https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=6vPFA%2bdR&id=32D31FC0AFF3F89716484F87E51FAE0264EECFB4&thid=OIP.6vPFA-dRli--6A3fxuVQNAHaHa&mediaurl=http://youngmindsmatter.telethonkids.org.au/contentassets/5fa62e11c0b5410eb72c514656a3f723/ymm-logo-750x750.jpg&exph=750&expw=750&q=young+minds+mental+health+graphic&simid=607994366152344946&selectedIndex=26&cbir=sbi
https://www.bing.com/images/search?q=Education+Opportunities&FORM=IRIBIP
https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=zH9tGyUH&id=5DE0C72DAED12AF0520AC52704FC5910FB3A1BF6&thid=OIP.zH9tGyUH9yLaFtFMOhUr5gAAAA&mediaurl=http://www.stconlethscc.ie/uploads/2/5/7/3/25731111/pmh-mindmap_1_orig.png&exph=259&expw=440&q=coping+and+happy+communities&simid=607987008891718529&selectedIndex=129&cbir=sbi
https://www.bing.com/images/search?q=Education+Opportunities&FORM=IRIBIP

11.

7. Tackling high frequency locations

This includes making high risk public areas safer and
working with the local media organisations and groups to
prevent imitative suicides

8. Bereavement Support and Media engagement

We will ensure there is better provision of information and
support for those bereaved or affected by suicide and
support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to
suicide and suicidal behaviour

OUR OBJECTIVES

The action plan for 2019/20 to support the delivery of this strategy can be found in
Appendix 1. The action plan will be the parameter by how we ensure the implementation
of our objectives to achieve the outcomes we aspire to. The measure of success of both the
strategy and action plan will be a substantive reduction in suicide in Tameside & Glossop
over the course of the strategy. Below is a summary of our strategic objectives and
associated ‘pledges’ that this strategy makes for 2019-2023.

Strategic Objectives

11.2  Our strategic objectives are described against the Suicide Safer Communities Accreditation
‘Nine Pillars of Suicide Prevention’. These are

©o NGO RrWN=

A leadership/steering committee

A robust background summary of the local area to support goal setting
Suicide Prevention Awareness raising

Mental Health and Wellness promotion

Training for community members, lay persons and professionals
Suicide intervention and ongoing clinical support services.

Suicide bereavement support and resources

Evaluation measures including data collection and evaluation system
Capacity building/sustainability within communities

Pillar 1: A leadership/steering committee

(@)
(b)
(c)

Securing high level political support for suicide prevention, with support from local
political mental health champions within Tameside and Glossop
We will establish an executive chair and review the Terms of Reference for the
Tameside & Glossop Suicide and Self Harm Prevention Group
The Group is responsible for developing and delivering this Strategy and be held to
account by the Tameside and Glossop Mental Health Strategy Steering Group. The

Page 91


https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=U2I4MGW7&id=E10BE609D8026DF04B664C7D0186E1001EAFC320&thid=OIP.U2I4MGW7-o37J3X4Gm4EogHaGE&mediaurl=http://c8.alamy.com/comp/S1D9M5/suicide-prevention-barriers-in-place-on-an-old-viaduct-in-county-durham-S1D9M5.jpg&exph=1065&expw=1300&q=preventing+suicides+in+public+places&simid=607989053281469968&selectedIndex=25

(d)

Group will also provide and annual update to the Tameside Health and Well-being
Board

Membership of the group will include people with lived experience, voluntary sector
groups, health providers, blue light services and commissioners.

Pillar 2: A robust background summary of the local area to support goal setting

This Strategy is based on the Tameside audit of suicides registered between 2013 and
2017

We will redo the audit every 5 years and share learning across Greater Manchester
and support the production of a GM annual audit

We will use the audit process to identify high risk locations and or new and emerging
means of suicide and put in place plans to reduce related risks.

We will support and attend the annual suicide prevention conference for Greater
Manchester to share learning, good practice and strengthen links between agencies

Pillar 3: Suicide Prevention Awareness raising

(@)
(b)

We will work to develop and deliver the Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention
Campaign 2019 and deliver a local boost to the campaign

In partnership with Greater Manchester and Public Health England, we will look at the
potential for a social marketing initiative that will stimulate a social movement for
change with regard to eliminating the stigma associated with suicide and self-harm.

We will review the learning from other localities and work with local residents to design
a campaign to target men in particular

We will work with colleagues in the media to agree standards of reporting of suicide
and maximise opportunities to signpost and raise awareness

We will work together to develop a World Suicide Prevention Day

Being open, receptive and supportive of social movements that improve public
awareness of suicide prevention through campaigns or social media platforms

Pillar 4: Mental Health and Wellness promotion

We will embrace Public Health England’s new 3-year mental health campaign in 2019.
Working with colleagues in schools to raise awareness of emotional wellbeing amongst
young people

Working with the GM Parent Infant Mental Health Programme to promote mental well-
being of parents in pregnancy and beyond

Promoting mental health in our workplaces and amongst our staff, especially those in
higher risk occupations, and promote approaches that reduce stigma

We will work with local faith group leaders to share knowledge and understanding of
suicide in relation to culture and faith.

Pillar 5: Training for community members, lay persons and professionals

(@)

We will develop a Training Ladder and establish a rolling programme of training at all
levels, monitoring the uptake each year

Page 92



(b) We will support staff groups who wish to develop their knowledge skills and confidence
such as primary care practitioners and pharmacies, and in management of risks in
primary care

(c) We will work with primary care professionals such as GPs and practice nurses to better
understand risk by utilising models such as the five Ps psychological assessment
tool.3?

(d) Working with the community and voluntary sector by supporting collaboration such as
a voluntary sector Health and Wellbeing Alliance in Tameside and Glossop

11.8 Pillar 6: Suicide intervention and ongoing clinical support services

(@) We will ask Pennine Care to demonstrate its work toward the elimination of suicides in
in-patient and community mental health care services through reporting on a bi-annual
audit of quality improvement in Tameside and Glossop services in relation to the 10
ways to improve patient safety, listed below,:33

o Safer wards (e.g. prescribing, eliminating ligature points)
e Early follow up on discharge (within 2-3 days)

e No out of area admissions

e 24 hour crisis teams (sign up to the crisis care concordat)
e Family involvement in ‘learning lessons’

e Guidance on depression

e Personalised risk management

e OQutreach teams

e Low staff turnover

e Dual Diagnosis support (i.e. Alcohol and Drugs)

(b) Our neighbourhood mental health Minds Matter service will offer swift and easy access
to people wanting support and advice regarding their mental health across all five
neighbourhoods

(c) We will develop a STORM pathway within our Minds Matter service; ensuring people
identified with high risk of suicide are offered comprehensive support

(d) We will improve crisis services including establishing a mental health observation and
assessment room and increasing the capacity of the Home Treatment Team support
people at home in place of a hospital admission

(e) Review the management of depression in primary care and scope the potential for a
minimum/optimal standard for risk assessment tools in primary care

(f) We will establish an All-Age RAID service at Tameside Hospital, including a service for
vulnerable children and young people, working in partnership with the GM CYP Crisis
developments

(g) We will review of Parent Infant Mental Health Pathway following the roll out of the new
GM Perinatal Community Mental Health team in order to strengthen further
comprehensive support to both parents in pregnancy and the two years following birth.

(h) We will finalise our review of Psychological Therapies with the goal of continuing to
improve access to and waiting times for psychological therapy. This includes IAPT for
long term conditions.

32 https://www.psychologytools.com/worksheet/friendly-formulation/
33 Appleby,L et al (2016) Making Mental Health Care Safer: Key findings from the National Confidential Inquiry
into Suicides and Homicides. Manchester University.

Page 93



(i) We will review local self-harm care pathways against NICE guidance (CG133) and
complete a self-harm audit to enable us to better understand the reasons behind self-
harm and to assess outcomes against evidenced standards.

() We will establish a process for triangulating serious incidents in our mental health
services and publishing outcomes.

(k) We will seek to standardise post-incident reviews in line with Greater Manchester

() We recognise the need to build on access to information online and through other
means. Greater Manchester are developing an online resource so we will build into our
online resources locally including the Life in Tameside and Glossop website.

11.9 Pillar 7: Suicide bereavement support and resources

(@) We will develop a Suicide Bereavement Pathway with people with lived experience
including consideration of need for group based and 1-1 interventions. This will include

¢ The GM wide suicide bereavement service and associated website
e support offered to families by Pennine Care teams following a suicide of patient

11.10 Pillar 8: Evaluation measures including data collection and evaluation system

(@) A SMART Action Plan for 2019/20 is included in Appendix 1, the populated version will
be updated each year

(b) We will agree key data and develop a bi-annual review of this to track our progress and
use the learning to improve our understanding, our communications, our strategy and
our services

(c) We will support the GM approach to the use of ‘Real-Time Data’ in maximising our
response to suicides.

(d) We will develop our processes across Tameside and Glossop to foster a culture of
learning from suicide attempts and the avoidance of a blame culture

11.11 Pillar 9: Capacity building/sustainability within communities

(a) We will consult with community and voluntary sector colleagues about the needs of
specific groups such as LGBT, Asylum seekers, those with a Long-term condition,
drugs and alcohol treatment clients and individuals in contact with the justice system to
identify options for improving outcomes in these groups

12. GOVERNANCE INFRASTRUCTURE

121 The strategy will be delivered by the Tameside & Glossop Suicide and Self Harm
Prevention Group which will identify partners to deliver progress against each work stream.
The suicide prevention work stream is closely aligned to the mental health and wellbeing
‘Living Life Well’ programme of work, the Locality Plan and the One Corporate Plan
(Appendix 3).

12.2 A programme management approach will be utilised to focus on delivery and measurement

of impact during 2018/19 and 2019/20 which will form the basis of the work of the Suicide
and Self-Harm Prevention Group.

Page 94



G6 obed

Tameside and Glossop Mental Health Strategy Governance

s

1
|
|
|
|
|
|
1

1
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

!

r
|
1
|




APPENDIX 1: Suicide Prevention Action Plan 2019/20

Number Objective

Action

Timescale

To further develop and establish a
strong suicide prevention strategy group

To produce regular reports and briefings
to the suicide prevention group, mental
health steering group and Health &
Wellbeing Board

To increase suicide prevention
awareness

a) We will secure a permanent chair to the group, review the membership
and terms of reference.

b) The group will send regular reports and strategy implementation
updates to the Mental Health Strategic Steering Group

a) A local suicide audit for Tameside & Glossop will be produced every 5
years and we will contribute to the annual GM audit

b) We will produce regular briefings to the suicide prevention group
regarding the ‘Real time’ data provision provides via GM

a) We will support and deliver locally the GM and national suicide
prevention campaigns

b) In partnership with GM we will develop and deliver a social marketing
initiative to stimulate a social movement around self-harm and suicide to
reduce stigma

c) In partnership with GM we will work with local our local media to agree
standards for reporting of suicides

Suicide
prevention
strategic group

Jacqui Dorman

Jacqui Dorman

Communication
team Tameside &
Glossop

Suicide
prevention
strategy group

June 1%t 2019

April 15t 2022

December 315t 2019

a) Spring and

Autumn 2019

b) December 315t
2020

c) April 1t 2020



/6 abed

To promote mental health and wellness
and improve population resilience

To skill up our whole workforce on
suicide prevention to help them to be
confident to ask/support others

To increase support for people at risk of
suicide

a) We will encourage schools to sign up to the ‘mentally health schools’
programme and school staff will be encouraged to take up the ‘zero
suicide alliance’ e-learning module. We will capture the take up of the e-
learning as part of the overall monitoring of take-up of suicide prevention
training.

b) A directory of mental health and suicide prevention support and
services will be established and maintained through the ‘Life in Tameside
& Glossop’ Web portal

c) We will communicate and promote the services and support available
to residents who need help relating to suicide risk area such as debt and
money advice, housing, relationships and criminal justice etc.

d) We will undertake a focused piece of work within the Living Life Well
Programme with men to understand how best to reach them to promote
mental wellbeing.

a) We will develop a comprehensive mental health and suicide prevention
training ladder that covers the needs of the whole workforce.

b) We will identify the training resources needed and develop/
commission an annual rolling programme

a) We will develop an overnight ‘safe haven’ for people assessed as
requiring immediate support

b) We will establish a STORM Pathway within our neighbourhood mental
health development for people assessed as needing on-going support.

c) We will continue work with GM to develop and roll out the new GM
Suicide Bereavement Service and, when operational, review if there are
any unmet needs in Tameside and Glossop.

Charlotte Lee
(population
health)

Jacqui Dorman
and Arianne
Whitley

Jacqui Dorman
and
Communications
Team

Arrianne Whitley

a) Pam Watt and
Vicky Broadbent

b) Pam Watt and
Vicky Broadbent

Pat McKelvey
and Hayley
McGowan

a) December 31t
2019

b) September 30th
2019

c) March 315t 2020

d) December 31t
2019

a) June 30t 2019

b) August 31t 2019

December 31t 2019



86 abed

To ensure coherence across the system

To improve access to Suicide
bereavement support and resources

To evaluate and learn from suicides

To increase capacity building and
sustainability within communities

a) We will undertake an audit on self-harm and from this identify any
actions within this strategy.

b) We will work with the leads for the Children and Young Peoples
Emotional and Mental Health Locality Transformation Plan to ensure
coherence with this Strategy

a) We will scope bereavement support options locally with a view to
implement a local offer in line with SOBs standards

b) We will implement the Greater Manchester suicide bereavement offer
across Tameside & Glossop

c) We will develop a bereavement pathway in relation to the ‘real time’
GM data to ensure people who need support are signposted to
appropriate services and interventions

a) We will ensure that we learn from suicide and episodes of self-harm
through an annual review of serious case reviews, CDOP reports and
coroner’s reports ensuring recommendations from the review are being
implemented. This will also be part of the suicide audit process.

b) we will complete a bi-annual review of the GM real-time data and
report to the suicide prevention group

We will work with all our voluntary sector organisations to identify at risk
groups within our communities to ensure that suicide prevention is
embedded within our high risk populations and that these populations are
aware of the help and support available

Jacqui Dorman

Kristy Nuttall

Suicide
prevention
strategy group

Jacqui Dorman
and Pat
McKelvey

Suicide
prevention group

Jacqui Dorman

Suicide
prevention group
and Action
Together

a) 315t October
2019

b) 315t July 2019

a) 31%t December
2019

b) June 30t 2019

c) 15t April 2020

315t December 2020

315t December 2020

315t December 2020



66 abed

APPENDIX 2

Appendix 1 — Greater Manchester Mental Health Strategy.

Compelling Vision

Strategic Plan on a Page

CHARACTERISTICS

PREVENTION

ACCESS

INTEGRATION

SUSTAINABILITY

new workforce roles

Parity of Esteem

Research Deployed to Inform Bast Practice

Technology providing new innovative formes.
of support

Leverage Successful Programmes e.g.
Troubled Families

Prepare the Workforee for Integrated Joined

Up System
Priorities i
Identified for Tf; e tsitrtaiteguc
Years 1 and 2 nitiatives

Early Years:Children & Family

Improve Mental Wellbeing

Building Capacity forSelf care

Suicida Prevention

Early intervention

Targeted public health campaigns

Supporting vulnerable pzople

Workplace and employment support

Responsive and clear access arrangements connecting people to the support they nead at the right time

Single Point of Access and Care Co-
ordination

IAPT Services of Consistent High
Quality for G

Improving Support for Carers and
Parents at Risk

Introduce 24,7 Mental Health and 7
Day Community Provision for CYP

and 7 Day Commnunity Provision for

Er\sule consistent 247 Mental Health

dults includiEE crisiz concordat |

Consistent $tandards and Protocals
for Step Up and Step Down

Self-sufficiency in GM Provision {out
of arca placements)

Eating Disorders for Children and
Young Peogple

Consistent ADHD services for zll age
Eroups

Integrated place baszed
commissioning & contracting aligned

Wertical & horizontal integration
across community, primary & acute
care

Whaole person integrated vertica care
pethway acrossa horizontal integration
of care

A strong partnership with the
community and voluntary sector

Accat-based approach and devalution
estate managed centrally

Place bazed and person centred life course approach improving outcomes, population health and health inequalities through initiatives suchas hezlth and work.

Parity of mental health and physical ilness through collaborative and mature cross-sector working across public sector bodies & voluntary organisations

Ensure the best spend of the GM funding through improving financial and clinical sustainability by changing contracts, incentives, integrating and improving T & investing in

AINABILITY

System leadership
Working practices
Programme pricritsation

Pooling of mental health budgets

Provider Landscape Redesign

Integrated monitoring, standards
and KPis

Payment and incentives

Regulation reform

Integrated data sharing

New investment streams

i i i i i S

CASE FOR CHANGE

PRIORITY POPULATION GROUPS

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES



00T abed

APPENDIX 3

Transforming Tameside & Glossop

Tameside Our People - Our Place - Our Plan et g

Einical Commiasionisg Group
For everyone every day

[LTT LI

AREELREEEER
[LTT LI
Tarrrrerey
LETXITT T )

LILIIERILR T L]

Very best start im lifie Resilient families and
whera children are and hope supporiive networks to
¥ learming and maving protect and grow our
encouraged io thrive confidenca from young peopla
and devalop childbood i adulthood

throwgh better choices
and reducing inequalitizs

LXIXT)

H H Inoroass the number of good H non=oar H s related hamm
H H quaiity appronticeships H H H
H H daihverad H Increase noooss to. H H

pubile transparn

LLLLII AN RNl LIl Y]]

Great Place

Vibrant Economy




Report to:

Date:

Reporting Member / Officer
of Strategic Commissioning
Board

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Financial Implications:
(Authorised by the statutory
Section 151 Officer & Chief
Finance Officer)

Agenda Item 8b

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD
24 April 2019

Councillor Brenda Warrington — Executive Leader

Stephanie Butterworth — Director Adult Services

PROVISION OF HOME SUPPORT AND EXTRA CARE
HOUSING

The current six year contract for the provision of home care
and extra care housing is in its third year, due to end 30
October 2019. There is provision within the contract to extend
for up to an additional three years. Given the significance of
the service, the performance of the six contracted providers
and the nature of the transformation work underway it is
recommended that this option be taken up.

That approval is given in accordance with Procurement
Standing Order F1.1 and F1.2 (contracts can only be extended
where there is an extension provision in the contract) of the
Council’s Constitution to extend the provision of home support
and extra care housing contract by up to three years from 31
October 2019.

Integrated Section 75
Commissioning

Fund Section

Decision
Required By

Strategic Commissioning Board

Organisation and Tameside MBC — Adult Services

Directorate

£ 3.1 million GM Transformation Fund
(non-recurrent) to 31 March 2020.

Budget
Allocation

Additional Comments

The additional cost impact of the support at home model is
being financed by GM Transformation funding. The funding
will support the enhanced hourly rate paid to providers until 31
March 2020 (£17.60 proposed for 2019/20).

The additional recurrent cost pressure of the new model (gross
before any additional client fee income) is estimated to be
c£1.9 million from 2020/21 onwards and is currently included
with the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. This equates
to an approximate Council Tax increase of 2%.

The additional cost is contributing towards the estimated
revised Council financial gap of £45.4 million by 2023/24. The
estimated gap has increased to the previous gap of £36.1
million reported within the 2019/20 Council budget report on
26 February 2019. This is due to the inherent risk that
expenditure within Children’s Social Care will not reduce in line
with the Medium Term Financial Plan expectations.

Members should note that this report was discussed at the
Locality Executive Group meeting on 14 March 2019 to
determine the economy wide savings that will be realised from

Page 101




Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

How do proposals align with
Health & Wellbeing Strategy?

How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

How do proposals align with
the Commissioning
Strategy?

Recommendations / views of
the Health and Care Advisory
Group:

Public and Patient
Implications:

Quality Implications:

the new support at home model that will resource the recurrent
cost pressure from 2020/21. At this stage the related savings
initiatives are yet to be confirmed so the cost pressure remains
an estimated recurrent Council liability risk.

It should also be noted that the cost assumptions include a
number of hours under the phased roll-out of the new model,
paid at the increased hourly rate, with an estimated full roll out
of the new model from 1 April 2019. This represents an
estimated increase of 7.9% on the initial 3 year contract value.
This is primarily due to the increase in the hourly rate paid to
providers in the new model which will have increased by c£3
per hour on the rate paid to providers on the previous model,
which equates to an approximate 20% increase. The increase
in the hourly rate will be financed by GM Transformation
Funding to the end of the current contract period.

This is a request to extend 6 related contracts due to expire on
30 October 2019 for 3 years under Procurement Standing
Order F2 for which provision has already been provided within
the contracts. In all such cases the consent of the Strategic
Commissioning Board is required.

There is a further consideration because there is a proposed
price variation of 7.9%, and so it will be necessary to scrutinise
the value for money submissions to ensure continuing regard
for the Council’s fiduciary duty to the public purse. Any
contract variation over 2.5% of a £1million contract, or 5% of a
£500,000 contract requires the consent of the SCB because it
is outside the permitted variation rules under Procurement
Standing Order F2 is justified.

The proposals align with the Developing Well, Living Well and
Working Well programmes for action

The proposed change in practice is consistent with the
following priority transformation programmes:

* Enabling self-care
* Locality-based services
* Planned care services

The service contributes to the Commissioning Strategy by:

+  Empowering citizens and communities
+  Commissioning for the ‘whole person’
+  Creating a proactive and holistic population health system

This report has not been presented at the Health and Care
Advisory Group.

None.

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council is subject to the duty
of Best Value under the Local Government Act 1999, which
requires it to achieve continuous improvement in the delivery
of its functions, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness

Page 102



How do the proposals help
to reduce health
inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications?
Has a privacy impact
assessment been
conducted?

Risk Management:

Access to Information:

The proposal will not negatively affect protected characteristic
group(s) within the Equality Act

The proposed change in policy and practice will be applied to
adults regardless of ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation,
religious belief, gender re-assignment, pregnancy/maternity,
marriage/ civil and partnership

None

The necessary protocols for the safe transfer and keeping of
confidential information are maintained at all times by both
purchaser and provider. The purchasers Terms and
Conditions for services contains relevant clauses regarding
Data Management.

The project is monitored and managed monthly under the
Project Management Office with a risk scoring matrix integral
to this.

There is currently an estimated inherent financial risk to the
Council of £1.9 million recurrently from 2020/21 until the
economy determines the related savings that will be realised
from the new support at home model to resource this cost
pressure.

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected
by contacting Dave Wilson

B Telephone: 0161 342 3534

B <] e-mail: dave.wilson1@tameside.gov.uk

Page 103


mailto:dave.wilson1@tameside.gov.uk

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

INTRODUCTION

This contract is for the Provision of Home Support Services. The service is aimed at enabling
service users to remain living well at home; living as independently as possible, achieving
and maintaining their full potential in relation to their physical, intellectual, emotional and
social capacity.

The service delivers:

e Support at home for all adults aged eighteen years and above, children and complex
care; and

e Extra Care Support for older people, people with a learning disability and people with
mental health needs (aged fifty five and over).

The aim is to provide a good quality, personalised outcome-focused service appropriate to
the needs and outcomes identified in a service users support plan and to demonstrate this
through assistance with personal, practical and social/lemotional tasks associated with
ordinary living and a fulfilling and meaningful life.

The service is currently being provided by six organisations split over the four localities
covering twenty nine post code zones across the borough.

BACKGROUND
A tendering exercise was undertaken in April 2016:

¢ To establish a standing list of providers to deliver helping people live at home services to
the citizens of Tameside;
o To shortlist up to twelve providers to tender for a zoned area.

During the tender process providers were informed of the intention to change the delivery
model to help ensure a more sustainable homecare market and utilising an additional £3.1m
of GM monies; from Year 2 onwards and incrementally over the life of the contract:

Commissioning on the basis of outcomes;

A strong on-going re-ablement emphasis;

Staff to have a blend health and social care roles;
Providers and service user to coproduce care plans.

Six providers were awarded contracts starting from 31st October 2016 and ending on 30
October 2019 with the option, subject to approval and negotiation between the parties, to
extend for up to a further three years.

The six providers awarded contracts were:

Able Care and Support;
Careline;

Comfort Call;

Creative Support;
Direct Care;

Medacs.

The remaining organisations who were not awarded a zone were awarded a place on an
approved list.

Page 104



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

POSITION TO DATE

This contract was designed to deliver significant transformational change over the course of
its life-time. Whilst the contract remains demand-led, under the new model providers are
paid on commissioned hours not — as per the original model - actual hours.

This is key to delivering an outcomes focussed model rather than one based on ‘time and
task’. Providers need to be able to work more creatively and flexibly with hours to better
engage with a reablement approach and to support people to become more resilient and
better connected with their local communities; an approach entirely consistent with ASC’s
commitment to an asset based approach to support and one which, for a number of people,
will reduce their reliance on paid support.

This service is part of a wider GM transformation programme to help ensure a more
sustainable home care market and utilising an additional £3.1m of GM Transformation
funding. This was indicated in the tender exercise. From Year 2 onwards, the contracted
providers have been working closely with commissioners and other stakeholders to transform
the delivery model:

e Providers are being tasked with producing co-produced care packages that fully explore
self-care and family support, new technologies and connecting people with their
communities generally and with community activities specifically.

e For some people this will mean their outcomes will only partly be met via paid support. By
facilitating access to better, more person centred support, providers can — and are —
actively reducing the hours of paid support service users receive.

e All six providers are increasingly reporting reduced packages of support through to
neighbourhoods for authorisation.

e Utilising the day-to-day knowledge they have of people needs, providers are now able to
have conversations with service users and their families about how much support they
actually need and they are able to do this in a timely manner. For example, providers
report that people often return home from hospital with more support hours
commissioned than they actually need once they are home; they are well placed to notice
this and to change/flex support accordingly.

Central to the GM programme is the recognition that by transforming homecare the whole
system will benefit. A sustainable homecare market where providers can recruit and retain a
well-trained, motivated and career-focussed workforce, skilled in delivering person centred
support, will be able to release capacity:

e In assessment and commissioning functions within neighbourhood teams.

e In the District Nursing Service in relation to the delivery of low level healthcare tasks;
hence Tameside’s support at home service being the focus of the GM Health and Social
Care Partnership’s Living Well at Home Workforce Trailblazer: neighbourhood-based
blended roles.

¢ In the moving and handling teams as the current duplication is eradicated; providers
carry out their own moving and handling assessment to ensure the safety of their staff
and of the people they are supporting.

e In the community physio service as peoples mobility is maintained positively by the
service.

With all six providers due to be linked to the Digital Health service the expectation is that, as
with the use of this service in residential and nursing care settings, there will be a reduction
in unnecessary presentation at A&E and GP surgeries as well as a reduction in associated
unnecessary ambulance call-outs. Supporting more people to live healthier lives at home, for
longer will, over time, reduce the reliance on expensive residential and nursing care.

Page 105



3.6

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

Closer, more integrated working between providers and the hospital and providers and the
neighbourhoods will improve discharge outcomes for people; potentially shortening stays on
the wards and reducing the likelihood of repeat admissions. The increased involvement of
family, friends, neighbours and community groups in an individual’s support — facilitated
directly as a result of providers coproducing support plans with people - will reduce the need
for paid support; a fundamental component of a person centred health and social care
system.

VALUE OF THE CONTRACT

Of significance to the contract value going forward is that under the new model, the fixed
hourly rate paid to providers is currently £17.20 per hour as opposed to £14.77 per hour
under the previous model (£13.67 per hour at the time of original contract award). The
proposed rate for 2019/20 for the new model is £17.60. The increased hourly rate, based on
a nationally agreed cost of care model, is a key strand of the transformation aimed squarely
at making the hourly rate for home care workers, now pegged at £9 per hour, competitive
and appealing whilst also ensuring the business models for providers are more viable and
sustainable (see attached STAR report presented at Local Executive Group March 2019,
Appendix 1).

Due to this increase in the hourly rate, the estimated contract value will, in all likelihood
exceed the estimated contract value at the three year period end. The estimated of the three
year gross value of the contract at 31 October 2019 is estimated at £25,626,230.

These figures do include a number of hours, under the phased roll-out of the new model,
paid at the increased hourly rate, with full roll out of the new model from 18 March 2019. This
represents an estimated increase of 7.9% on the initial 3 year contract value. This is
primarily due to the increase in the hourly rate paid to providers in the new model which will
have increased by c. £3 per hour on the rate paid to providers on the previous model, which
equates to an approximate 20% increase. The increase in the hourly rate will be financed by
Greater Manchester Transformation Funding to the end of the current contract period. There
is then an ongoing gross cost pressure of an estimated £1.9 million per annum from 2020/21.

Of possible significance in estimating the value of contract over the next three years is that
there are early indications that the number of hours commissioned are gradually decreasing.
As below, hours per week from May 2018 to January 2019 have reduced; commissioned by
some 800 hours a week, actual by 900. This remains very basic information, and not readily
attributable to the new model per say, but it does start to show a reduction in hours at a time
when demographics would suggest an increase.

Commissioned hours Actual hours
May 2018 9,600 8,500
Jan 2019 8,800 7,600

The contract includes, as standard, a 6-month no fault termination clause; hence were we to
extend for the full three years provisioned for we would still be able to terminate the contract
at any point — with enough time to re-procure — should the circumstances arise.

PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDER SEEKING TO WAIVER/AUTHORISATION TO
PROCEED

Authorisation is sought pursuant to Procurement Standing Order F1.1 and 2 of the Council’s

Constitution to extend the provision of home support and extra care housing contract by up
to three years from 31 October 2019.

Page 106



6.1

6.2

7.1

GROUNDS UPON WHICH WAIVER/AUTHORISATION TO PROCEED SOUGHT

The option to extend should be approved because a new model of support at home
(homecare) is in the process of being introduced. Given the high profile and significance of
this work and the need to change a model that is increasingly unsustainable and yet key to a
well-functioning health and social care economy, extending the contract will enable
commissioners to continue to work in partnership with providers to undertake the
implementation of the new model and bed-in a new outcomes focussed model with greater
long-term sustainability.

Continuing with the current providers will:

Ensure the continuity required to facilitate wholesale transformational change.

Provide stability to service users and their families during any changes in service
delivery that may be made.

Send a strong message to our providers, the neighbourhood teams, wider stakeholders
and the general public that Tameside is committed to ensuring its citizens have access
to a modern, person centred service, fit for purpose — supporting people to live well and
independently at home — in a sustainable home care market, delivered by stable,
financially viable home care providers.

Conversely, not extending the contract would send an altogether different message to
the market and beyond.

RECOMMENDATION

As stated on the report cover.

Page 107



APPENDIX 1

Section 1: Requesters Details

Tameside
Dave Wilson

Adults
Home Care

342 3534
Trevor Tench

Team Manager
Dave.wilson1@tameside.gov.uk

| am seeking a request to modify a Contract
Section 2: Agreement Details

Services (Social Care Related)

Provision of Home Support and Extra Care Housing

Company Name and Address STAR UID

1. Able Care and Support, 10a Corporation Street, | 7418
Hyde, Cheshire, United Kingdom, SK15 1AB

2. CARELINE HOMECARE LIMITED, 2nd Floor, | 7419
Olympic House, 3 Olympic Way, Wembley,
Middlesex. HA9 ONP

3. COMFORT CALL LIMITED, 2nd Floor, Olympic | 7420
House, 3 Olympic Way, Wembley, Middlesex.
HA9 ONP

4. CREATIVE SUPPORT, Wellington House, 131 | 7421
Wellington Road South, Stockport, SK1 3TS

5.DIRECT CARE TAMESIDE LIMITED, Office | 7422
suite 5, Derek Ashton Court, 77 Mottram Road,
Stalybridge, SK15 2QP

6. MEDACS HEALTHCARE PLC, 800 The | 7423
Boulevard, Capability Green, Luton LU1 3BA

The service is aimed at enabling service users to remain living
well at home; living as independently as possible, achieving and
maintaining their full potential in relation to their physical,
intellectual, emotional and social capacity. Each of the six
contracts is for three years with provision to extend for up to an
additional three years. Contracts commenced 31 October 2016
and are due to end 30 October 2019.

This form is seeking permission to extend these contracts to the
maximum term until 30 October 2022

Section 3: Changes to Agreement Value
£23,750,000*

£25,626,230*

£27,940,730, (estimated)*
£53,566,960 (estimated)*
SR813201 Account code R5409

NB Extra care (which is part of this) is paid from a
different budget code SR813500, same account

Page 108




Section 4: Relevant Dates

February 2019

Note: No Agreement should be modified before the date at which
this Modification is approved by the SRO for Legal. Where the
date of modification of the Agreement precedes the Modification
Request Date, an explanation as to why must be provided by the
submitting Officer. Please note that the submitting officer is also
required to submit a Retrospective/Above Threshold Breach
Report to the relevant Corporate Director, for noting, highlighting
the non-compliance with Rule 9 of the Council’'s CPRs.

30 October 2019 30 October 2022

Section 5: Other Required Changes to Agreement

Section 6: Justification

A substantial change would occur where the Modification:

a) renders the Contract or the Framework Agreement materially different in character from
the one initially concluded;

b) introduces conditions which, had they been part of the initial procurement procedure,
would have allowed for the admission of Tenderers other than those initially selected;
allowed for the acceptance of a Tender other than that originally accepted, or attracted
additional participants in the procurement procedure;

c) changes the economic balance of the Contract or the Framework Agreement in favour of
the Contractor;

d) extends the scope of the Contract or Framework Agreement considerably; or

e) replaces a Contractor in cases other than those provided for above

For the avoidance of any doubt, where successive Modifications are made, the value is
calculated as the cumulative value of the successive Modifications.

Change Provision: This ground applies irrespective of the monetary value of

the Modification. The change is provided for in the initial

procurement documents in a clear, precise and
unequivocal review or option clause, provided that such
clauses:

a) state the scope and nature of possible modifications
or options as well as the conditions under which they
may be used; and

b) is not substantial.

Economic, Technical or | This ground applies where there is a requirement for | [J
Interoperability additional Supplies, Services or Works by the Council
Ground: that have ‘become necessary’ and were not included in the
initial procurement and where a change of Contractor:

a) cannot be made for economic or technical reasons;

Page 109



or
b) would cause significant inconvenience or
substantial duplication of costs for the Council

provided that each increase in price does not exceed
50% of the value of the original Contract or Framework
Agreement.

The 50% limit applies to each amendment but, successive
Modifications must not be aimed at circumventing the
Regulations.

*Use of this ground requires the contracting authority
to publish in OJEU a “Notice of modification” of a
contract during its term.

Unforeseen Changes This ground applies where there are changes arising | [

from circumstances which a diligent contracting

authority could not have foreseen, provided:

a) that the change is not substantial; and

b) that each increase in price does not exceed 50% of
the value of the original Contract or Framework
Agreement.

The 50% limit applies to each amendment but, successive
Modifications must not be aimed at circumventing the
Regulations.

*Use of this ground requires the contracting authority
to publish in OJEU a “Notice of modification” of a
contract during its term.

Non-substantial This ground applies where: O

changes

a) a change is a minor change that is not substantial,
and

b) the value of the change (or the net cumulative value of
successive changes) is less than the relevant
applicable EU threshold and less than10% of the
initial Contract value for Supplies and Services
Contracts or 15% of the initial Contract value for
Works Contracts.

Corporate Changes This ground applies where certain corporate changes have | [
occurred in the Contractor such as a merger, takeover or
insolvency, provided:

a) universal or partial succession into the position of the
initial Contractor, following corporate restructuring,
including takeover, merger, acquisition or insolvency, of
another contractor that fulfils the criteria for
qualitative selection initially established; and

b) that this does not entail other substantial changes to
the Contract or Framework Agreement.

Further Supporting Information. You should detail why you require the Modification and why
you believe the Modification could not be considered substantial:

Page 110




Each contract contains provision at clause 5.3 to extend for a further 3 years until 30 October
2022.

We wish to take up this option to extend because a new model of support at home
(homecare) is in the process of being introduced. Given the high profile and significance of
this work — it is part and parcel of the wider GM Living Well at Home transformation
programme — and the need to change a model that is increasingly unsustainable and yet key
to a well-functioning health and social care economy, extending the contract will enable
commissioners to continue to work in partnership with providers to undertake the
implementation of the new model and bed-in a new outcomes focussed model with greater
long-term sustainability.

Continuing with the current providers will;

e Ensure the continuity required to facilitate wholesale transformational change

e Provide stability to service users and their families during any changes in service
delivery that may be made

e Send a strong message to our providers, the neighbourhood teams, wider
stakeholders and the general public that Tameside is committed to ensuring its
citizens have access to a modern, person centred service, fit for purpose — supporting
people to live well and independently at home - in a sustainable home care market,
delivered by stable, financially viable home care providers

e Conversely, not extending the contract would send an altogether different message to
the market and beyond.

Some 12 months in to the roll-out of the new model providers are:

¢ Finding recruitment — and perhaps more crucially, retention — of staff easier; partly
linked to improved pay, partly to a perception that with improved roles and
responsibilities, the role is more appealing and a valued and legitimate career choice
with career progression built in

¢ In some cases, experiencing reduced sickness levels where staff are working on the
new model

e Thinking more creatively and in a more person centred way to deliver good quality
care to ensure people live well, and independently, at home

e Able to take on additional low level health tasks — pressure care with District Nurses in
the West Neighbourhood shared care pilot for example or the digital health service
being rolled out across all six providers — that start to take the heat out of the wider
health economy

e Starting to work with a number of GP practices to target ‘frequent flyers’ to test
whether, by meeting outcomes through different support and possibly in the process
addressing issues like social isolation, loneliness, anxiety and depression, people
may be less inclined to use their GP service unnecessarily

¢ Already starting to consider/request manual handling assessments that, with the right
training, risk assessments and equipment allow single handed care; meaning in turn,
packages of support and hospital discharges can happen quicker and, in most
instances, in a more person centred way.

Contract Value*

This contract was designed to deliver significant transformational change over the course of
its life-time. As signalled and fully explored during the tender process, from Year 2 onwards,
the delivery model began to change. Whilst the contract remains demand-led, under the new
model providers are paid on commissioned hours not — as per the original model - actual
hours. This is key to delivering an outcomes focussed model rather than one based on ‘time
and task’. Providers need to be able to work more creatively and flexibly with hours to better

Page 111




engage with a reablement approach and to support people to become more resilient and
better connected with their local communities; an approach entirely consistent with ASC’s
commitment to an asset based approach to support and one which, for a number of people,
will reduce their reliance on paid support.

Because the contract is demand-led there was no definitive contract value at the time we
went out to the market. Based on indicative hours at the time, and the hourly rate pertaining
at the time, the OJEU notice indicated an estimated contract value of £7,916,667 pa, making
the original estimated value across all six contracts over the initial three year term
£23,750,000. However, it should be noted that this estimate did not account for an increased
hourly rate since that was not set or agreed until February 2018.

Of significance to the contract value going forward is that under the new model, the fixed
hourly rate paid to providers is currently £17.20 per hour as opposed to £14.77 per hour
under the previous model (£13.67 per hour at the time of original contract award). The
proposed rate for 2019/20 for the new model is £17.60. The increased hourly rate, based on
a nationally agreed cost of care model, is a key strand of the transformation aimed squarely
at making the hourly rate for home care workers, now pegged at £9 per hour, competitive and
appealing whilst also ensuring the business models for providers are more viable and
sustainable.

Due to this increase in the hourly rate, the estimated contract value will, in all likelihood
exceed the estimated contract value at the three year period end. The estimated of the three
year gross value of the contract at 31 October 2019 is estimated at £25,626,230.

These figures do include a number of hours, under the phased roll-out of the new model, paid
at the increased hourly rate, with an estimated full roll out of the new model from 1 April 2019.
This represents an estimated increase of 7.9% on the initial 3 year contract value. This is
primarily due to the increase in the hourly rate paid to providers in the new model which will
have increased by ¢ £3 per hour on the rate paid to providers on the previous model, which
equates to an approximate 20% increase. The increase in the hourly rate will be financed by
GM Transformation Funding to the end of the current contract period. There is then an
ongoing gross cost pressure of an estimated £ 1.9 million per annum from 2020/21.

Of possible significance in estimating the value of contract over the next three years is that
there are early indications that the number of hours commissioned are gradually decreasing.
As below, hours per week from May 2018 to Jan 2019 have reduced; commissioned by some
800 hours a week, actual by 900. This remains very basic information, and not readily
attributable to the new model per say, but it does start to show a reduction in hours at a time
when demographics would suggest an increase.

Commissioned hours Actual hours
May 2018 9,600 8,500
Jan 2019 8,800 7,600

Section 7: Value for Money

In the absence of a competitive process, it is important that evidence is presented of value for
money. Please detail here how you can demonstrate this, and include any supporting
information at Section 9

This tendered service is part of a wider GM transformation programme to help ensure a more
sustainable home care market and utilising an additional £3.1m of GM Transformation
funding. This was indicated in the tender exercise. From Year 2 onwards, the contracted
providers have been working closely with commissioners and other stakeholders to transform
the delivery model.

e Providers are being tasked with producing co-produced care packages that fully
explore self-care and family support, new technologies and connecting people with

Page 112




their communities generally and with community activities specifically

e For some people this will mean their outcomes will only partly be met via paid
support. By facilitating access to better, more person centred support, providers can
— and are — actively reducing the hours of paid support service users receive

e All six providers are increasingly reporting reduced packages of support through to
neighbourhoods for authorisation

e Utilising the day-to-day knowledge they have of people needs, providers are now
able to have conversations with service users and their families about how much
support they actually need and they are able to do this in a timely manner. For
example, providers report that people often return home from hospital with more
support hours commissioned than they actually need once they are home; they are
well placed to notice this and to change/flex support accordingly

With the development of an hours tracker, the Home Care Commissioning Team are able to
record the difference between commissioned hours and actual hours such that we are now
able to reconcile a number of hours each month. The intention is for this first reconciliation to
be undertaken on 31 March 2019 based on an initial agreement of a bank figure of 1000
hours to allow the flexibility to increase hours for individuals on a short term basis (such as
providing more support to introduce people to activities that will ultimately reduce their
support needs). The 1000 banked hours will be reviewed as it may prove to be too many, but
until the whole of the service is operational under the new model we cannot know for certain.
However, we ultimately only pay for those hours delivered.

Central to the GM Living Well at Home programme is the recognition that by transforming
homecare the whole system will benefit. A sustainable homecare market where providers can
recruit and retain a well-trained, motivated and career-focussed workforce, skilled in
delivering person centred support, will be able to release capacity:

¢ In assessment and commissioning functions within neighbourhood teams

e In the District Nursing Service in relation to the delivery of low level healthcare tasks;
hence Tameside’s support at home service being the focus of the GM Health and
Social Care Partnership’s Living Well at Home Workforce Trailblazer: neighbourhood-
based blended roles

¢ In the moving and handling teams as the current duplication is eradicated; providers
carry out their own moving and handling assessment to ensure the safety of their staff
and of the people they are supporting

e In the community physio service as peoples mobility is maintained positively by the
service

With all six providers due to be linked to the Digital Health service the expectation is that, as
with the use of this service in residential and nursing care settings, there will be a reduction in
unnecessary presentation at A&E and GP surgeries as well as a reduction in associated
unnecessary ambulance call-outs. Supporting more people to live healthier lives at home, for
longer will, over time, reduce the reliance on expensive residential and nursing care. Closer,
more integrated working between providers and the hospital and providers and the
neighbourhoods will improve discharge outcomes for people; potentially shortening stays on
the wards and reducing the likelihood of repeat admissions. The increased involvement of
family, friends, neighbours and community groups in an individual’s support — facilitated
directly as a result of providers coproducing support plans with people - will reduce the need
for paid support; a fundamental component of a person centred health and social care
system

Case studies

1. George rarely leaves the house. Having supported George for a few years, and aware
that he was lonely, but with little scope to address this prior to the roll out of the new
model, his support at home worker has, in the last few weeks, asked George, a retired
engineer, if he would be interested in going along to the local Men in Sheds scheme.

Page 113




He was, but he felt anxious about going on his own. Using ‘banked’ hours, his worker
supported him to go, stayed with him and came home with him. After doing this twice,
George has said he is ready to give it a go himself. His worker has sorted out Miles for
Smiles to take him there and back. Once he’s settled in, they have discussed stopping
his lunch calls on the two days he goes.

2. Andrew was referred through to his local support at home provider with issues linked to
long standing anxiety; he rarely left the house, had poor physical as well as mental
health and was a frequent flyer in terms of accessing his GP. The support plan received
by the provider requested amongst other things, support for Andrew to attend The
Together Centre.

In coproducing his care plan, Andrew was of the view that, on reflection, he would rather
go to the gym. Using his commissioned hours, his keyworker accompanied Andrew to his
local gym, helped him sign up and now supports him to attend; 30 minutes a session,
three days a week. Andrew now also goes out walking locally with his support worker
and has started to meet up with a friend he’d not seen for years.

The relationship between Andrew and his keyworker has been crucial throughout with his
keyworker able to engage him in conversations and activities that have resulted in
Andrew making all manner of strides with relationship building, social inclusion and
anxiety management.

Actual hours are already around half of commissioned hours with Andrew reporting
feeling better about himself already and his provider is going to keep a track of his
contact with his GP practice to see if there is a reduction.

A two year review and evaluation of the project by Manchester Metropolitan University,
Centre for Health Economics, part of the wider Care Together evaluation, is due to start
imminently. Their evaluation will cover both qualitative and quantative metrics.

The contract includes, as standard, a 6-month no fault termination clause; hence were we to
extend for the full three years provisioned for we would still be able to terminate the contract
at any point — with enough time to reprocure — should the circumstances arise

Section 8: Social Value

The respective providers’ social value offer was part of their tender response and hence
forms part of the contracts going forwards.

Section 9: Supporting Information (insert N/A if not applicable)

The tender process N/A STAR  Procurement
was undertaken on has been provided
tha Chaoct witbh—alartranier—eAaniac

Page 114



Section 10: ASO Submission Signature

Submitted By Signature

Name:

Date:

Once the form including Section 10 has been completed, you should send the form to the
officer you have been dealing with or: procurement@star-procurement.gov.uk

STAR Procurement may contact you to discuss the content of the form to ensure that the
position is fully understood. Once this discussion is complete STAR Procurement will aim to
provide its agreement within 5 days. At that time, STAR will submit the Modification to your
Council’s Finance and Legal Services for their comments and signatures. You will be copied
into this communication and it will then be your responsibility to ensure that these comments
and signatures are obtained.

CPRs specify that all approved modification requests should be stored centrally, please
return the fully approved document to STAR so that we can fulfil this requirement, and can
include the contract created by the modification on the Contracts Register.

Section 11: STAR Procurement Comments
Name: Michael Sellors Date: 21 January 2019

Comment:

Standing Order Requirements

In accordance with the Standing Orders (SOs), an allowed for contract extension requires
prior approvals in the form of the Waiver. Clause 5.3 of each of the 6 contracts provides for
an extension of up to a further 3 years.

The value of this contract is above the EU threshold of £615,413 for these types of Light
Touch Services arrangements.

Procurement Risk

There is a low procurement risk by approving this form as the extension option is contained in
the original contract, and the increase in estimated value is only 7.9% (less than the 10%
threshold for “significant” change).

The proposed T&Cs are an extension of those of the current service provision.

Value for Money
The price is set by the commissioners. The overriding delivery factor in this contract is quality
of service.

Social Value
There has been no specific conversation with the providers about additional commitments to
social value should the Council extend as opposed to re-tender these contracts.

Section 12: Finance Service Comments

Name: Stephen Wilde Date: 22 March 2019

Comment:

The additional cost impact of the support at home model is being financed by GM
Transformation funding. The funding will support the enhanced hourly rate paid to
providers until 31 March 2020 (£17.60 proposed for 2019/20).

The additional recurrent cost pressure of R Trib8el (gross before any additional client
fee income) is estimated to be ¢ £ 1.9 million from 2020/21 onwards and is currently



mailto:procurement@star-procurement.gov.uk

included with the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. This equates to an approximate
Council Tax increase of 2%.

The additional cost is contributing towards the estimated revised Council financial gap of
£45.4 million by 2023/24. The estimated gap has increased to the previous gap of £ 36.1
million reported within the 2019/20 Council budget report on 26 February 2019. This is due
to the inherent risk that expenditure within Children’s Social Care will not reduce in line with
the Medium Term Financial Plan expectations.

Members should note that this report was discussed at the Locality Executive Group
meeting on 14 March 2019 to determine the economy wide savings that will be realised
from the new support at home model that will resource the recurrent cost pressure from
2020/21. At this stage the related savings initiatives are yet to be confirmed so the cost
pressure remains an estimated recurrent Council liability risk.

It should also be noted that the cost assumptions include a number of hours under the
phased roll-out of the new model, paid at the increased hourly rate, with an estimated full roll
out of the new model from 1 April 2019. This represents an estimated increase of 7.9% on
the initial 3 year contract value. This is primarily due to the increase in the hourly rate paid to
providers in the new model which will have increased by ¢ £3 per hour on the rate paid to
providers on the previous model, which equates to an approximate 20% increase. The
increase in the hourly rate will be financed by GM Transformation Funding to the end of the

current contract period.
Section 13: Legal Service Comments

Name: Aileen Johnson Date: 23 January 2019

Comment:

This is a request to extend 6 related contracts due to expire on 30 October 2019 for 3 years
under Council Procurement Standing Order F2 for which provision has already been provided
within the contracts. In all such cases the written approval of the Director of Governance
and Resources and the Director of Finance in consultation with the Deputy Executive Leader
and the relevant Executive Member must be obtained, and must demonstrate value for
money.

There is a further consideration because there is a proposed price variation of 7.9% and so
the decision makers will want to scrutinise the value for money submissions to ensure
continuing regard for the Council’s fiduciary duty to the public purse. Any contract variation
over 2.5% of a £1million contract, or 5% of a £500,000 contract requires a report to the
Director, Director of Finance and the Executive Member explaining why this variation which is
outside the permitted variation rules under Council Procurement Standing Order F2 is
justified. This report requires further explanation and evidence as to why this is the case and
still considered value for money.

Section 14: Approvals / Acknowledgements




Replace  with  Electronic
Signature or manual

Page 117



Page 118



Report to:

Date:

Executive Member/Reporting
Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Financial Implications:
(authorised by Section 151
Officer)

Agenda Item 8c

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD

24 April 2019

Jessica Williams, Interim Director of Commissioning

Presented by Pat McKelvey, Head of Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities

NEIGHBOURHOOD MENTAL HEALTH TEAM; LEAD
PROVIDER TENDER OUTCOME AND RECOMMENDATION

In November 2018 the Strategic Commissioning Board (SCB)
agreed that, in line with our Living Life Well (LLW) Mental Health
Programme, a new Neighbourhood Mental Health Team would be
established, bringing together a range of existing resources from
Pennine Care, TMBC and ICFT plus £1,048,831 of new
investment. Central to creating an innovative and flexible team is
the Lead Provider Organisation, which went out to tender on 15
February. SCB agreed to receive the Tender Award Report as a
tabled document to reduce any delays in establishing the new
service.

The Tender was led by STAR Procurement supported by a panel
including staff from the Strategic Commission and Pennine Care
NHS Trust plus people with lived experience who are working in
the LLW Programme.

The Post Tender Award Report is attached outlining details of the
process and outcome of this tender. An Exemption Request is
also included as only two providers submitted a bid for the
contract.

That the Strategic Commissioning Board is asked to agree that
Big Life Company is awarded the contract as detailed in the Post
Tender Award Report.

Budget Allocation (if | £1,193,496.31 for a contract
Investment Decision) period of three years

CCG or TMBC Budget| CCG

Allocation

Integrated n Commissioning | S75

Fund Section — S75, Aligned,

In-Collaboration

Decision Body - SCB, | SCB

Executive Cabinet, CCG

Governing Body

Value For Money | This was subject to formal
Implications — e.g. Savings | tender procurement and the
Deliverable, Expenditure | most competitive tender was
Avoidance, Benchmark | awarded demonstrating VFM
Comparisons

Additional Comments

Following a review of two years’ annual accounts for both
bidders, the preferred provider passed all the financial

evaluation assessments and scored a low risk to the CCG.

Page 119



Legal Implications:

(authorised by Borough
Solicitor)

How do proposals align with
Health & Wellbeing Strategy?

How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

How do proposals align with
the Commissioning
Strategy?

Additional financial clarification was sought on certain elements
of the bid and satisfactory responses received providing
additional assurance.

The CCG has planned for this investment and this is within the

budget identified.

This report should be dealt with in the exempt part of the agenda
as it contains information relating to the financial or business
affairs of particular persons, and in the current circumstances
where decisions and actions have still to be made and followed in
the procurement process, maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information contained within.

Procurement Standing orders requires at D3 that approval from
SCB is required where:

e it is not best value, or
e it has been negotiated, or

e less than 3 tenders have been received a report has to be
written with a full justification with details of the evaluation.

In this case only 2 tenders have been received necessitating a
report as above. The Council strategic Procurement advisor
STAR have assisted in the process and are supportive of the
outcome.

The proposal aligns with the Developing Well, Living Well and
Working Well programmes.

This proposal supports the achievement of:
e Healthy Lives (early intervention and prevention)

e Community development: this will strengthen and sustain
community groups and voluntary sector organisations to
provide the necessary support in the community.

e Enabling self-care: improving skills, knowledge and
confidence of people with long-term conditions or with on-
going support needs to self-care and self-manage.

e Locality based services; for people who need regular access
to health and social services, these will be fully integrated in
localities, offering services close to, or in, people’s homes.

This supports the ‘Care Together Commissioning for Reform
Strategy 2016-2020° commissioning priorities for improving
population health particularly;

e Supporting the wider determinants of health and wellbeing,
giving children the best start in life and helping people to stay
in and return to work, thereby improving their own prosperity.

e Early intervention and prevention across the life course to
encourage healthy lifestyles and promote, improve and
sustain population health.

e Creating the right care model so that people with long term
conditions are better supported and equipped with the right
skills to look after themselves and manage their conditions
more effectively, reducing dependency on the health and
social care system by promoting independence.

Page 120



Recommendations / views of
the Health and Care Advisory
Group:

Public and Patient
Implications:

Quality Implications:

How do the proposals help
to reduce health
inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications?

Has a privacy impact
assessment been
conducted?

Risk Management:

Access to Information :

e Supporting positive mental health in all that we do.

This report was not presented at this group as SCB agreed to
receive the Tender Award Report to reduce any delays in
establishing the new service.

This neighbourhood mental health development has been co-
produced with input from patients and the public with lived
experience of mental health needs.

If the investment is released to implement the new model of care
for mental health quality of care available for patients will be
improved.

This new development directly relates to a cohort of individuals
who have struggled to access or receive any mental health
support within the existing provision, due to not meeting current
thresholds of services. Therefore, this development provides a
new provision to support this cohort.

There are no equality and diversity implications associated with
this report.

There are no safeguarding implications associated with this
report.

There are no information governance implications associated with
this report.

Not applicable.

Risks will be identified and managed by the implementation team.

Appendix 1 | The Tender Evaluation Report, which is exempt
from publication as it contains commercial
information relation to a third party
The Exemption Request Form which is exempt
from publication as it contains commercial
information relation to a third party

Appendix 2.

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting Pat McKelvey, Head of Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities, CCG Commissioning Directorate.

3 Telephone: 07792 060411

ge] e-mail: pat.mckelvey@nhs.net

Page 121



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

BACKGROUND

This tender was conducted using the Open procedure in accordance with the requirements
of its Procurement Standing Orders and the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (Sl
2015/102) (PCR 2015) for the purpose of procuring the services described in the
Specification (Services).

In January 2018 the Strategic Commissioning Board (SCB) agreed to commit to improving
the mental health of the Tameside and Glossop population by agreeing to prioritise
investment in mental health to improve parity of esteem. Investment to support establishing
a new model of mental health support in the neighbourhoods and improving support to
people with ADHD and autism were included.

Following an analysis of options by a multi-agency working group SCB agreed investment
to establish the 101 Days for Mental Health Project in May 2018. This included investing in
the support of an experienced consultancy partner, the Innovation Unit, to support bringing
together a wide range of partners and people with lived experience to collaboratively co-
produce a new model of care for mental health in the neighbourhoods. The Business Case
relating to this was signed off by the Strategic Commissioning Board in November 2018.

The aim of the Neighbourhood Mental Health Team is to meet the needs of people with
multi-faceted needs. This includes:

The effects of childhood abuse;

Emotional instability;

Dual diagnosis (substance misuse, LD and autism;)

Young adults with mental health needs transitioning from CAMHS;
People with complex psychological needs;

Medically unexplained symptoms;

People frequently asking for mental health help, including GP, A&E;
People under the care of tertiary services e.g. with eating disorders.

The purpose of the team is to provide a range of person-centred interventions including
assessment, care planning, interventions and support for individuals introduced to the
service. The vision for the service can be found in the Specification.

PROCUREMENT PROCESS

The route to market was light touch open procedure. The tender was advertised on The
Chest, and also in the OJEU and Contracts Finder.

Below is the tender timetable:

Activity Date

Issue of ITT 15 February 2019

Deadline for receipt of questions or clarifications
(via The Chest)

Deadline for receipt of Tenders (via The Chest) 28 March 2019 by 5pm

22 March 2019 by 12noon

Interviews 3 April 2019
Notification of Decision

25 April 2019
(Standstill Period commences)
Contract Award 8 May 2019
Contract Start Go live 1 October 2019

Page 122



2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.1

3.2

The contract was awarded on the basis of the offer that was the most economically
advantageous to the CCG. The Award Criteria are as follows:

o 70% technical or quality.
o 20% interview.
e 10% cost.

Responses received:

Total number of Expressions of Interest: 27
Total number of On-Time Bids Received: 2
Total number of Opt-outs: 8

Total number of Non-responses: 17

The two bids received were from Richmond Fellowship and The Bid Life Company. The
bids were evaluated by a panel consisting of representatives from the CCG,
representatives of people with lived experience and colleagues from the council under the
moderation guidance of STAR Procurement. Specialities such as Finance, Safeguarding,
and Quality Assurance were also included in the evaluation of this Procurement Process.

The quality submissions received from both Richmond Fellow and Big Life required
substantial clarifications to ensure Commissioners and Finance were content with the
proposed delivery model and viability of responses.

The Tender Evaluation Report, which is exempt from publication as it contains commercial
information relation to a third party, can be found in Appendix 1.

PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDER SEEKING TO WAIVE / AUTHORISATION TO
PROCEED

This report is prepared in-line with Procurement Standing Order PSO D3.2 which requires
permission to be obtained where procurement activity has resulted in the receipt of fewer
than three tenders.

Authorisation is therefore sought for a waiver to PSO D3.2 to enable the award of contract
to Big Life Company.

The Exemption Request Form which is exempt from publication as it contains commercial
information relation to a third party can be found in Appendix 2.
VALUE OF CONTRACT

The three year contract value is £1,193,496.31 in total.

GROUNDS UPON WHICH WAIVER /AUTHORISATION TO PROCEED SOUGHT

A tender exercise was conducted utilising the open tender procedure in accordance with
2015 Public Procurement Regulations.

The panel is confident that the two tenders received demonstrated a sound understanding
of our requirements and that the winning tender represents the most economically
advantageous tender. Following the mandatory standstill period of 10 days, the contract
can be awarded subject to the approval of the required waiver to procurement standing
orders.

Page 123



41

4.2

4.3

7.1

REASONS WHY USUAL REQUIREMENTS OF PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDERS
NEED NOT BE COMPLIED WITH BUT BEST VALUE AND PROBITY STILL ACHIEVED

The Strategic Commission’s Procurement Standing Orders have been followed rigorously
in this tender process.

Following full evaluation by a panel consisting of representatives from each of the service
areas deemed the Big Life Company submission fully compliant and the tender with the

highest score met the Most Economically Advantageous Tender (MEAT) criteria, therefore

permission is sought under Procurement Standing Order PSO D3.2 to award the contract
for this service.

The alternative is to re-tender this service which will introduce delays to the implementation
of this mental health provision in the Locality and to service users.

RECOMMENDATIONS

As set out on the front of the report.

Page 124



Agenda Item 9a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to:
Date:

Officer of Strategic
Commissioning Board

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the statutory
Section 151 Officer & Chief
Finance Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Agenda Item 9b

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD
24 April 2019

Jessica Williams, Interim Director of Commissioning

GM RE PROCUREMENT OF
MANAGEMENT SERVICE

LEVEL 3 WEIGHT

NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG has been one of the
associates to the Level 3 Weight Management led by Salford
CCG since 2013. NICE guidance requires this service provision
before referring into Level 4 Bariatric surgery. The current
contract is due to come to an end in March 2019 and a
procurement exercise has been undertaken on behalf of
Manchester City Council;, NHS Bury Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG); NHS Salford CCG; NHS Stockport CCG and NHS
Tameside & Glossop CCG.

The specification for the new service remains fundamentally the
same but has a stronger focus on achieving and maintaining
weight loss within its outcomes. The eligibility for the service for
Tameside and Glossop patients remains the same and the
service will continue to integrate with other services within
Tameside and Glossop and Salford Royal. The annual budget at
£241k is the same as with the previous contract with around 244
people a year anticipated to receive support.

The Strategic Commissioning Board is asked to note the content
of this report, and approve the award of the contract as set out in
the evaluation Report.

ICF S75 Aligned | In Collab Total

Budget £000 £000 £000 £000
CCG 241 - - 241
Total 241 - - 241
Section 75 - £°000 A recurrent budget of £241k is in
Strategic place for the tier 3 weight
Commissioning management service
Board

Value For Money Implications — e.g. Savings Deliverable,
Expenditure Avoidance, Benchmark Comparison

This proposal is cost neutral against the tier 3budget. Though
it should be noted that while the recurrent budget is £241k,
actual spend in 2018/19 is expected to be closer to £200k
based on actual usage.

While the new tier 3 service will be no more expensive than the
existing service, the new service has the potential to reduce
spend on bariatric surgery and other conditions, resulting in an

indirect benefit to the overall financial position.

This report should be dealt with in the exempt part of the agenda
as it contains information relating to the financial or business
affairs of particular persons, and in the current circumstances
where decisions and actions have still to be made and followed in

Page 139



How do proposals align with
Health & Wellbeing Strategy?

How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

How do proposals align with
the Commissioning
Strategy?

Recommendations / views of
the Health and Care Advisory
Group:

Public and Patient
Implications:

Quality Implications:

How do the proposals help
to reduce health
inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications?
Has a privacy impact
assessment been
conducted?

Risk Management:

Access to Information :

the procurement process, maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information contained within.

The procurement process must comply with the Council’s
Procurement Standing Orders or a waiver where lawful provided
for any alternative action.

The proposals align with the Developing Well, Living Well and
Working Well programmes for action.

The proposals are consistent with the Healthy Lives (prevention)
strand of the Locality Plan.

The service contributes to the Commissioning Strategy by:
+  Commission for the ‘whole person’;
* Create a proactive and holistic population health system.

This is the award of a contract following procurement and as it is
‘commercial in confidence’ would not be taken to HCAG.

This service is a prerequisite for those obese patients who require
bariatric surgery. It enables access to weight management
services locally for patients.

The procurement included evaluation in accordance with the
approved and published evaluation process, which was designed
to select the most economically advantageous Bid, judged to offer
the optimum combination of Service Delivery, Clinical
Governance & Quality, Mobilisation, Exit and Capacity, Social
Value and Finance within the affordability parameters.

Reduce local variation and improve service design, delivery and
patient experience to improve access to services. The location
and access routes for the service will take into account the needs
of all our population and will focus on reducing health inequalities.

The proposal will not affect protected characteristic group(s)
within the Equality Act.

Safeguarding is central to the service provision.

The necessary protocols for the safe transfer and keeping of
confidential information are maintained at all times by both
purchaser and provider.

There are no anticipated financial risks and the CCG will continue
to work closely with the provider to manage and minimise any risk
of provider failure consistent with the provider’s contingency plan.

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting Elaine Richardson.

3 Telephone: 07855 469931

B e-mail: elaine.richardson@nhs.net

Page 140



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

BACKGROUND

In March 2013 Tameside and Glossop Planning, Implementation and Quality Committee
recommended that the CCG join as an associate to an existing Level 3 Specialist Weight
Management service and this was approved by the Governing Body in April 2013. NHS
Tameside and Glossop CCG has been part of a Greater Manchester arrangement for a
Level 3 Specialist Adult Weight Matters Service ever since.

The requirement for a service is mandated as part of the Level 4 specialist weight
management (bariatric surgery) pathway.

Tameside and Glossop is an associate to a contract held by NHS Salford CCG as the lead
commissioner and three other associates namely, Manchester City Council, NHS Bury
CCG and NHS Oldham CCG.

The Level 3 service aligned with the existing Locality Level 1 and 2 services and provided
the gateway to Level 4 which was at that time commissioned by NHSE.

Tameside & Glossop Adult Weight Management Services for people aged 18 years and over

Thee dipgram below gives an ovendew of the support ovailoble fo pofients who ore overweight ond ore molivated fo change

The sxpeciafion & that potients wil progress threugh the level of service unless there i @ specific reoton for not doing 10, 0.9.. need
for doricliory wpper.  Progresion to highest levels wil be deperdent on criteria, for exormple, BMI co-morbidities, wail

circumference and pregrancy. Some of this information is provided below But pleate tee wenice wpecifications for ull details

Recommended Service Provizion & Level:s of Intervention
Progression Criteria:

Salford Boysl Foundation Trunt snd Coustets of Chaster Hospital

Pt S phfy SESETAAE B pragaration

B péieduied; Compieton of vl ) and
T e peat fuspiny follow-up & suppert & rardition back 16 Livel 3 Speciak A A+ or

VIR R iy Ve cormorteditng

“Chairia b Chane” (84 Health Lid)

Complation of Lrvel 3 and

:':I;::u'mrmw:lmmnimt:s‘::m Lawal 3 pan o
helatll Suppee, Py q w“ L L]
e} p--:-:q dlmw.h;imﬂ o Speciatil Weight i:mﬁm“
Banitrs cefertal isirent f hgared 16 months e ftedince. . e
WEEH NS FIOET RS, Ctompigtinn, o Lol | 5o
WEHE Managhment LS. A =, T = co-mariiginaga, 35+ s g
et Traiewetd. Fchached Tavsi 8¢ fre 1tk fnctins foe i haaith Lawal 2 btgag preem poprett wee Anas
B &6 & UL et M Y 8 Crer e

of 10 2cm o 50w, BT wman ath
witl drvemiriemin of M= o0 sl

LidesTyle Sareniet | nciuding realth Traeen],
harmaCy Suppon sivae on haalthy Westves mg vl 1

e, okt Ose B SOk O SN BT
Sl Ca e [ Puibiled i 30h 1916 P ivads

Rel: NICE Obesity Chnical Guideling, CG43 (2004)
Anti-obasity deug will be préscribed in occordance with FMICE Clinlcal Guldelines:

| Bl I3

Commissioning responsibility for Level 4 specialist weight management (bariatric surgery)
transferred from NHS England Specialist Commissioning to CCGs, with NHS Salford being
the GM lead for a regional procurement. The regional tender process was halted at the end
of December 2016 due to a lack of competition and no bids being received at national tariff.
It was agreed regionally that Salford Royal would be the bariatric surgery provider for
Greater Manchester and has been commissioned by CCGs since April 2017.

As part of the transfer of Level 4 commissioning a Greater Manchester steering group was
established involving all CCGs and Local Authority representative to review weight
management services across GM to ensure services are equitable and reduce any variation
across GM.

The existing contract for Level 3 Specialist Weight Management ends in March 2019 and
Salford CCG has led the procurement for a replacement on behalf of City of Manchester

Page 141



1.8

1.9

2.1

3.1

Council, NHS Bury Clinical CCG, NHS Stockport CCG and NHS Tameside & Glossop
CCG.

The procurement was a national exercise for a Level 3 (non-surgical) Specialist Adult
Weight Management Service to provide a co-ordinated and integrated Level 3 Specialist
Weight Management for adults with BMI of 35 kg/m2 and higher. The contract will be for
duration of 3 years with the option to extend for up to a further 2 years.

The specification for the new service remains fundamentally the same but has a stronger
focus on achieving and maintaining weight loss within its outcomes. The eligibility for the
service for Tameside and Glossop patients remains the same and the service will continue
to integrate with other services within Tameside and Glossop and Salford Royal.

The new service will support the Living Well priorities enabling more people to choose
healthier lifestyles which will reduce their risk of developing other conditions such as
diabetes and coronary heart disease as well as reducing the number of people who go on
to require Bariatric surgery. The procurement process specifically looked for evidence of
use of a range interventions including use of digital technology and community service
locations as these should support people to fully engage and achieve weight loss. There
was also consideration of how providers would adopt a family-wide approach which will
support the Starting Well priorities promoting healthier eating habits across the whole
family. Increasing the number of people in Tameside and Glossop who have a healthier
lifestyle will improve Healthy Life Expectancy and reduce the cost of ill health both for
individuals and the Health and Social Care system.

BUDGET

The budget for the contract at £241k per annum remains the same as the previous
contract; however, a non-recurrent QIPP was applied in 2018/19 due to availability of the
service within Tameside and Glossop under the previous provider which impacted on

activity. It is anticipated that around 244 people a year will receive support through the new
contract.

RECOMMENDATION

As set out on the front of the report.

Page 142



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Report to: STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BOARD

Date: 24 April 2019

Reporting Officer: Richard Hancock - Director of Children's Services

Subject: PROPOSAL TO AWARD A SECOND CONTRACT FOR

INTERIM SOCIAL WORK SERVICES WITH SKYLAKES A
SPECIALIST CHILDREN’S SOCIAL CARE AGENCY FOR UP
TO A FURTHER SIX MONTHS

Report Summary: Authorisation is required from the Strategic Commissioning Board
because firstly it sets out a different delivery model outside the
usual Policy and Financial framework and secondly to agree an
exception to Procurement Standing Order F1.4 to direct award a
contract to Skylakes for the requirement because competition is
absent for technical reasons

Recommendations: That the Strategic Commissioning Board note the content of this
report and approve the following recommendations:

1. To agree the approach set out in the report to deliver support
to Children’s Services.

2. To approve the awarding of a second contract to Skylakes
(through the Crown Commercial Services framework
agreement: RM3711: Multi-disciplinary Temporary Healthcare
Personnel) providing for provision of discreet Social Work
capacity to manage 150 cases at any one time, for up to a
further six months with a break clause at three months to
enable a corporate review to be undertaken. Corporate
reviews needs to be undertaken at the end of the First
Contract (3 months) and if a second contract entered into —
every 2 months thereafter whilst that contract exists by the
Statutory Officers (Head of Paid Service, S151, Monitoring
Officer &Children’s) in conjunction with the Executive
Members for Finance and Childrens and with support from
STAR to determine whether the approach is achieving
necessary outcomes and secondly whether there is a need
for it to continue and if so in what form and what procurement
process needs to be undertaken

3. To recommend to Cabinet and the CCG that an estimated
expenditure of £0.473 million be allocated to this proposal as
explained in section 7.

Corporate Plan: This project will provide support into teams who although centrally
based predominantly provide services on a locality footprint, so
it is anticipated that the improvement is service delivery will be
seen across localities.

Policy Implications: There is no planned or permanent change to policy and financial
framework. This is an interim arrangement designed to provide
targeted support into a specific area of service under pressure.

Financial Implications: The total value of the extension for up to 26 weeks is estimated at
£472,817 (£18,185 per week) to deliver as a managed service.
This sum includes an estimate for business related car mileage
claims, at the standard Council rate.

(Authorised by the statutory
Section 151 Officer)

Page 153



Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

The cost of the contract will be financed via the 2019/20 Children’s
Social Care Directorate revenue budget. Members are reminded
that the Council approved £9.3 million additional revenue
investment, funded from reserves to the Directorate budget for
2019/20 on 26 February 2019. However, the estimated cost of this
contract extension was not included as a commitment against this
investment.

The Directorate will ensure 4 Social Worker posts (agency)
included within the 2019/20 budgeted establishment will remain
vacant for the duration of this proposed extension to support the
related financing.

In addition the contract provider will be expected to deliver key
performance measures within the terms of the extension. Some of
these measures will deliver cost savings to again support the
related financing (all others will deliver capacity benefits). These
include the conversion of Independent Agency Foster Carers (IFA)
to Special Guardianship (SGO) status and the step down of
children currently residing in independent sector residential care to
independent agency foster care or semi-independent residential
care.

It is anticipated that up to 18 Independent Sector fostering
placements could be converted during the life time of the contract
together with circa 20 in house foster carers.

The estimated savings are summarised in table 1 (section 7).
The savings are shown for the period of the proposed contract
extension together with the remaining period of the 2019/20
financial year.

The contract extension is expected to be self-financing if the
performance measures are delivered. In addition the savings that
may be realised will also finance the cost of the existing contract.

Members should note however that the savings that are expected
to be realised will not contribute towards the financing of any
existing or additional demand pressures that may materialise in
the current financial year as they are contributing towards the cost
of the current contract and proposed extension. The majority of
future savings will come through the reduction in the volume of
looked after children. It is expected that progress will be made in
this area during the year and that the additional savings are
possible to enable the delivery of a balanced budget.

A previous decision was made to enter into a contract with
Skylakes to provide urgent support to Children’s Services for 14
weeks to assist in the recovery programme required to improve the
service to Ofsted’s satisfaction.

It is very important that if a further agreement with Skylakes is
deemed necessary to ensure continuing urgent external support
and business continuity that the Council immediately begins a
procurement exercise running alongside, if it considers that this
support will be required in the longer term.

Continuing to rely on urgency as a reason to reprocure the
services of Skylakes carries inherent procurement risks and the
longer the urgent need persists, the less likely it can be argued it is
urgent under the Council’'s Procurement Rules and so warrants a

Page 154



Risk Management:

Access to Information:

direct award as opposed to carrying out a procurement exercise
under either a framework or an open market testing exercise. The
Council will also need to take extreme care to ensure that other
potential providers are not disadvantaged through the procurement
of Skylakes services. To this end specialist procurement advice
on the specification and other contract documentation should
continue to be provided and followed through the Council’s
strategic partner STAR Procurement.

Clearly approval is required not just for additional authority to enter
into a further contract, but also to actively seek to procure this type
of service to support Children’s Services at this critical time.

F4 of the Procurement Rules say that a direct award of a contract
i.e. without any competition can only be made if:

1. No suitable tender is received capable of meeting our
requirements. or

2. Our requirements can only be met by a single bidder because:
(i) the aim of the procurement is the creation or acquisition of a
unique work of art or artistic performance, or (ii) competition is
absent for technical reasons (iii) we have to protect exclusive
rights such as intellectual property rights and no reasonable
alternative or substitute exists. or

3 There is extreme urgency due to events which we could not
foresee and are not our fault. This usually means Act of God
situations such as fire or flood.

The Director of Childrens has advised that there is no other
provider who can deliver this managed service.

A corporate review will need to be undertaken at key miles stones
in this contract (1) at end of first contract and (2) every 2 months
into second as there can be no further waivers and to determine if
this approach is deemed necessary, delivering and if required for
longer or different services/support required a procurement
process is commenced expediently.

It is not anticipated that this project will in itself present
any specific risks, although the risks associated with the current
position which this proposal is designed to in part address
are detailed elsewhere in this report.

The contract will be proactively managed through fortnightly
performance meeting with the provider and monthly briefings to
SLT. This together with the option of a three month break clause
will support the management of any risk associated with the
contract not delivering on the required outcomes for children, the
associated financial savings or capacity building.

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting the Director of Childrens by:

& Telephone: 0161 342 3354

Gi | e-mail: richard.hancock@tameside.gov.uk

Page 155


mailto:richard.hancock@tameside.gov.uk

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3.

24

INTRODUCTION

As members and colleagues will be aware the performance of our front line social work
teams has been of concern since the Ofsted inspection in 2016 highlighted the matter and it
was as a result of particular pressures and associated performance that an award of a
contact was agreed to Skylakes for the provision of additional defined Social Work capacity.

This report will reiterate the basis for this original decision, update on progress over the first
seven weeks of the current fourteen week contract and propose the basis for an extension.

BACKGROUND

Considerable work has taken place over the last eighteen months or so in order to address
front line Social work capacity and performance and there are clear signs of improvement in
performance as detailed in our Self-Assessment:

e “Quality audits show an improving and more consistent standard of casework with a
reducing percentage of inadequate judgements. Performance indicators show we
are getting the basics right more of the time. Our partners are making fewer
inappropriate referrals, an increasing number of cases are receiving early help and
fewer are subsequently then escalating to children’s social care. We are managing
risk and need with more confidence so that the volume of total referrals is
reducing, whilst there has been a more recent rise in Child in Need cases,
following a sustained reduction, alongside a reducing number of children subject to
a Child Protection plan. The Council has sustained its investment to ensure that
there has been additional casework and improvement capacity. We have developed
with our staff and articulated “The Heart of Practice” as the Tameside way of
doing things, with Signs of Safety at the core of our new practice framework. This
has been rolled out across front line, middle and senior managers during
September/October and is currently being embedded across the whole workforce
and wider partnership December - April which will support us to deliver the quality
and standards that we expect”. Self-Assessment

Despite this generally improving picture significant pressures remain:

o “At this stage in our improvement, our primary challenges lie in workforce issues
and ensuring we have the right staff to drive delivery for us. In particular, we face
both the long term challenges over Social Worker and first line manager recruitment
and retention, and a more recent acute shortage of supply of locum Social
Workers across the region” Self-Assessment

Permanent staff turnover has been reducing, but reliance on agency staffing remains
high (although reducing), but first line management across our Hub/Duty/Safeguarding is
now at 90% permanent staffing”.

The significance of our staffing issues was last reported on 9 January 2019 and again on
6 February:

e ‘It is extremely positive that in this key area of “children in need of help and
protection” our thresholds and decision making are seen to be sound and that
referrals are then progressed appropriately. It is also encouraging that positive
progress can be seen since Ofsted last inspected this area in January of 2018.

There are, as is clear from the report, a number of positives in our performance
where significant progress has been made, but also a number of areas requiring
further improvement, which had largely already been identified through our own
quality assurance processes and regarding which improvement activity is already in

Page 156



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

place.The biggest single risk to the effectiveness, consistency and speed of our
improvement though, as recognised by our own self-assessment and clearly
reflected, both in the Ofsted judgement and the feedback of our DfE colleagues, is
our ongoing difficulties in the recruitment and stability of our Social Work workforce”

o “Staff recruitment and retention of frontline workers and service unit managers
continues to be a significant challenge for the local authority. Senior leaders
recognise that workforce instability brings with it a number of vulnerabilities, including
inconsistency in the quality of practice. The local authority is actively engaged in a
number of relevant initiatives to support social work recruitment and staff
development, but at this early stage there has been limited impact”.  Ofsted
November 2018

e “The single biggest risk to the Tameside improvement journey (and various action
plans) remains the inability of the LA to recruit and retain a stable cohort of good
social workers. Despite a range of both traditional and innovative approaches to
recruitment at practitioner and team leader levels, the authority is managing to do
little more than hold its position on SW numbers” - DfE Improvement Advisors report
December 2018

e “To date and despite a range of initiatives we have been unable to make any
significant inroads into the recruitment of a stable workforce, but it is both positive and
helpful going forward that we now have a predominately permanent children’s
leadership team and an improved position with regard to first line management, which
we anticipate will be further bolstered by current recruitment activity. This area
remains a priority and a focus of work both within children’s services and alongside
corporate colleagues”. Board Report 9" January/ 6" February 2018

This instability in our workforce is not consistent across all areas of practice and although it
is more acute within our Locality Teams, who take work from the hub and duty (the subject
of Ofsted’s November monitoring visit) and implement the necessary interventions across
the Child in Need, Child Protection and Looked After continuum), it is also evident in our
duty and Looked After Services.

Good quality and effective Social work interventions are relationship based and the skills
necessary to work with the level of complexity which brings families to the attention of a
statutory services Child in Need/Child Protection/Looked After, requires both a high degree
of professional skills and practice experience. This level of reliance on ASYEs (Social
Workers in their first year of practice) and interim workers along with the level of turnover
impacts negatively on the effective functioning of the service in a number of ways -

o Whilst ASYEs bring with them significant benefits to a team and service, an over
reliance has less positive impacts:

The restricted caseloads required for ASYEs along with the lower level of complexity they
are allowed to manage and the increased levels of supervision and support required, both
reduces the overall capacity of the workforce and places additional demands on first line
managers.

The restricted caseloads required for ASYEs along with the lower level of complexity that
they are allowed to manage requires other team members to pick up a disproportionate
number of more complex work rather than a more balanced and therefore manageable
caseload.

e Turnover in the workforce will reduce the overall capacity and efficiency of a given
number of posts:

Page 157



2.9

2.10

2.11

212

2.13

Whereas a permanent and established workforce may reasonably be able to manage X
number of cases per full time equivalent position filled. A workforce so heavily reliant on
interim positions along with such a high turnover of staff reduces this significantly, as cases
are reallocated to manage turnover requiring each new case holder to both familiarise
themselves with the case and establish new relationships with children, families/carers and
often a range of other individuals.

o Consistency of social worker is a key indicator of an effective and stable service and
seen as a key to the provision of quality and effective interventions and our
performance in this area is of some concern.

o The competing demands within a social work team in excess of its capacity to cope,
will inevitably lead to a prioritisation of work, both at a team and individual level and
impact negatively on quality and/or timeliness.

This is the effect that we are seeing in areas of our service, where the impact of the staffing
issues as described works through to individual cases where the quality of our interventions
remains to inconsistent.

As an interim measure therefore, agreement was given to engage a specialist agency who
could within a short timescale provide a self-contained social work team along with its own
management, family and business support capacity to lift circa 200 Child in Need cases out
of our locality services.

This would, it was anticipated, provide both a moral boost to a workforce who have been
under significant pressure for an extended period, with the anticipation that this will also
impact positively on the turnover rates and release both social work and management
capacity to focus on the quality of the practice.

Below is a brief summary of the original proposal:

e The programme follows intensive intervention with the child/ren and families over a
14 week period. There will be 3 to 4 reviews in this timeframe with a decision made
either during (depending on risk and need) or at the end of the programme for de-
escalation or escalation. Skylakes will deploy a Team of, 2 Team Managers, 10
Social Workers, 2 Family Support Workers with an accompanying business support
function for each cohort of 200 children at any one time. Practitioner caseloads will
be capped at 20 children.

e The programme will have a roll in phased start with the Team Manager starting in
week 0 and remainder of the team commencing on week 1. Total duration is 14
weeks

e This project will be completely remote. The Team Managers will be present in the
office for a minimum of 1 day a week to update your allocated project sponsor and to
facilitate all transfers under CP, at LPM or Proceedings or LAC.

e All case transfers to Skylakes will be managed in house by Skylakes and will not
require council input, time or resources.

e The desired outcome would be to manage a CIN service of intensive intervention,
with a 14 week turnaround on the majority of cases, allowing 3 to 4 CIN meetings in
this time.

e Specific handover points will be ICPC, LPM in any PLO or planned proceedings
cases, LAC placement agreement meetings at 72 hours and proceeding 1st ICO

Page 158



3.1

3.2

3.3.

3.4.

3.5

3.6

3.7

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

UPDATE
The contract went live on 11 February 2019.

Team one commenced on 11 February 2019 and Team two on 18 February 2019.

200 cases were allocated.

At the seven week review —
e 46 cases had been closed, stepped down or escalated as appropriate
¢ 31 additional cases had been allocated
e 18 were to be allocated

It is currently projected that circa 40/50 cases will after updated assessments and planning
and review require ongoing work following the current 14 week contract period and as a
result pass back to the Local Authority at this point.

Feedback from colleagues has been positive.

The work is judged to be of a good quality.

OPTIONS GOING FORWARD

Whilst it is positive that turnover of permanent staffing has reduced, the proportion of
agency staff in the service remains high.

Although this is now at a lower level than at any point in the past 18 months plus, it still
remains at over 30% (and it should be noted that a proportion of this reduction is caused by
carrying vacant posts as a result of ongoing difficulties in recruiting both permanent and
interim capacity).

Issues remain in relation to the high turnover rate amongst agency staffing and the
inconsistent quality of work.

It is proposed that in order to address the ongoing pressures in the children’s social care
system, the staffing and associated capacity issues as detailed earlier in this report, that an
extension to the current contract is granted for a period of up to six months with a break
clause at three months.

The benefits of this are as follows:

e The quality of the work undertaken to date is seen to be good and more consistent in
its quality than that which is currently available through the more usual individual
worker/contract agency recruitment.

e The turnover of staffing over the life of the current contract is projected to be 0%.

¢ Maintaining the current contract will enable consistency of staffing and prevent the
handover of an anticipated 40/50 cases to other workers with all the inefficiencies
associated with this as outlined earlier in this report.

e This will also prevent a change in Social Worker for this cohort of children.

e The current staffing complement is now familiar with Tameside policies, procedures
and processes and have developed effective working relations, so will be in a position
to take forward this work at pace.

o It will be possible to allocate additional cases that will require interventions to a point
past the current contract.

Page 159



4.6

4.6

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

412

e Whilst significant investment will be required in order to maintain this resource it is
anticipated that this cost can in partly be offset by holding four vacancies that would
otherwise be filled with individually recruited agency staffing.

e The savings associated with the proposed targeted case work activities as detailed
in section 4.7 of this report will also be set against the contract costs, with a
projection that overall the contract will be cost neutral.

Whilst a focus will be maintained on the CIN and associated work as previously outlined
which is impacting positively on the service as anticipated. It is recognised that the
capacity to effectively take forward timely and targeted Social Work activity linked to our
Looked After population would also be of clear benefit to the individual children, capacity,
ongoing service improvement and financially.

Although now relatively stable since October 2018, our LAC population remains high and
this capacity will allow targeted work to take place as follows:

e Support permanency arrangements for children where appropriate with a significant
individual through a Special Guardianship Order application.

o Seek the discharge of Care Orders where appropriate for children placed at home
with parents.

o Work with a defined cohort of children where it is believed that with support, a step
down to a more appropriate and most likely cost effective placement or possibly home
to family/friends is achievable.

This targeted activity will support our long term strategy of reducing the Looked After
Population by significantly increasing the timeliness and speed at which we will be able to
review and update individual care plans if required and then where appropriate secure
Special Guardianship or the discharge of Care Orders for children placed at home. Both of
which will enable secure long term permanency plans to be achieved in a more timely
manner for a number of children together with the associated capacity gains and financial
savings.

This targeted and time limited activity will not only enable more timely interventions and first
and foremost improved outcomes for a number of our children and young people as
outlined above, but also release a level of current staffing capacity to focus more effectively
on our longer term improvement journey. This includes fully embedding our practice model
Signs of Safety and improvements in the consistency of quality in our assessment, planning
and case management.

In progressing work through this route the increased capacity created, or be it temporarily, it
is anticipated will reduce some pressures in the system on a more permeant basis,
reduce/remove backlog and also provide the opportunity for our managers and staff to
focus on the areas of improvement identified in our self-assessment. It is not anticipated
that any further such arrangements will be required going forward following the conclusion
of this proposed contract.

This arrangement will also afford the opportunity to provide a level of targeted support in
discreet areas of pressure, namely Public Law Outline cases where there has been drift
and reassessment is required to support progress or potential step down; connected carers
assessments to avoid delay and progress children in a timely manner to the care of
relatives/ friends where appropriate, and some activity at the front door as required.

Specific cohorts of children will be identified, clear performance indicators, including
timescales and outcomes established. It is anticipated that the contract will be cost neutral
and to support this, it will be proactively managed through fortnightly performance meeting
with the provider and monthly briefings to SLT. This together with the option of a three
month break clause will support the management of any risk associated with the contract

Page 160



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.9

5.10

6.1

6.2

6.3

not delivering on the required outcomes for children, the associated financial savings or
capacity released.

PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDER SEEKING TO WAIVE /AUTHORISATION TO
PROCEED

This report is prepared in line with Procurement Standing Orders F1.4 where authorisation
is required for exception to Procurement Standing Orders on the basis that this activity
provides evidence that the exception is necessary to achieve the Council’s objectives and
will achieve Best Value for the Council.

The instability of the workforce in this area has become more acute in the past few months
and requires urgent action in order to seek to stabilise the position. Simply seeking to
recruit to social work positions or to fill vacancies with agency staffing has so far not proved
successful.

The consistency of the quality of work across this area is of particular concern and has
attracted criticism from the Courts.

The Council is due a full Ofsted inspection any day now.

A number of children entering care from 1 December to 18 January had escalated from
CIN.

Cases are backlogging in Duty as Locality Teams are unable to manage the demand and in
Locality Teams as Looked After Teams are unable allocate, leaving a number of cases that
require action to review, update or progress the care plans, either moving them through or
in many cases out of the system.

The Council continues to have a statutory responsibility to ensure that services for our
children are of a good and consistent standard.

Targeted activity to help address the Local Authorities LAC numbers will be possible with
the additional capacity afforded by this contract.

The extension will allow for continuity of work and also allow the Council to look at what are
the commissioning requirements going forward. Once this is established the extension will
allow time for governance and to go out to the market and procure a service if this is
required.

VALUE OF CONTRACT

The Services to be provided under the proposed contract fall under the “light touch rules
regime” of the EU procurement rules and as such does not need to be advertised in the
Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU). The light touch regime applies to a certain
category of Health, Social and Education services and certain other service contracts with a
threshold value of below £615,278. Based on the information contained in this section of
the report the value of the contract is below this financial threshold.

Members should note that the contract value includes a fixed sum of £ 460,817 together
with an estimate for business mileage of £ 12,000, total estimated value of £ 472,817. This
equates to £ 18,185 per week for the 26 week duration.

The cost of the contract will be financed via the 2019/20 Children’s Social Care Directorate
revenue budget. Members are reminded that the Council approved £9.3 million additional

Page 161



revenue investment to the Directorate budget for 2019/20 on 26 February 2019. However,
the estimated cost of this contract extension was not included as a commitment against this
investment.

6.4 The Directorate will ensure 4 Social Worker posts (agency) included within the 2019/20
budgeted establishment will remain vacant for the duration of this proposed extension to
support the related financing.

6.5 In addition the contract provider will be expected to deliver key performance measures
during the extension period. Some of these measures will deliver cost savings to again
support the related financing. These include the conversion of Independent Agency Foster
Carers (IFA) to Special Guardianship (SGO) status and the step down of children currently
residing in independent sector residential care to independent agency foster care or semi-
independent residential provision.

6.6 The estimated savings are summarised in table 1. The savings are shown for the period of
the proposed contract extension together with the remaining period of the 2019/20 financial
year. The delivery of the estimated savings will be subject to stringent contract
performance monitoring on a two weekly cycle throughout the contract duration. Table 1
also provides details of the estimated placement numbers that will realise expected
savings.

6.7 The contract extension is expected to be self-financing if the performance measures are
delivered. In addition the savings that may be realised would also contribute to, or
potentially fully finance the cost of the existing contract, but only if fully achieved.

6.8 Members should note however that the savings that are expected to be realised will not
contribute towards the financing of any existing or additional demand pressures that may
materialise in the current financial year as they are contributing towards the cost of the
current contract and proposed extension. The majority of future savings will come through
the reduction in the volume of looked after children. It is expected that progress will be
made in this area during the year and that the additional savings are possible to enable the
delivery of a balanced budget.

Table 1
Estimated
No of | £'000 £'000
Placements
Estimated Contract Value 472.8
Estimated Savings - Contract Duration
Existing Establishment Social Worker Posts - Remain Vacant | 4 103.1
For Contract Duration '
Existing IFA Placements - Conversion To SGO 18 25.7
Existing Independent Sector Residential Placements - Step | 4 517
Down To IFA Placement '
Existing Internal Sector Residential Placements - Step Down To
IFA Placement - Transition Of Independent Sector Residential | © 26.4
Placements to Internal capacity
Existing Independent Sector Residential Placements - Age 16 | 4 36.1
Plus - Step Down To Semi-Independent Placement
Existing Internal Sector Residential Placements - Age 16 Plus -
Step Down To Semi-Independent Placement - Transition Of | 2 8.0
Independent Sector Residential Placements to Internal capacity
Total 251.0
Net Cost 221.8

Page 162




Estimated Savings - Remainder of 2019/20

Existing IFA Placements - Conversion To SGO 18 109.2
Existing Independent Sector Residential Placements - Step | 4 219.7
Down To IFA Placement '
Existing Internal Sector Residential Placements - Step Down To
IFA Placement - Transition Of Independent Sector Residential | © 112.2
Placements to Internal capacity
Existing Independent Sector Residential Placements - Age 16 | 4 153.6
Plus - Step Down To Semi-Independent Placement
Existing Internal Sector Residential Placements - Age 16 Plus -
Step Down To Semi-Independent Placement - Transition Of | 2 34.0
Independent Sector Residential Placements to Internal capacity
Total 628.8
Estimated Net Saving - 2019/20 (407.0)
Estimated Cost of Existing 14 Week Contract
Estimated Net Saving Of Existing Contract and Proposed

(98.5)
Contract

7. GROUNDS UPON WHICH WAIVER /AUTHORISATION TO PROCEED SOUGHT

71 Other Local Authorities have engaged with this supplier for the same reasons and have
provided testimonies that can be made available. The testimonies are very positive and
clearly recommend Skylakes as a safe and credible supplier of managed Social work
Services.

7.2 Skylakes have supplied a bespoke package of support and planned implementation to the
Council that can be made available if requested.

7.3 Given the timescales involved and urgency it would clearly make no sense to try and go
elsewhere for the required service. There would undoubtedly be significant inconvenience
in terms of officer time, delay in project implementation as well as additional unnecessary
costs. The continuity and efficiencies gained from extending the current arrangements are
significant.

8. REASONS WHY USUAL REQUIREMENTS OF PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDERS
NEED NOT BE COMPLIED WITH BUT BEST VALUE AND PROBITY STILL ACHIEVED

8.1 This new arrangements is necessary to achieve the Council’s statutory duties, objectives
and will achieve Best Value for the Council.

8.2 The council has a statutory duty to ensure that services for our children are of a good and
consistent standard.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 As set out at the front of the report.

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6a Tameside and Glossop Strategic Commission 2019/20 Financial Plan
	6b M11 Consolidated Revenue Monitoring Statement
	ITEM 6(b) -  Appendix 1 FINAL

	7a Quality Assurance Report
	7b Performance Update
	ITEM 7(b) - Appendix 1 - Health and Care Dashboard FINAL
	ITEM 7(b) - Appendix 2 - Exceptions FINAL

	8a Suicide Prevention Strategy 2019/23
	8b Provision of Home Support and Extra Care Housing
	8c Neighbourhood Mental Health Team: Lead Provider Tender Outcome and Recommendation
	9a Neighbourhood Mental Health Team: Lead Provider Tender Outcome and Recommendation
	9b GM Re-Procurement of Level 3 Weight Management Service
	ITEM 9(b) - Appendix - GM Procurement of weight management FINAL

	10 Skylakes Extension

